
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

        Meeting: Wednesday, 21st July, 2021 
           at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART ONE  
 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 16th June, 2021. 
 
 

5 - 16 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(R) 8.   Community Renewal Fund - The Barrow Way   
 
To consider recommendation to Council to be accountable body for the 
Community Renewal Fund bid. 

 

17 - 62 

(D) 9.   Growing Forward, Recovery & Service Planning   
 
To receive an update on prioritisation and progress towards actions set 
in both the Council Plan 2020-2024 and the Growing Forward Executive 
Committee reports of 8 July 2020 and 23 March 2021.    

 

63 - 90 

(D) 10.   Changing Futures for Complex Individuals   
 
To receive a report on the Changing Futures Programme. 

 

91 - 112 

(D) 11.   Customer Services Strategy - Final Draft   
 
To consider and agree the Customer Services Strategy. 

 

113 - 124 

(D) 12.   Housing First - Transitional Housing Model   
 
To consider a report on the Housing First – Transitional Housing Model. 

 

125 - 130 

(D) 13.   Women's Support and Accommodation Service   
 
To receive a report on the Women’s support and accommodation 
service. 

 

131 - 138 

(R) 14.   Proper Officer Appointments   
 
To consider revisions to the Proper Officer Appointments for referral to 
full Council. 

 

139 - 150 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

(D) 15.   Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Phase 3 / Home 
Upgrade Grant   
 
To consider submission of a bid to the Sustainable Warmth Fund. 

 

151 - 154 

(D) 16.   Future Operation of Barrow Park Leisure Centre - Progress Update   
 
To receive an update on the Council’s leisure arrangements (Note also 
Part Two Agenda Item) 

 

155 - 160 

PART TWO  
 

 

(D) 17.   Barrow Forward Limited - Strategic Decisions for the Future Delivery 
of Leisure Services  
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

161 - 322 

(D) 18.   Earnse Bay Hub  
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

323 - 326 

(D) 19.   Debenhams Rooftop Car Park  
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

327 - 332 

(D) 20.   Heating and Ventilation Contract  
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

333 - 336 

(D) 21.   Housing Repairs Contract  
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

337 - 342 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
 



 

 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Barlow 

Biggins 
Blezard 
Brook (Chairman) 
H. Edwards 
Hamilton 
Maddox 
W. McClure 
Morgan 
Pemberton 
L. Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
Ronson 
 

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
  

Jon Huck 
Democratic Services Manager 
07825206525 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday 13th July, 2021 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Meeting: Wednesday 16th June, 2021  
at 2.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 
 

PRESENT: - Councillors Brook (Chairman), Roberts (Vice-Chairman), Barlow, 
Biggins, H. Edwards, Hamilton, McClure, Morgan, Pemberton, Robson and Ronson. 
 
Officers Present: - Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head of 
Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Jan Sharp (Assistant Director - Housing), 
Helen Houston (Development Services Manager), Alec Proffitt (Policy and 
Engagement Officer), Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager) and Sandra Kemsley 
(Democratic Services Officer). 
 
14 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Blezard and Maddox. 
 

Councillor Robson had substituted for Councillor Blezard for this meeting only. 
 
15 – Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Barlow declared an Other Registrable Interest in Agenda Item 11 – 
Additional Restrictions Grant.  He was the Treasurer of North Sale Residents 
Association. 
 
16 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 26th May, 2021 were agreed as a correct record. 
 
17 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
18 – Levelling Up Fund Application Submission 
 
The Development Services Manager’s report sought authority to make a Levelling Up 
Fund Application submission.  The Levelling Up Fund had been announced by 
Government at the 2020 Spending Review to support communities by investing in 
infrastructure projects which had the potential to improve lives by giving people pride 
in their local communities. 
 
Recognising that economic differences remained between different parts of the UK, 
particularly ex-industrial towns, and rural and coastal communities such as Barrow the 
fund would be a driver for positive change.  These economic differences had real 
implications for people’s lives through their pay, health and life opportunities.  The aim 
of the Fund was to tackle these economic differences and increase prosperity as part 
of ‘levelling up’ left behind regions of the UK. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 
The Fund would focus on capital investment in local infrastructure, building on and in 
collaboration with other funding programmes such as the Local Growth Fund and 
Towns Fund.  Applications would be prioritised that invest in regeneration and growth 
in places in need and areas of low productivity and connectivity. 
 
In 2020 Barrow’s Future High Street Fund proposal had not been successful in 
receiving funding from Government, the proposed application to the Levelling Up Fund 
built on the projects identified in the previous bid and supported the vision for Barrow 
town centre as a strategic regeneration priority. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To delegate authority to the Director of People and Place, in consultation with 

the Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Leader of the Council, to submit 
an application to the Levelling Up Fund based on the package of projects 
outlined in the report by the deadline of 18 June 2021; 

 
2. To agree the principle of providing the £1.6m co-funding and recommend 

approval by full Council; and 
 
3. To recommend to full Council that:- 
 
 1) If the bid was successful that the Council provide up to £1.6m of co-

funding to invest in the proposal by revising the Capital Programme.  The 
funding invested would be repaid from new income generation activities 
or reductions in existing subsidies; 

 
 2) If the bid was successful that the Council agreed the inclusion of up to 

£16m of project funding in the Capital Programme from 2021/2022; 
 
 3) If the bid was successful that Barrow Borough Council would act as the 

Accountable body for the funding; and 
 
 4) To authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Director of 

Resources, Leader and Chair of Executive Committee, to enter into a 
Grant Funding Agreement with the Government. 

 
19 – National Lottery Heritage Fund Application Submission 
 
The Development Services Manager reported that the National Lottery Heritage Fund 
provided grants for heritage projects that would sustain and transform the UK’s 
heritage.  Grants range from £3,000 to £5 million and priority was given to projects 
that met one or more of the following outcomes – Inclusion; Economy; Wellbeing; 
Local Area; Skills and Organisational Resilience. 
 
Building on the success of the previous National Lottery funded micro-grant scheme 
in Barrow, it was proposed that an application be submitted to National Lottery 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



Heritage Fund for a project called ‘Barrow’s Heritage – Micro to Mighty’. If successful, 
funding would be used to run a small micro-grant scheme, supported by a Project 
Officer who would also explore opportunities around developing the Town Hall as a 
heritage asset for the town. 
 
The report sought delegated authority be given to the Director of People and Place, to 
submit an application to National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) based on the proposal 
outlined in the report. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Robson, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To delegate authority to the Director of People and Place to submit the 

application to National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF); 
 
2. If the application was successful, to provide match funding of £7,500 

contribution; 
 
3. If the application was successful, to appoint a Temporary Heritage Project 

Officer to manage the project; and 
 
4. To authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Director of Resources, 

Leader and Chair of Executive Committee, to enter into a Grant Funding 
Agreement with the NLHF. 

 
20 – Additional Restrictions Grant 
 
The Director of Resources’ report requested confirmation of the distribution of the third 
tranche of Additional Restrictions Grant which was Covid-19 support to businesses 
that were not eligible for the mandatory Local Restrictions Support Grants. 
 
It was proposed that those continuing businesses already supported from the 
Additional Restrictions Grants receive a top-up proportionate to the grant bandings 
that applied to the scheme. 
 
The £2.3m funding available would be entirely distributed and the Additional 
Restrictions Grant Scheme would be ended. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roberts and seconded by Councillor Robson, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To agree that the third tranche of Additional Restrictions Grant was 
entirely distributed as a top-up to those continuing businesses already supported from 
that grant scheme. 
 
21 – Consultation on Consistency in Household and Business Recycling in 

England 
 
The Director of People and Place reported that The Department for Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) had issued consultations on:- 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 
Consistency in Household and Business Recycling in England proposed to, Increase 
consistency in recycling that would reduce confusion in the materials that could be 
collected for recycling at kerbside. 
 
The Council were committed to making the Borough a clean and green place to live.  
The subjects of the consultation would have significant impact for the Council, with 
regard to the collection of recycling, therefore it was important the Council responded 
to the consultation. 
 
Steph Cordon updated the Committee on the consultations.  The full response to the 
Consistent Collections Consultation was appended to the report. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To agree the response to the consultation on Consistency in Household 
and Business Recycling in England as attached to the report. 
 
22 – Adelphi Court – New Lease for 2021 to 2024 
 
The Assistant Director – Housing informed the Committee that the report was to 
endorse the entering into of a new lease for Adelphi Court with Richmond Fellowship 
(following the existing extended lease expiring on 31st May, 2021) from 1st June, 2021 
to 31st May, 2024 – a period of three years. 
 
The Council had agreed a lease with Croftlands Trust – since merged with Richmond 
Fellowship – to take over the management of Adelphi Court with the primary purpose 
of providing supported accommodation for 11 people with mental health. 
 
The lease had been granted in March 2015 for a period of five years ending March 
2020.  Richmond Fellowship had confirmed at that time they wanted to continue to 
manage and provide supported housing, however, that was dependent on them being 
successful when Cumbria County Council (CCC) re-tendered the framework and 
awarded the funding accordingly to cover the cost of providing support for a further 
five years. 
 
The funding Richmond Fellowship received from CCC had been extended from March 
2020 to July 2020 and the lease extended accordingly to 31st July, 2020 as agreed by 
Housing Management Forum on 16th January, 2020 and Executive Committee on 5th 
February, 2020. 
 
Due to Covid-19, CCC had further deferred the re-tendering process of the framework 
until 31st May, 2021 and had extended the funding to Richmond Fellowship 
accordingly. 
 
It had been agreed at Housing Management Forum and Executive Committee on 9th 
September and 23rd October, 2020 respectively that the lease would be held over 
until end of May 2021 when the re-tendering of the framework by CCC had been 
completed. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Richmond Fellowship were informed on 14th May, 2021 they had been successful in 
the re-tendering of the three-year framework and had requested a new lease for 
Adelphi Court from 1st June, 2021 to 31st May, 2024 initially; the framework had an 
option to add a further two years to the three years. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Robson and, 
 
RESOLVED:- To confirm that the Council enter into a new lease for Adelphi Court with 
Richmond Fellowship for the period 1st June, 2021 to 31st May, 2024. 
 
23 – Brilliant Barrow Town Deal Assurance Framework 
 
The Director of People and Place informed the Committee that the Council was 
Accountable Body for the Barrow-in-Furness Town Deal.  The Heads of Terms 
received in October 2020 for the Town Deal had included a requirement for business 
cases to be developed, appraised and assured locally. 
 
There was also a requirement to demonstrate that the Accountable Body had the 
appropriate governance processes and procedures in place to manage Town’s Deal 
funding in a transparent and accountable manner.  Government had advised that a 
Town Deal Local Assurance Framework was the mechanism by which this should be 
articulated. 
 
Guided by the National Assurance Framework guidance used by Local Enterprise 
Partnerships as best practice, a draft had now been developed.  That sets out the 
process surrounding the development and delivery of town deal schemes, focusing on 
roles of the Accountable Body (Barrow BC), Town Deal Board, Programme 
Management Office and Scheme Deliverers. 
 
The document articulated the requirements for the Accountable Body with regard to 
the administration of Town Deal funding, and the relationship between the Board and 
the Accountable Body, to provide comfort to Government on the management 
arrangements for managing Town Deal funds. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Barlow and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note the role of the Accountable Body; and 
 
2. To endorse the Barrow Town Deal Assurance Framework. 
 
24 – Safer Streets Fund Rounds 2 and 3 
 
The Policy and Engagement Officer provided an update on the bid for Safer Streets 
Fund Round 2 funding and the Round 3 Fund that had been launched on 3rd June, 
2021. 
 
The Council were a leading partner in the Cumbria Office of Police and Crime 
Commissioner (OPPC) successful bid to the Safer Street Fund Round 1, in March 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



2020. That provided funding for a targeted community safety campaign within Central 
Ward, giving the Council an opportunity to build volunteer and community wealth in 
the area, as well as offering residents practical crime prevention advice and 
interventions. 
 
The second round of funds, for 2021-22, gave each OPCC area the opportunity to bid 
for three projects, but allowed local authorities to lead on bids, which could be 
endorsed by OPCC.  The Council submitted a tertiary project for the OPCC. 
Unfortunately on 3rd June the Council were informed that they had been unsuccessful 
in the bid as only primary, and a small number of secondary, bids had been agreed 
due to the large number of applications. 
 
On the same day the third round of the fund had been launched. That was a £25 million 
fund set up in the wake of the murder of Sarah Everard.  Whilst the first two rounds 
were related to the prevention of neighbourhood crimes such as burglary, robbery and 
theft, the third round was being targeted at improving the safety of public spaces, with 
a particular view on combatting violence against women and girls (VAWG).  The £25 
million fund sought to build a VAWG evidence base to inform future policy and funding 
decisions.  Through encouraging innovative approaches from those seeking to make 
use of the funding, the third round of funding also sought to improve the evidence base 
of what works to prevent these crimes outside of traditional Safer Streets Fund 
interventions. 
 
The fund was separate from the Night Time Economy (NTE) Fund which had not yet 
been launched, details would be released shortly and would seek to support projects 
that improve safety in the public realm for all, with a particular focus on women and 
girls’ safety. Focus on reducing violence against women and girls, but not exclusively. 
 
Whilst the bidding process and rules were less prescriptive, and “as light touch as 
possible” there was significantly less time to prepare bids with the deadline for 
submission midnight on 15th July 2021 with projects up to £550,000 in the same three 
tiers for each OPCC area.  All funding and project deliverables must be complete by 
March 2022. Decision on successful bids would be made and communicated before 
end of August 2021. 
 
Council Officers would like to work with relevant statutory and community sector 
partners including officers from the OPCC to work up a bid for the fund and seek to 
persuade OPCC to carry it as their Primary bid.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Morgan and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note that the bid for Safer Streets Fund Round 2 had been unsuccessful as 

the Fund had been heavily oversubscribed; 
 
2. To agree to work with relevant local partners to build a bid for Round 3, and 

seek endorsement from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner as 
the Primary Bid for Cumbria; and 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



3. To delegate authority to the Director of People and Place to lodge a bid for the 
Council prior to the 15th July, 2021 deadline. 

 
25 – Local Authority Remote Meetings: Call for Evidence 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance reported that the Government was calling for 
evidence seeking views on the use of arrangements which provided express provision 
for local authorities to hold meetings remotely during the coronavirus pandemic. 
 
Regulations which came into force following the introduction of the Coronavirus Act 
2020, made express provision for local authorities to hold meetings before 7th May, 
2021 remotely so that they could protect their members and comply with public health 
guidance. 
 
That provision had now ceased and the call for evidence was an opportunity to 
understand experiences and inform a decision about whether to make the 
arrangements permanent.  Any permanent change would require primary legislation. 
 
The consultation questions and suggested responses had been attached as 
appendices to the report. 
 
Members were asked to consider the same prior to their submission before the 
deadline date of 17th June, 2021. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Barlow and seconded by Councillor Morgan and  
 
RESOLVED:- To consider the call for evidence and agree the Council’s response as 
attached to the report. 
 
26 – Appointments on Outside Bodies, Panels and Working Groups etc. 
 
The Democratic Services Manager reported that at the Annual Council meeting on 
21st April, 2021 the allocation of seats in respect of Forums, Panels, Working Groups 
etc. were agreed. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had carried out a Review of Outside Bodies, 
the recommendations of which were reported to their meeting on 3rd June, 2021.  It 
was agreed that the Council continued to nominate Members to the active 
organisations, and did not nominate Members to organisations which had not been 
active within the last two years.  It was also noted that full Council in September 2020 
had agreed that members on outside bodies should be requested to provide an annual 
report on the work of the body and its contribution to the Borough and the wider area. 
The first phase of report returns had been presented to the Annual Meeting in April 
2021 
 
Group Leaders had been asked to supply details of the recommended appointments 
for confirmation by the Committee. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Roberts and  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To consider the recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

review of outside bodies; and 
 
2. To consider the appointments recommended by the political groups and 

determine the appointments to be made where nominations exceed the 
available places as follows:- 

 
REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES, ETC. 2021/22 
 
(1) AIR TRAINING CORPS (NO. 128 SQUADRON)  
 The Mayor. 
 
(2) ARMED FORCES CHAMPION 
 Councillor Husband. 
 
(3) ASKAM AND IRELETH COMMUNITY CENTRE MANAGEMENT 
 COMMITTEE 

Councillors D. Edwards, Ronson and Shirley. 
 
(4) BARROW HEALTH AND WELLBEING FORUM 
 Councillors Hall, Mooney and Robson  
 
(5) BARROW-IN-FURNESS SEA CADET CORPS COMMITTEE) 
 The Mayor 
 Substitute: - Deputy Mayor 
 
(6) BILLINCOAT CHARITY TRUST (4 year appointment until May 2023) –  
 Councillors Blezard, D. Edwards, Maddox, Nott, Ronson and Shirley. 

(7) BRILLIANT BARROW BOARD 
 Councillor M. A. Thomson 

(8) BUCCLEUCH HALL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
 Councillor D. Edwards. 
 
(9) CHILDREN AND FAMILIES PARTNERSHIP (CHILDREN’S TRUST) 

Councillors Assouad and Morgan 
 
(10) CUMBRIA ALCOHOL AND DRUG ADVISORY SERVICE BOARD  
 The Mayor. 
 
(11) CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY 
 Councillor Cassidy 
  
(12) CUMBRIA HOUSING EXECUTIVE GROUP  

Councillor Hamilton. 
 
  

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



(13)  CUMBRIA PENSIONS FORUM 
 Councillor Wall. 
 
(14) CUMBRIA STRATEGIC WASTE PARTNERSHIP  
 Councillor M A Thomson. 
 
(15) DALTON BORDERLANDS STEERING GROUP 
 Councillors Blezard and Ronson. 
 
(16) DALTON COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION  

Councillor Nott. 
 
(17) FCC PARTNERSHIP BOARD (3:1) 

Councillors Cassidy, Hamilton, McLeavy and Robson. 
 
(18) FURNESS ABBEY FELLOWSHIP  

Councillor Wall. 
 
(19) FURNESS LINE COMMUNITY RAIL PARTNERSHIP 

Councillor Nott. 
 
(20) FURNESS MARITIME TRUST  

Council of Trustees: - Councillors Blezard, Cassidy, C. Thomson and Wall plus 
the Chief Executive and Director of Resources. 

 
(21) JOINT RURAL COMMITTEE 
 Councillors Blezard and Ronson. 
 
(22) KEEPING OUR FUTURE AFLOAT  
 Councillor Roberts. 
 
(23) LIFE LEISURE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (3:1) 

Councillors Brook, Callister, Hall and McEwan 
 
(24) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP SCRUTINY BOARD (0:1) 
 Councillors H. Edwards. 
 
(25) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION: GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 Councillor Roberts. 
 
(26) NORTH WEST OF ENGLAND AND THE ISLE OF MAN RESERVE FORCES 

CADETS ASSOCIATION 
 The Mayor. 
 
(27) NORTH WESTERN LOCAL AUTHORITIES' EMPLOYERS' 
 ORGANISATION  

Councillor Brook (Substitute: Councillor Nott). 
 
(28) NORTH WEST INDUSTRIAL COMMUNITIES ALLIANCE 
 Councillor McEwan (Representing Borough and County Councils) 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



(29) PATROL (Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside London) Adjudication 
 Committee 
 Councillor Callister 
 
(30) SOUTH CUMBRIA COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP  
 Councillors Roberts and Robson. 
 
(31) SPIRIT ENERGY LIAISON COMMITTEE – arranging a meeting in the future. 
 
OUTSIDE BODIES AGREED BY COUNCIL 
 
Allotments Liaison Committee (6:3)  
 
Councillors Barlow, Burns, Gawne, Husband, Johnston, McLeavy, Ronson and C. 
Thomson plus 1 Labour representative. 
 
Barrow Local Committee – Highways Advisory Group (1:0) 
 
Councillor Nott. 
 
Wildlife and Heritage Advisory Committee (6:3) 
 
Councillors Assouad, Barlow, D. Edwards, Mooney, McClure, Robson, M. A. Thomson, 
Wall and Zaccarini. 
 
MEMBERSHIP OF FORUMS, PANELS, WORKING GROUPS ETC.  

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Barrow Market Liaison Committee (3:1) 
 
Councillors Barlow, Brook, McEwan and Zaccarini. 
 
Cumbria Local Nature Partnership Board (1:0) 
 
Councillor Wall. 
 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel (1:0) 
 
Councillor Hamilton. 
 
Health and Safety Management Board (3:2) 
 
Councillors Barlow, Gawne, Hall, Husband and C. Thomson 
 
Medical Assessment/Housing Applications Appeals Panel (2:1) 
 
3 Members selected by Chief Executive in accordance with proportionality rules 
 
  

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 
Member Training Working Group (3:1) 
 
Councillors Blezard, Brook, Morgan and Ronson. 
 
Planning Policy Working Group (4:2) 
 
(Two Members from Executive Committee and four Members from Planning 
Committee) 
 
Councillors Brook, Gawne, Hall, Roberts, C. Thomson and M. A. Thomson 
 
Renovation Grants Panel (3:1)   
 
To be appointed for 2021/22 in accordance with proportionality rules 
 
Review Board – Housing Register/Homeless Applicants (2:1) 
 
3 Members selected by Chief Executive in accordance with proportionality rules. 

REFERRED ITEMS 
 

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION 

 
27 – Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 
The Director of Resources reported that since 1st April, 2013 the Council had operated 
a Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (also referred to as Council Tax Support) that 
mirrored the Council Tax Benefit regime.  That maintained the links to the Housing 
Benefit system that would have applied to Council Tax Benefit pre 1st April 2013.  The 
adopted Local Scheme ensured that those receiving Council Tax Support received the 
same amount as they would under the Council Tax Benefit regime. 
 
Council Tax Support reduced the amount of funding generated by the Council Tax as 
it reduced the liability that was collected in cash terms.  The cost of the scheme was 
shared by the preceptors. 
 
Funding for the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme mainly came through the 
financial settlement; in the first year, 2013-2014, that was 90% of the cost but the 
amount was no longer itemised. Revenue Spending Power reductions had been used 
as a proxy to determine the cost to the Council. 
 
It was projected that the Council Tax Support award for 2022-2023 would total £6.4m. 
The £6.4m was shared between the preceptors with the Council’s share equating to 
£0.8m; the remaining £5.6m was shared between the other preceptors. 
 
Council Tax Support was currently awarded to 6,268 accounts that was around 6,000 
in January 2020.  The number of accounts included in the projection for 2022-2023 
was 6,368. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Taking into account the assumed amount of funding for Council Tax Support 
incorporated into the financial settlement, it had been estimated that the cost to the 
Council in 2022-2023 would be £236k.  That cost was higher than the assumption in 
the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 
It was proposed that the current Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme continued for 
2022-2023. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Roberts and  
 
RESOLVED:- To recommend the Council:- 
 
1. To agree the continuation of the current Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

for 2022-2023; and 
 
2. To update the Medium Term Financial Plan for the projected scheme costs. 
 
The meeting closed at 2.46 pm. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 

PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Community Renewal Fund – The Barrow Way 
 

   

Report from:   Chief Executive 

Report Author:  Policy & Development Officer 

Wards:    All wards – predominantly Barrow Island, 
Central and Hindpool 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report seeks authority for Barrow Borough Council to act as accountable body for 
the delivery of the collaborative bid to central government’s Community Renewal Fund 
(CRF), entitled The Barrow Way.  It also provides details of the themes within the 
multiagency bid, and the projects that it will deliver. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

1. Recommend to full Council that the Borough Council acts as Accountable 

Body for the full Community Renewal Fund bid; 

2. Agree that the Borough Council act as theme lead for Theme 1 – Create the 

Right Conditions 

3. Agrees that Officers progress to undertake the work set out in Appendix 2 

to prepare for implementation and delivery of the project, should the bid to 

MHCLG be successful; 

4. Delegates setting the terms of reference including the award criteria for the 

Community Investment Fund to the Chief Executive and the Director of 

Resources; 

5. The Borough Council work with identified theme leads to develop a 

governance and evaluation structure; 

6. Prepare for a positive response from the Ministry of Housing, Communities 

and Local Government (MHCLG) for commencement of projects from 

September 2021 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Community Renewal Fund was launched in March 2021 as a pilot programme in 
advance of the introduction of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. There is £220m being 
made available for spend in 2021/22.   

 
The Fund is 90% revenue and aims to support communities to pilot programmes and 
new approaches.  The funding is for new and innovative proposals to deliver the 
following investment priorities:  

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



 

 Investment in skills – e.g. Work-based training, retraining, upskilling/reskilling, 
promote digital skills and inclusion. 

 Investment for local business – e.g. Supporting entrepreneurs, to create more jobs, 
to develop innovation potential, decarbonisation measures. 

 Investment in communities and place – e.g. Feasibility studies for delivering net-
zero/local energy projects, for promoting culture-led regeneration, community 
development, improving green spaces and preserving important local assets, rural 
connectivity. 

 Supporting people into employment – e.g. Supporting people on their journey 
towards employment, identifying/addressing barriers to employment/moving closer 
to the labour market, developing basic skills, testing what works in helping people 
move towards work. 

 
All areas of the UK were able to apply for the funding, however, as with the Levelling Up 
Fund, Barrow is identified as one of 100  priority locations for this Fund. 

 
The County Council was identified as the Lead Authority for UK Community Renewal 
Fund in Cumbria, requesting and assessing bids from local authorities and community 
groups across the county.   

 
3.2 Borough Council officers, in consultation with partners on the Barrow Community Local 

Resilience Forum (BCLRF), felt that the greatest chance of maximising funding 
opportunity, and to give the community the greatest chance of success, was to co-
ordinate a collaborative bid, with the Borough Council as the lead organisation.  The 
BCLRF agreed and endorsed the bid prior to it being submitted for assessment to the 
County Council.   

 
3.3 Cumbria County Council assessed the bid and prioritised for submission to the Ministry 

of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) for consideration prior to the 
June 18th deadline.  Borough Council officers are now co-ordinating preparations to 
commence projects from 1st September, should the bid be agreed by MHCLG.  A full 
copy of the bid can be found in Appendix 1 (attached) and its total value is £1,132,874.  
It is expected that MHCLG will inform the Borough Council of the outcome of the bid by 
the end of July 2021, with funding being available and eligible for spend between 
September 2021 and April 2022. 

 
3.4 A core group of officers from the Borough Council, County Council and Cumbria CVS 

called for local community and third sector organisations to produce project plans which 
were then filtered and grouped.  It became clear that there were four key interconnected 
themes that formed the holistic bid: 

 
1. Creating the right conditions; 
2. Putting young people at the heart of our professional partnership; 
3. Barrow community skills model; 
4. Culture restoring communities. 
 
The four themes will help bring to life the Borough Council’s agreed Covid-recovery 
strategy, detailed in two previous Growing Forward reports to Executive Committee, as 
illustrated in the diagram in Fig. 3.4 (below) which has been named The Barrow Way: 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



 
Fig 3.4 The Barrow Way - Barrow Borough’s Covid-recovery model 
 

3.5 It is proposed that Barrow Borough Council is the programme lead and accountable 
body. A lead organisation has been appointed for each project theme to oversee the 
delivery partners.  Activities will be delivered by their respective individual or partnership 
organisations, working with the wider theme and project partners to maximise impact. A 
robust approach to project management will be undertaken by each theme lead who will 
coordinate and oversee project delivery in line with the project delivery plans, maintain 
oversight to monitor outputs and spend, and share good practice and lessons learnt. 
The theme lead will report to the programme lead on progress including spend and 
outputs. Programme assurance systems will provide critical oversight and formative 
evaluation work will ensure good practice and lessons learnt are applied to inform 
delivery.  The following project management costs have been included to help the 
Borough Council deliver its accountable body status: 

 Programme costs - amount to £60,000 (5% of total project spend): 

- Programme and Assurance, Barrow BC, £20,000 

- Project management and reporting, £20,000 

- Evaluation, £20,000 

3.6 In its prioritisation outcome letter, attached in Appendix 2, a number of “prior to funding 
agreement” conditions were placed on the Borough Council and the most relevant are: 

 Barrow Borough Council to put in place systems to ensure all project delivery 
partners are aware of, and comply with, the terms and conditions attached to 
UKCRF funding agreement; 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



 The applicant to produce a Monitoring & Evaluation Plan to include all outputs and 
outcomes, and to include the roles and responsibilities of all delivery partners. The 
plan will also need to include which delivery partner will be responsible for 
contributing to the achievement of outputs and outcomes; 

 Applicant to provide the Terms of Reference for the Grants Panel. Cumbria County 
Council must be listed as a voting member with an option to veto any decision that 
would impact on their role as Accountable Body for the Fund; 

 Further consideration to the equality impacts of the project is required. Project 
delivery partners will also need to consider the Public Sector Equality Duty when 
delivering their element of the project. 

3.7 Partners on the BCLRF have committed to delivering these projects, as well as a 
number that were suggested but not permissible to be included in the bid, should the 
bid be rejected by MHCLG, with a planned working group to look at refining how long 
term Borough-wide funding of such partnership projects is delivered. 

3.8 Executive Committee are asked to recommend to Council that they agree the Borough 
Council acts as Accountable Body, and agree that Officers undertake the work set out 
in Appendix 2 to prepare for implementation and delivery of the project, should the bid 
to MHCLG be successful. 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Extensive consultation with a broad range of statutory and community sector partners 
was conducted through BCLRF between March and June 2021. 

 
5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not to be accountable body but this would result in any offer for funding by MHCLG 
being rejected and the projects being unfunded. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Contributes to all people and place Council Plan Priorities. 
 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The Community Renewal Fund bid does not require any matched funding from the 

Council.  As accountable body the Council will need to identify resources to administer 

and manage funding offers, monitoring, payment claims and any due 

diligence/assurance required – there is funding provided within the bid.  For the theme 

to be delivered directly by the Council, it is necessary to identify a delivery mechanism, 

process and procedure; if that is delivered external to the Council then normal 

procurement procedures will be followed.  If that is delivered internally then the relevant 

resources will have to be identified.  The Council must establish terms of reference for 

the Community Investment Fund, including the membership. 

 

Legal  

7.2 There are no legal matters to raise within this report but if successful then the Council 

agreements may be required to deliver on the funding plans which will be subject of 

further legal consideration.. 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No  
 
7.4 The report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 
  
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Accountable Body Status 

 

Lose funding Robust governance and 

evaluation process. 

Delays in reward decision Delay in delivery Start preparation before 

decision 

Preparation and resource 

delivered and bid rejected 

Wasted resource None 

Insufficient resource to govern 

project 

Lose funding Robust governance and 

management structures 

Delays in reward decision Delay in delivery Start preparation before 

decision 

Delays in recruitment and 

delivery 

Delay in delivery Start preparation before 

decision 

 

Contact Officers  

Sam Plum Chief Executive   sjplum@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Alec Proffitt Policy & Engagement Officer aproffitt@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  The Barrow Way – Barrow Borough Council’s Community 

Renewal Bid 

2  Cumbria County Council – UK Community Renewal Fund – Local 

Prioritisation 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

2 

Add links where possible 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

mailto:sjplum@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:aproffitt@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
    Page 1 of 38 
 

 
UK Community Renewal Fund Application Form 

 
Version Control. This version (V2) replaces the original Word version published on Gov.UK. It 
has been amended to improve usability. No changes have been made to the questions or 
associated guidance. Applications submit on the original Word version of the application or the 
ODT version will be accepted.  
 
The UK Community Renewal Fund Prospectus, Assessment Criteria, a Technical Note for 
Project Applicants and Deliverers and Technical Note for Lead Authorities are available here.   
  
The level of information provided should be proportionate to the size and complexity of the 
project proposed.  
 

Applicant Information 
 
Applicant name: Barrow Borough Council 
 
Bid Manager Name and position: Alec Proffitt, Policy & Engagement Officer 
Name and position of officer with day to day responsibility for delivering the project 

 
Contact telephone number: 07929 849175            
Email address: aproffitt@barrowbc.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria LA14 2LD 
 
Website: www.barrowbc.gov.uk 
 
Company Registration Number (where relevant):  
 
Charity Registration Number (where relevant):  
 
Senior Responsible Officer contact details: Sam Plum, Chief Executive Officer, 

sjplum@barrowbc.gov.uk, 01229 876504 07929788282 
 
Please confirm the type of organisation: 
 
☒ Local authority 
☐ Private sector 
☐ Voluntary sector 

☐ University 
☐ FE College 
☐ Other (please specify)   

 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-community-renewal-fund-prospectus


   Page 2 of 38 
 

Value being Requested (£):1,132,874 
 

The Bid – investment priority 
 
Please select which investment priority or priorities of the UK Community Renewal Fund are 
you applying under: 
 
☒ Investment in skills  
☒ Investment for local businesses  
☒ Investment in communities and place  
☒ Supporting people into employment  

 
Private and Voluntary Sector Applicants in Northern Ireland. Please 
confirm you have attached a copy of the applicant’s latest accounts.  

 

 
  

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 3 of 38 
 

Part 1 - Project Summary 

1a Project Name The Barrow Way 

For questions 1b-1f, please describe in 500 words or less per question. Please be as concise 
as possible. 

 
1b What activities will take place?  
 
Figure 1 - Summary of The Barrow Way: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 4 of 38 
 

Figure 2 - Theme 1: 

 
 
Figure 3 - Theme 2: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 5 of 38 
 

Figure 4- Theme 3: 

 
 
Figure 5 - Theme 4:  

 
 
The project will test a collaborative community-led approach to providing social infrastructure 
through ‘The Barrow Way’ as summarised in Figure 1. The project is underpinned by four 
thematic areas providing a targeted approach.  
 
Theme 1 tests a new approach to enable the community to identify and fulfil their own long-

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 6 of 38 
 

term needs.  
 
Activities include: 
- Community mapping of existing strengths and assets  
- Team around the community – support for families with primary age children showing early 
signs of struggling 
- Well-being hub sustainability – mapping, deep listening and feasibility study of hubs 
- Love Barrow Families in Communities – testing and development of an active citizenship 
model 
-Training the professionals – using a range of Asset Based Community Development 
techniques to enable agencies involved to work in a resident centred Barrow Way 
- Community Investment Fund – a small grants pot that voluntary and community organisations 
can bid into to take forward ideas. 
 
Theme 2 delivers a partnership that will create strategies alongside children and young people 
to develop their capabilities. 
 
Activities include: 
- Provision of Furness Future Leaders Academy for primary school pupils, with young people 
involved in planning, delivery and evaluation 
- Cando FM Youth Radio project – extracurricular Radio Clubs creating content that feeds into 
local radio schedules 
- Cando FM Technology Youth Club – youth professional and technology practitioner supported 
technology related learning. Subjects include Virtual Reality, Augmented Reality and Music 
Production  
- Self Harm Awareness for All (SAFA) Self-Care Toolbox for Children and Young People – web-
based mental health and wellbeing platform developed with schools, colleges and youth groups 
- Inspira -  holistic pre-employment training, advice and support for 18-24 year olds to progress 
into work 
- Barrow Learns, University of Cumbria (UoC) – Engagement with disadvantaged communities 
to understand needs and opportunities to develop an inclusive Higher Education model  
- Walney Community Trust (WCT) – capacity to work with young people to explore ways to 
improve life skills and wellbeing  
 
Theme 3 tests approaches to inclusively overcome barriers to gaining skills. 
 
Activities include: 
- Cumbria CVS Skills Programme – tailored support to people on low income, under or 
insecurely employed, unemployed or economically inactive and not ready to access traditional 
employability programmes 
- Barrow and District Disability Association (BDDA) Skills Builder – Use of a triage and 
staircasing approach to develop interpersonal and digital skills 
- Cando FM digital media studio – broadcasting of information from community organisations, 
local people and artists via multiple platforms  
- Signal films - Specialist creative digital skills workshops 
- UoC Learn Digital Barrow – development and delivery of higher level digital skills modules 
from introductory to specialist skills 
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 7 of 38 
 

Theme 4 brings together ambitious, local cultural groups to capitalise on the area’s cultural 
assets and test the principle of culture-led regeneration. 
 
Activities include: 
- 6-month programme of cultural events to boost Barrow’s new cultural community venue  
- Outreach events to drive cultural participation and celebrate the area’s heritage and natural 
environment 
- Communication of Barrow’s cultural offer, including an audit of assets, branding creation, 
development of communications channels, and a cultural action plan.  
1c Who will deliver the activities? 

Barrow Borough Council is the programme lead and accountable body. A lead organisation has 
been appointed for each project theme to oversee the delivery partners.  
 
Theme 1 – Barrow Borough Council are the theme lead, working in partnership with 
organisations Love Barrow Together, The Well, the Council for Voluntary Service, Love Barrow 
Families, Cormac Russell and all partners of the Love Barrow Together Coalition. 
 
Theme 2 – Drop Zone Youth Programme are the theme lead. Partners include: Furness Youth 
Work Partnership, Furness Carers, Walney Community Trust, Leonard Cheshire, Brathay, 
Furness Multi Cultural Forum, Barrow Borough Council, Cumbria County Council, the Police 
and Barrow Integrated Care Community, Furness Education and Skills Partnership (FESP), 
Barrow Association Football Club, Walney Community Trust, University of Cumbria, Inspira, 
SAFA, Inspiring Barrow, FTG and CANDO FM.  
 
Theme 3 - FESP are the theme lead. Each delivery organisation will be responsible for 
delivering their individual project and for monitoring their outcomes. Partnership organisations 
include: FESP, Cumbria CVS, BDDA, CANDO FM, Signal Film and Media, UoC, youth groups, 
Getting Cumbria to Work (GCtW) partnership, Barrow Advice Hub, other community partners. 
 
Theme 4 – Signal Film & Media are the theme lead working in partnership with Dalton Culture, 
Arts, and Heritage Group and Barra Culture. The delivery organisation is split by activity 
stream, Signal Film & Media will deliver events to boost the new community venue, Dalton 
Culture, Arts, and Heritage Group will manage outreach events in Dalton-in-Furness, and Barra 
Culture will communicate and raise awareness of the offer. 
1d How will the activities be delivered?  

Activities will be delivered by their respective individual or partnership organisations, working 
with the wider theme and project partners to maximise impact. A robust approach to project 
management will be undertaken by each theme lead who will coordinate and oversee project 
delivery in line with the project delivery plans, maintain oversight to monitor outputs and spend, 
and share good practice and lessons learnt. The theme lead will report to the programme lead 
on progress including spend and outputs. Programme assurance systems will provide critical 
oversight and formative evaluation work will ensure good practice and lessons learnt are 
applied to inform delivery.  
 
This four-themed proposal sets out the ethos, values, theoretical foundation and evidence we 
need to pilot and learn from doing things The Barrow Way: a way of working that is fresh, 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 8 of 38 
 

innovative and inspiring.  Covid has unearthed the neighbourliness, pride and goodness which 
is part of our history-not always visible or shouted about but shared and recognised by 
Barrovians as our culture. We want to conserve our culture and start from what is strong and 
positive here in Barrow, not with deficits and problems. We want to celebrate our residents 
helping one another, enable them to thrive and cheer them on.  
 
The Barrow Way:- 
 
• Our Values- Kindness, equality, love and collaboration 
• Our Guiding Stars or principles created by local people 
• Our Ethos – Asset Based Community Development, Attachment based working, and 
Capacity Building based upon Sen’s Capabilities Approach 
• An Open Front Door and a commitment to getting it right for residents the first time they 
ask for or need help no matter what that is: the right help for the right resident, at the right time 
from the right place 
• Creating a sense of belonging for everyone and a determination to consider what we do 
in the light of the legacy that we are leaving for our children and young people 
• Active Citizenship – using trusting relationships built with families/residents to support 
them to take the next small step towards taking an active role in their community 
• Respect and pride for our place, our environment, land and natural beauty 
• A love for our culture and investment in creativity, enabling everyone to contribute and 
benefit  
• Co-production of services with families/residents if and when they are needed.  
 
1e Who will be the beneficiaries of the project? 

The project will direct support towards communities which are most in need. Development of 
the projects has been informed by the ‘Barrow Community Renewal Fund Evidence Base’ 
which provides a baseline position and has informed effective targeting of the project. 
Beneficiaries vary between project themes. 
 
For each theme the direct beneficiaries are as follows: 
- Theme 1 - Residents of all ages within the borough, although primarily those living within the 
Barrow Island, Central and Hindpool wards. 
- Theme 2 - Children and young people, young people who are not in education, employment 
or training, families, people who are unemployed and people with mental health conditions. 
- Theme 3 - People in underrepresented groups, people who are disabled, people with low 
incomes, and others who wish to develop digital skills. 
- Theme 4 - Disadvantaged people of all ages, with a focus on young people aged 8 to 20, local 
emerging artists and local businesses. 
 
Wider beneficiaries include residents of the borough with an improved perception and sense of 
place through an improved social infrastructure offer that is more visible and easier for them to 
access; residents from different backgrounds and with different interests have more 
opportunities to connect and share their gifts and strengths, building social capital and strong 
community bonds; young people and adults with relevant skills for employment; Third Sector 
organisations benefiting from increased capacity enabling improvement to assets and service 
delivery and maximising social value; public sector organisations will eventually see reduced 

Page 30

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 9 of 38 
 

pressure for acute service demands and reduction in failure demand; all sectors including 
private sector will see more a confident, resilient, skilled, local workforce, which in turn will build 
a circular economy and community wealth.  
1f Where will the activities take place?  

Activities will take place across the borough and specific locations will vary by theme and 
activity to best respond to local need as informed by the ‘Barrow Community Renewal Fund 
Evidence Base’ and delivery partner identification of need as set out in the project delivery 
plans which underpin this application: 
- Theme 1 - Whilst the overall programme covers the entire borough of Barrow, the majority of 
projects focus on the specific geographic areas of Barrow Island, Central and Hindpool Wards. 
- Theme 2 – Activities will occur across the borough of Barrow 
- Theme 3 – All activities will be focused in the borough of Barrow, with a focus on Barrow-in-
Furness. 
- Theme 4 – Activities will occur in Barrow, Dalton and the wider borough. 
Activities will take place in various sites and premises as identified by the project delivery plans 
including delivery partner premises and public spaces.  
1g When will the project 
start? 02/08/2021 When will the project 

end? 31/03/2022 

1h Which places (district or unitary areas) will benefit from the activity? 

Local Authority Area  Approximate percentage of activity / 
expenditure 

Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 100% 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 10 of 38 
 

If the project would operate across more than 15 local authority areas, please list them in the 
field below and state the percentage of activity in each area.  
 

 
1i What are the key milestones for the development and implementation of the project? 

Milestone Target Month 

Predelivery preparation tasks undertaken: Values & Behaviour Framework 
completed, Skills Escalator Training developed, Barra Culture engaged on 
innovative ways to capture and display outcomes, electronic system set up 
to monitor and assess activities; monitoring and evaluation plan and 
independent oversight agreed.   

Jun 2021 

Consultants and additional resources recruited.  Evaluation Framework 
completed 

July 2021 

Recruiting of beneficiaries Aug 2021 

Projects launched Sept 2021 

Mid-point review Dec 2021 

Evaluation, spend and all final reports completed and disseminated Mar 2022 

Note the beneficiary journey will differ by project activity and each Theme 
will have its own milestones determined prior to project launch. 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 
Part 2 – Project Impact 

For questions 2a-2d, please describe in 500 words or less per question. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

2a What will be the short and long term benefits of the project on its beneficiaries and the wider 
community?   

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 11 of 38 
 

Figure 6 – Project Logic Model: 

 

Figure 6 outlines the logic to how the project will deliver short and long term benefits. 
 
The Barrow Way commits to putting residents at the heart of all activities led by a coalition of 
statutory partners and local leaders. The approach emphasises sharing of assets so that all 
residents can contribute to society in tangible ways. 
 
The Barrow Way aims to empower Barrow residents with the knowledge, skills and confidence to 
access and benefit from services which are based on need. The short term benefits include 
enhanced community cohesion and empowerment and will drive longer term benefits including 
improved levels of health, wellbeing, employability and skills targeted to residents who are most in 
need of support.  
 
This project will have a longer term impact, creating the right conditions for Barrow to recover more 
quickly from the pandemic and ensure readiness to respond to the launch of Shared Prosperity 
Funding thereby maximising impact and the development of tailored solutions. Community Renewal 
Funding will enable wider delivery and testing of this approach than is otherwise possible, 
supporting the potential for learning and a wider roll out of the Barrow Way.  
 
The objectives of the project are: 
- to pilot the Barrow Way approach and evaluate its potential impact and transferability by end 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 12 of 38 
 

March 2022 
- to embed shared values, behaviours, vision and priorities and data, intelligence and resources 
between all delivery partners to maximise their impact by end March 2022. 
 
The project responds to the following market failures:  
- Information failure – Project partners cannot know the needs and assets of individuals they are 
seeking to support unless mechanisms are in place to support their communication. The Barrow 
Way enables this communication of need and assets. 
- Coordination failure – Coordination failure occurs when desirable activities do not take place as a 
result of multiple actors failing to coordinate plans. Barrow’s residents face many forms of 
deprivation and a multi-agency approach is needed to reduce socio-economic barriers. Therefore, a 
combined project impact will have a disproportionately positive impact on disadvantaged 
communities in Barrow.  
- Positive externalities – Not all social, economic and environmental impacts from the project 
activities will be captured by the direct beneficiaries of the activity. Each activity will maximise the 
ability of other activities to be effective and drive significant wider positive value in Barrow and more 
widely. Evaluation activity will enable identification of wider benefits.  

2b How does the proposal align with local needs and long-term strategic plans for local growth?  

 

 
Figure 7 above summarises the project’s alignment with local growth plans.  
 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 13 of 38 
 

In terms of need, Barrow has the largest concentration of worklessness, people with poor skills and 
health, and poor housing in Cumbria. Economic activity and employment rates are c.8 percentage 
points lower than the national average.  
 
A disproportionately important driver of the high levels of economic inactivity is long term sickness 
(46% of economic inactivity). Barrow ranks 4th worst nationally in terms of health deprivation and 
anxiety levels rose 50% in 2019/20, likely as an effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
A significant number of children in Barrow are affected by deprivation. One in five children aged 0-
15 (20%) are in low-income families. This is the greatest proportion in Cumbria and is increasing. 
Latest data from October 2020 shows that the proportion of school children eligible for Free School 
Meals has increased by 2.5% since 2019 to 20.1%.  
 
There is a substantial demand on social services in Barrow. One in every twenty people provide 
over 20 hours of unpaid care weekly. Community involvement in social services has become more 
critical in the light of significant cuts to Local Authority funding. Barrow’s budget has been reduced 
by 40% between 2010-2020. 
 
Employment in Barrow is strongly reliant on large businesses. BAE Systems and Furness General 
Hospital provide 35% of employment in Barrow. Diversification of the economy will support 
resilience.  
 
Only 32% of the population hold degree level qualifications (vs 43% in England) and 8% have no 
formal qualifications, double the rate in Cumbria. Barrow had a much smaller proportion of pupils 
progressing to higher education in 2019 (13%) than England (35%). Plus, Barrow residents are at 
risk of digital exclusion, which may inhibit their access to employment, education and services.12% 
of Barrow are considered to be ‘e-withdrawn’ and a further 33% classed as ‘passive and 
uncommitted users’.  
 
Barrow has a relatively suppressed enterprising economy. In 2018, there were 0.9 net business 
births per 1,000 working age residents in Barrow, lagging the national rate of 1.2. Self-employment 
rates in Barrow are very low at 7.7% compared to 15.5% in England. 
 
The Creative, Culture and Digital sector in Barrow offers opportunities for job creation. It registers 
strong growth (+25%) but remains a relatively modest part of Barrow’s employment base (3.6%). 
Plus, a third of the UK creative industries workforce are self-employed. This highlights the potential 
for further growth in this sector which tends to be less dependent on large employers.  
 
Barrow faces high town centre vacancy rates (17% - A1 uses vs national average of 11%) and a 
number of these retail premises have been vacant for over 5 years. There is a need to drive vitality 
in the town by diversifying town centre uses, e.g. through creative and cultural activity. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 14 of 38 
 

 
Barrow does not make the most of Cumbria’s visitor economy receiving just 6% of Cumbria’s 
visitors in 2019. It is ranked second in England for the number and quality of its natural landscape 
and assets, but 282nd for how its communities use these. 

2c How does the project support the Government’s Net Zero ambitions or wider environmental 
considerations? (This is not a requirement for employment support proposals) 

The project will deliver improved environmental awareness via skills and culture interventions. 
Social progress is at the heart of the Barrow Way. By making communities greener, safer and 
healthier and enabling people to work together to bring about change in their local area it will create 
better and greener places in Barrow. Through directing support to a range of disadvantaged groups 
to enable them to learn new skills, access employment opportunities and improve living 
circumstances the project will promote greener living by helping people to reduce their 
environmental impact, improve their health, cut waste and save money. For example, by boosting 
Barrow’s cultural offer as set out under Theme 4 and creating a sense of belonging and community 
identity, the project will support a greater sense of community ownership in Barrow and its 
surrounding area. The community mapping exercise under Theme 1 will highlight and encourage 
use of green and blue assets such as green spaces and EV charging points. This will help to 
reduce carbon emissions in the long run. Opportunities to offset climate change through better use 
of green assets are important given Barrow’s relatively high CO2 per capita output of 6.2T 
compared to 5T nationally. The project has strong alignment with the objectives of Barrow Borough 
Council’s Climate Change Action Plan which aims to deliver net zero carbon emissions no later 
than 2037.  

2d How does the project demonstrate innovation in service delivery?  

All project activities have been chosen to pilot innovative approaches to community renewal and 
social progress. There are already strong examples of The Barrow Way working effectively 
currently, but this project provides an opportunity to test this approach on a wider scale and report 
on its transferability. Strong monitoring and evaluation will identify innovative ideas that work and 
how these can be improved and delivered elsewhere. 
 
The Barrow Way is an innovative approach because it begins with recognising and encouraging 
community strengths. The project will gather the assets, skills and gifts which make up local 
neighbourhoods and have been even more prevalent during the last 18 months.  
 
For example, a report by Hartworth in 2020 researching poverty in the UK highlighted Barrow as a 
town where a growing number of people are affected by poverty and disadvantage, increasing 
marginalisation and underfunded services. The report identified how collaborative work with 
communities in Barrow has been an important step in assisting the most deprived communities in 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 15 of 38 
 

the town with the case study of the ‘Help through Crisis’ programme which aims to negotiate 
improved support and services for vulnerable people in crisis. Building capabilities and 
strengthening entitlements of vulnerable individuals and communities through ongoing support and 
provision of services such as counselling or education was shown to improve confidence, mental 
health and lead to positive outcomes for those most in need in Barrow.  
   
The Barrow Way sets out to gather the gifts, skills and assets of Barrow’s residents, by trialling a 
community led approach as a new way of using what is available to benefit everyone. This will also 
encourage families and residents to share their ideas, connect with others and receive support to 
enable them to access training, small amounts of finance and mentoring to grow and develop, thus 
supporting our economy and growing local talent.   
 
For example, Barra Culture’s Creative Ideas project will encourage people who face disadvantage 
to send in their ideas and access support. A local resident who has a history of trauma, mental 
health issues, addiction and crime has put forward her idea of expressing herself through making 
small figurines, something which may well be the catalyst for change in her life and will also benefit 
others. This approach of one person, one step at a time links with the Capabilities Approach and 
our commitment to leaving no one behind, growing local talent and sharing assets and gifts from all. 

2e Which groups will your UK Community Renewal Fund project target?  

Please describe below and complete Annex A – Project Impact Indicators   

Target groups have been identified through identification of need and opportunity in Barrow as 
identified in the Barrow CRF Evidence Base report, with a focus on those people who are most in 
need of support and the organisations who support them, this includes: children, young people and 
families, people in need of mental health and wellbeing support, people living in Barrow's most 
deprived wards and people who are disabled or have special educational needs. Furthermore, 
opportunity sectors such as digital, creative and culture have been identified on the basis of their 
growth potential and their ability to engage people in meaningful activity. The logic model in 2a 
identifies outputs, outcomes and impacts for these target groups.   
 
Target numbers of people targeted in each group set out in Annex A have been estimated by theme 
leads based on delivery leads' assessment of their expected reach and capacity. 
 
 
 
 

2f Please describe how you have considered the equalities impacts of your proposal, the relevant 
affected groups based on protected characteristics, and any measures you propose in response to 
these impacts. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 16 of 38 
 

As accountable body Barrow Borough Council has a duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have due 
regard to the three aims of the general equality duty.  In addition to the 9 protected characteristics, 
the Borough Council also recognises the impact that economic disadvantage can have in terms of 
the three aims of the equality duty. To this end the Borough Council declared a Poverty Emergency 
in October 2020. The underlying ethos and values of the Barrow Way is that no-one is left behind 
due to any limiting factor or protected characteristic. Therefore, this programme will: Remove or 
minimise disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristic; Take steps to meet 
the needs of people from protected groups where these are different from the needs of other 
people; Encourage people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities 
where their participation is disproportionately low. It will also foster good relations and promote 
understanding between people from different backgrounds.                                                                                                                                                                                                
The project delivery partners are proven to have the skills and expertise required to reach out to 
communities, families and individuals that are marginalised.  Partner organisations include those 
representing people with the following protected characteristics: age, disability, race, religion or 
belief and sex.  Many of the projects will target the wards that are recognised through the IMD as 
being amongst the 10% most deprived in England and the Barrow Way has a strong emphasis on 
ensuring that residents that do not have a voice will be targeted as part of the piloting.  
Furthermore, delivery partners across all four themes are adept at targeting and working with 
communities that have individuals and groups within protected characteristics. The Monitoring and 
Evaluation Plan will ensure that beneficiary information is recorded to ensure that the projects are 
equitable and reaching those who are marginalised.  Demographics on gender, religion, ethnicity, 
sexual orientation and disability will be sought and all projects will seek to ensure that hard to reach 
communities are targeted in all work within the wider project. The Mid Term Review will ensure 
progress against these attributes is recorded and mechanisms put in place to ensure good practice 
and lessons learnt inform the remainder of the delivery period.  

2g What UK Community Renewal Fund Outcomes will the project deliver? 

Please describe below and complete Annex A – Project Impact Indicators   

The project will deliver on all but six of the 21 Community Renewal Fund outcomes. The project 
mainly focuses on outcomes which support people into education, training or work. This is 
supported by outcomes which improve the business environment. The projects align with all the 
fund’s priorities of investment in skills, investment for local business, investment in communities and 
place and supporting people into employment. 
 
 
 

2h How have the outcomes been estimated? 

Expected outputs and outcomes are estimated from previous experience of the experienced 
delivery partners, the baseline position for the project, and organisational capacity to deliver in the 

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 17 of 38 
 

timeframes. Each project has a project plan identifying outputs and outcomes that has informed the 
overarching project plan. These are ambitious but realistic. As a pilot programme the outputs and 
outcomes targeted will provide a test of the true potential of activities that can be delivered through 
the evaluation process outlined in Response 6a. 

2i Would you expect to achieve any of these outcomes without UK Community Renewal Fund 
support?   

The Barrow Way is currently being delivered on a smaller scale within the limitations of existing 
resources and showing scope for larger impact if extended. Extending activities which take this 
approach will allow new groups in need to benefit at a faster rate than could be achieved without 
CRF. Plus, there is currently limited capacity to test and refine use of this approach and so CRF will 
allow evaluation of the current impact of activities which take this approach in order to assess its 
potential impact if used more widely. The outputs and impacts identified for this project are 
additional to those currently being delivered on a much smaller scale.  
 
The Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum has been working in this way for the past year and 
there are already clear signs that this approach can lead to significant outcomes, but as the UK 
emerges from the pandemic it will become more difficult to maintain partnerships like BCLRF which 
is currently running off good will. 
 
Similarly, organisations like Love Barrow Families and The Well have gained regional and national 
recognition for the work they do to support families and work in an asset based way.   
 
Barrow has secured £25m Town Deal and many of the capital projects in the deal will act as a 
catalyst to community wealth building and stronger social infrastructure. 
 
These, and other examples would lead to some improvements in outcomes over time.   
 
CRF allows a short, sharp, focused programme to really test out this way of working at scale in a 
way that will escalate and amplify these outcomes, it will build social capital and enable residents, 
neighbourhoods and communities to drive change and embrace the broader transformation that is 
on the horizon.  Many of the projects will help residents build capacity and capability to take full 
advantage of these wider transformation programmes. 

 
 

Part 3 - Funding Package  

3a How much UK Community Renewal Fund investment is sought?   

Please also complete Annex B – Funding Package and Profile 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 18 of 38 
 

The UK Community Renewal Fund investment sought amounts to £1,132,874. 

3b Does the funding package include any match funding? If so, how much? 

When will any funding that is not in place be secured? 

The funding package does not include any match funding.  

3c What will the funding package be spent on? 

Theme 1 – total project costs amount to £476,937 (42% of the funding package), to be spent 
across individual schemes as follows: 
- Community Mapping, £130,000  
- Team around the Community, £35,000  
- Town Centre Hub Sustainability, £25,000  
- Love Barrow Families in Communities, £62,832  
- Community Investment Fund, £170,000  
- Training the Professionals, £54,105  
 
Theme 2 – total project costs amount to £346,760 (31%), to be spent across individual 
projects as follows: 
- DZ/FYWP, £54,873 
- FTG, £18,951  
- FESP/Barrow AFC, £33,820  
- CANDO FM/1, £22,410 
- CANDO FM/2 Tech, £12,420 
- SAFA, £44,000 
- Inspira, £113,628 
- University of Cumbria, £35,000  
- WCT, £11,658 
 
Theme 3 – total project costs amount to £166,637 (15%), to be spent across individual 
projects as follows: 
- BBO Project, £23,623 
- BDDA – Skills Builder (3 elements), £35,000 
- CANDOFM – Digital Media Studio, £16,374 
- Furness Education and Skills Partnership (FESP) – Skills Strategy, £5,000 
- Signal and Film Media – Creative Digital Skills Workshops – Creative Digital Skills 
Workshops, £44,640 
- UoC – Learn Digital Barrow, £42,000 
 
Theme 4 – total project costs amount to £82,540 (7%). This covers: 
- Staff costs (incl. on-costs and associated set-up costs), £36,800 

Page 40

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 19 of 38 
 

- Operational/activity costs, £19,540 
- Contribution to overheads/management fee, £4,150 
- Publicity/marketing, £4,500 
- Capital costs (premises and equipment), £13,500 
- Other (incl. fees, T&S, volunteer costs), £4,050 
 
Programme costs – amount to £60,000 (5%): 
-Programme and Assurance, Barrow BC, £20,000 
-Project management and reporting, £20,000 
-Evaluation, £20,000 

3d How has the overall budget been estimated, what has been done to test that it is accurate, 
how would any unexpected costs be managed?  

The Budget for this programme has been built from the bottom up with each project lead 
identifying individual project costs based on their significant experience in their field of activity 
and other projects they have run previously. Costs have then been amalgamated by theme 
leads and the Borough Council bringing everything together to arrive at the overall 
programme cost.   
 
Prior to submission of the bid a small core working group has also reviewed individual bids 
and costings; challenging where appropriate, to ensure a consistent approach across all 
projects and ensure accuracy in so much as possible.  
 
The Borough Council as accountable body has also included any additional programme 
management costs to ensure overarching delivery, monitoring and evaluation of the 
programme. Funding has also be allocated to each theme lead to carry out project and 
financial management and monitoring, including monthly reporting to the accountable body. 
 
The majority of projects in the programme are scalable (eg community mapping is across 3 
wards but could be reduced to 2 if necessary) meaning that in the event of unforeseen costs 
being incurred, individual projects could be scaled back or refined to ensure management 
within budget whilst still testing out and delivering against their original aims and objectives.   
 
The Community Investment Fund (CIF) element of the programme also provides some 
additional flexibility as if due to unforeseen circumstances something is unable to be delivered 
through the individual project budget, it may be possible to bid into the CIF to test / deliver 
certain aspects (subject to meeting fund criteria). 

 
Part 4 – Project Applicant Experience and Capacity  

Page 41

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 20 of 38 
 

Please limit your responses to each question to 250 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

4a What experience does the organisation have of delivering this type of activity?   

Barrow Borough Council has extensive experience planning and delivering multi-agency 
projects that focus on regeneration and renewal of communities. Over the last two decades 
Barrow Borough Council have successfully delivered numerous regeneration projects that 
have involved working closely with community and statutory services.  Projects that have 
improved the physical, economic and community wealth building opportunities in the Borough 
include:  Working Neighbourhoods Fund, Clusters of Empty Homes, European Regional 
Development Fund projects, Communities for Health, Lottery, Big Lottery, Public Health 
England, Coastal Communities Fund, Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and multi-
year SRB funding of the Heart of Barrow programme.  The current projects include £1.8m Low 
Carbon Barrow and £1m Heritage Action Zone. 
 
Recent collaborative work during the Covid-19 pandemic, which was co-ordinated by the 
Borough Council, has proved we are adept at delivering short-term, multifaceted, collaborative 
projects in partnership with a range of community and statutory organisations.  Nearly 
£400,000 of Covid-specific funding was distributed to local community groups between July 
2020 and March 2021, with projects identified through the Barrow Community Local 
Resilience Form. 
 
As part of our successful Town Deal bid, a £25m programme with seven projects, we have 
adopted Cumbria County Council’s Programme Management Framework which provides us 
with an effective assurance framework that will be used to assist with governance and 
management.  The Borough Council is the lead organisation and has established a project 
management system that ensures that the individual projects, and the organisations that are 
responsible for them, are supported to deliver on time, within scope and within budget. 
 

4b Describe the resources (e.g. staff) the organisation has available now to deliver the 
project? 
The Borough Council’s Chief Executive will be the Senior Responsible Officer for the 
programme, and the coordinator will be the Programme & Assurance Officer responsible for 
the day to day running and delivery of the project. 
 
The Director of Resources will ensure that the Finance Department will have sufficient 
dedicated resources to accurately record the project spend, to maintain the required records 
and maintain budgetary control. The Council’s Purchasing Officer will support the project as 
required and the Council’s Head of Legal and Governance will be involved in any legal 
aspects. 
 
The Director of Resources will establish a “Grants Panel” specifically for the Community 
Investment Fund and ensure that is resourced and able to manage and administer a robust 
application, evaluation and award process. 
 

Page 42

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 21 of 38 
 

Where any internal controls are to be modified, or established around the programme, the 
Internal Audit Department shall be consulted. 
 
The Programme and Assurance Officer will also ensure theme leads are supported to help 
them ensure the milestones are delivered on time and in line with spend and output profiles. 
Each theme lead will have a small amount (0.2-0.3 FTE, depending on complexity) of project 
management support and will be trained to use the Borough Council’s programme and project 
management framework to ensure monthly reporting from all projects up to theme leads and 
all theme leads up to accountable body. 

4c If the organisation will have to recruit staff or appoint contractors what plans are in place to 
manage the risk of delay?  

We will prepare recruitment materials in advance and ensure that our recruitment is timely 
and swift, with support from our HR Department. 
 
We have the ability to second existing staff into new posts should recruitment be delayed and 
have a number of suitable staff who might be available for secondment should the need arise.  
We used such arrangements during the Covid-19 pandemic and feel we have a sufficiently 
agile workforce to enable us to ensure posts are filled in the requisite time. 
 
For the specific work within the Finance Department it may be necessary to source an agency 
worker, or to recruit short term resources, or to backfill an existing post. 
 
The theme leads will ensure full delivery plans are produced as part of pre delivery. This will 
include plans for any resource procurement (staff, secondees, consultants etc).  This will be 
coordinated where possible and all new resource will be recruited/procured before the 
programme go live date. This work will start from mid June.  Contingencies will include 
secondment and redeployment to ensure no project delays.  Again, our multi agency 
partnership approach through the Covid pandemic has proven our ability to mobilise at pace 
and direct resources to where they need to be.   
 
Specific work to procure an evaluation partner will begin in mid June.   
 
 
 
 

4d Describe the systems and processes that will be used to ensure only costs directly related 
to the project will be included in grant claims.   
Barrow Borough Council will be the overall accountable body for this project. Their 
governance framework will be adopted to oversee the implementation and successful 
delivery. This framework is in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements.  Our 
Senior Management Team has extensive experience of managing multi-agency projects 
across the Borough. 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 22 of 38 
 

Our Finance department will ensure that the robust financial controls that we utilise for all our 
activity are used on the project, overseen by the Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer).  
These systems include procurement, approvals, due diligence, payment and reconciliation.  
The main accounting system is Oracle Financials which operates on absolute budgetary 
control.  The Council operates accruals-based accounting, with purchase orders required to 
reserve funding and ensure all commitments are properly approved.  The Council operates 
internal controls such as segregation of duties and authorised signatories, and these systems 
and processes are subject to Internal Audit and External Audit review and testing.  
 
The Borough Council will employ (or second) a Programme and Assurance Officer who will 
work with the theme leads to ensure that there is a robust and transparent system of financial 
management for the project, with reporting and scrutiny on a monthly basis through a 
dedicated core group.  Each theme lead will be expected to report on finance on a monthly 
basis so that spend can be monitored as being within scope and within target timeframes.  
The core group will report into Barrow Borough Council Management Team and the BCLRF at 
their weekly and three-weekly meetings (respectively). 

 
Part 5 – Project Risk Management  
Please limit your responses to each question to 250 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

5a Summarise the key risks to the project in Annex C – Project Risks 

The overarching risks to the project is deliverability. The project elements have been 
challenged around delivery and commitment from partners to ensure they are achievable. It is 
always possible that actual costs are higher than anticipated and again project finances have 
been challenged to ensure they are robust. Where delivery depends upon another party, such 
as a contractor or supplier, the project requirements are identified and early plans for sourcing 
and procurement are being established. The accountable body resource requirements are 
identified, and the Council will assign roles ahead of project commencement. The Council’s 
existing internal controls, systems and processes will be used to maintain accounting records 
and budgetary control.  The Council has established a system of project management with the 
support of Cumbria County Council and this approach will be applied to the project including 
monitoring and reporting.  Each element of the overall programme has considered any health 
and safety concerns and any interdependencies that may have been barriers to delivery. 

5b Describe the process and that will be used to monitor risk.  
The Council will use the Zurich risk assessment matrix and RAG rating system and the 
Programme & Assurance Officer shall maintain a review of the initial project risk assessment 
and flag any movements.  Any concerns shall be raised with the Programme Board and the 
Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum – the severity of the change will determine the 
urgency (i.e. calling an extraordinary meeting or an alert by email).  The Theme Lead will be 
required to submit an improvement/remediation plan.  The plan will be agreed, and 
implementation will be reviewed and signed off. 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 23 of 38 
 

Part 6 – Evaluation 

6a A key objective of the UK Community Renewal Fund is to try new ways of delivering 
activity to businesses and people. It is important that projects are robustly evaluated and that 
learning is shared with others.  
Please limit your responses to around 500 words and describe 

• how the project will be evaluated, in terms of how it was delivered and its impact on 
clients   

• how the findings of the evaluation will be disseminated   

The evaluation design and scope will draw on guidance from HM Treasury’s Magenta book 
and will adopt an approach which is consistent with the requirements of the UKCRF and 
associated guidance.   
 
An external evaluator will be procured, who will be independent of the project and offer 
appropriate evaluation experience. The cost of the evaluation has been estimated at £20k, 
c.2% of the total project budget, in line with UKCRF guidance. 
 
Based on the project focus, scale, timescales and budget, it is expected that the evaluation 
scope will include a process evaluation, theory-based impact evaluation and value for money 
assessment. A theory of change will be used to underpin the evaluation and enable the 
evaluator to analyse project impacts through reviewing and testing the causal chains thought 
to bring about change. 
 
The lead organisation for the delivery of each of the four themes will be responsible for 
monitoring and internal evaluation of their theme. This will include, for example, monthly focus 
groups of residents and multi-agency meetings to measure what is being delivered, keeping a 
record of progress against output and outcome targets and expenditure profile and details of 
project beneficiaries. Barrow Borough Council will be the overall accountable body for this 
project and responsible for overseeing the implementation and successful delivery   
 
At the outset of the commission, the independent evaluator would collate all available and 
relevant background information and data provided by Barrow Borough Council and the 
theme leads (e.g. monitoring data, progress reports, risk registers, project documentation). To 
supplement this, primary collection of qualitative and quantitative data will be undertaken by 
the evaluator. This will include consultations with key stakeholders (delivery, management 
and strategic stakeholders and project beneficiaries) and the evaluator would also be 
expected to consider use of e.g. case studies, focus groups and surveys to collect beneficiary 
feedback. 
 
The scope of the evaluation will cover: 
- Project Context: a review of the appropriateness of the project design, exploring the project’s 
intervention logic, market failure rationale, continued relevance and consistency. 
- Progress Against Targets: an assessment of progress with project implementation in terms 
of performance against expenditure profile, output and outcome targets. 
- Delivery and Management Performance: testing the effectiveness of delivery and 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 24 of 38 
 

management structures and processes, considering challenges experienced, achievements of 
different elements of project delivery and lessons learnt. 
-Outcomes and Impacts: a review of the emerging outcomes, short term and long term 
impacts that have been achieved to date and are expected to materialise in future and 
exploring the mechanisms through which these have been achieved and the extent to which 
they can be attributed to the project. 
-Cost Effectiveness and Value for Money: drawing on the project inputs and impacts achieved 
to derive an assessment of the cost effectiveness and value for money of the Barrow Way. 
 
Given that this project is piloting innovative approach to community renewal, it will be 
important to effectively disseminate the findings of the evaluation. The evaluation will provide 
lessons learnt for Barrow Borough Council, those designing and implementing similar 
interventions, and policy makers. The final evaluation report will be shared with MHCLG and 
key project stakeholders. 

 
Part 7 – Subsidy Control  
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control (or State Aid for 
aid in scope of the in Northern Ireland Protocol) as per UK Government guidance: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-
on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities 
7a Does any aspect of the project involve the provision of subsidies 
(or State Aid)?  
 

No 

7b If yes, briefly explain how the subsidies or state aid are compliant with the UK’s subsidy 
control regime as set out in the guidance. 

 

 
Part 8 - Branding and Publicity  
Guidance on the branding and publicity requirements for the UK Community Renewal Fund is 
set out in the Fund Technical Note for Project Deliverers. 
8a Please confirm that you have read and will comply with all aspects 
of the Fund branding and publicity requirements. 
 

Yes 

 
Data Protection  
 
Please note that the Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (the 
Department) will be a Data Controller for all UK Community Renewal Fund-related Personal 
Data collected with this form and submitted to the Department, and the control and processing 
of Personal Data. 
 
Mayoral Combined Authorities, the Greater London Authority, County Councils or Unitary 
Authorities, have been designated as a ‘Lead Authority’ in Great Britain for the UK Community 
Renewal Fund.  Each Lead Authority has been invited to run a local bidding process and will 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


   Page 25 of 38 
 

be a Data Controller for all UK Community Renewal Fund related Personal Data collected with 
the relevant forms as part of this process, and the control and processing of Personal Data, 
where such applications are not submitted to the Department for consideration.    
 
The Lead Authority (in Great Britain) and the Department will processes all data according to 
the provisions of the Data Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection 
Regulation 2018 (UK GDPR) all applicable laws and regulations relating to processing of 
Personal Data and privacy, including, where necessary, the guidance and codes of practice 
issued by the Information Commissioner and any other relevant data protection regulations 
(together “the Data Protection Legislation (as amended from time to time)”). 
 
As a Processer of UK Community Renewal Fund-related Personal Data your organisation and 
the Lead Authority (when acting in Great Britain) must ensure that such Personal Data is 
processed in a way which complies with the Data Protection Legislation (as amended from 
time to time).  
 
By proceeding to complete and submit this form, you consent that the Lead Authority (in Great 
Britain) and its contractors where relevant, and the Department, and its contractors where 
relevant, may process the Personal Data that it collects from you, and use the information 
provided as part of the application to the Department for funding from the UK Community 
Renewal Fund, as well as in accordance with its privacy policies. For the purposes of 
assessing your bid the Department may need to share your Personal Data with other 
Government departments (such as the Department for Work and Pensions) and departments 
in the Devolved Administrations and by submitting this form you are agreeing to your Personal 
Data being used in this way. 
 
Data Controller, Personal Data, Personal Data and Processor all have the meaning given to 
them in the Data Protection Legislation (as amended from time to time). 
 
You can find more information about how the Department deals with your data here: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-community-renewal-fund-prospectus  

Part 9 - Project Applicant Statement 
I declare that I have the authority to represent the project applicant in making this application.  
I understand that acceptance of this application form by the Lead Authority (in Great Britain) 
or the Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (the Department) does not in 
any way signify that the project is eligible for funding under the UK Community Renewal Fund 
or that any such funding has been approved towards it. 
On behalf of the project applicant and having carried out full and proper inquiry, I confirm to 
the Lead Authority (in Great Britain) and the Department that: 

• the project applicant has the legal authority to carry out the project; and 

• the information provided in this application is accurate. 

I also confirm to the Lead Authority (in Great Britain) and the Department that:  

Page 47

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-community-renewal-fund-prospectus


   Page 26 of 38 
 

I have informed all persons whose personal information I have provided of the details of the 
personal information I have provided to you and of the purposes for which this information will 
be used, and that I have the consent of the individuals concerned to pass this information to 
you for these purposes; 
I consent to the Personal Data submitted with this form being shared as set out in this form 
and in accordance with the Lead Authority’s Privacy Policies (in Great Britain) and the 
Department’s Privacy Policies; 
I shall inform the Lead Authority (for Great Britain projects) if, prior to any UK Community 
Renewal Funding being legally committed to the project applicant, I become aware of any 
further information which might reasonably be considered as material to the Lead Authority or 
the Department in deciding whether to fund the proposal; 
For Northern Ireland projects, I shall inform the Department if, prior to any UK Community 
Renewal Funding being legally committed to the project applicant, I become aware of any 
further information which might reasonably be considered as material to the Department in 
deciding whether to fund the proposal; 
Any match funding that has been set out in part 3 will be in place prior to any award of UK 
Community Renewal Funding; and 
I am aware that if the information given in this application turns out to be false or misleading, 
the Lead Authority (where relevant) or Department may demand the repayment of funding 
and/or terminate a funding agreement pertaining to this proposal. 
I confirm that I am aware that checks can be made to the relevant authorities to verify this 
declaration and any person who knowingly or recklessly makes any false statement for the 
purpose of obtaining grant funding or for the purpose of assisting any person to obtain grant 
funding may be prosecuted. A false or misleading statement will also mean that approval may 
be revoked and any grant may be withheld or recovered with interest. 

I confirm that I understand that if the project applicant commences project activity, or enters in 
to any legally binding contracts or agreements, including the ordering or purchasing of any 
equipment or services before the formal approval of the project, any expenditure is incurred at 
the organisation’s own risk and may render the project ineligible for support.  
 

For and on behalf of the project 
applicant   
Name: Sam Plum  

Position  Chief Executive Date 16/05/2021 
 
 

 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 
    Page 27 of 38 
 

Annex A – Project Impact Indicators 

1a Which groups will your UK Community Renewal Fund project target? 

Main Indicator Indicator Subset Target Group Number 

People 

Economically Inactive  Yes 530 

Unemployed Yes 450 

Employed Yes 300 

Total   1,280 

Businesses 

Small1 No 
 

Medium2 No 
 

Large3 No 
 

Total  
 

Organisations 

Public Yes 12 

Private Yes 33 

Voluntary Sector Yes 47 

Total  92 

1b What types of support will you provide via your UK Community Renewal Fund project? 

Main Indicator Indicator Subset Proposed 
Support Type 

Number 

Direct support 
1 to 1 Yes 160 

1 to many Yes 92 

Financial Support (£s) 
Grant Yes 150,000 

Voucher Yes 8,000 

1c What UK Community Renewal Fund Outcomes will the project deliver (see Technical Note 
for Project Applicants and Deliverers for details)? 

                                                 
1 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/46/section/382 
2 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/46/section/465 
3 Any business that does not qualify as  a small or medium business 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/46/section/382
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/46/section/465


   Page 28 of 38 
 

Outcome Total 

People in education/training following support 652 

People gaining a qualification following 
support 62 

People engaged in job searching following 
support  255 

People in employment, including self-
employment, following support  186 

People engaged in life skills support following 
interventions 438 

Economically inactive individuals engaging 
with benefits system following support 115 

Employment increase in supported 
businesses as a result of support 1 

Jobs safeguarded as a result of support 25 

Organisations engaged in knowledge transfer 
activity following support 65 

Innovation plans developed as a result of 
support 1 

Increase in footfall as a result of support 2,122 

Buildings built or renovated as a result of 
support 1 

Feasibility studies developed as a result of 
support 12 

If the project would deliver more than 10 UK Community Renewal Fund outcomes, please list 
them in the field below and state the total for each outcome.  

 

Additional outcomes have been added to the field above. 
 

Annex B – Funding Package and Profile 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 29 of 38 
 

 Amount  

 
(a) UK Community Renewal Fund 

Requested  £1,132,874 

(b) Other Public Funding  £0 In place  

(c) Private Funding  £0 In place  

(d)Total Project Costs (a+b+c) £1,132,874  

Expenditure Profile. How much will be spent in: 

Jul – Sept 2021 £253,300  

Oct – Dec 2021 £402,092  

Jan – Mar 2022 £477,452  

Total £1,132,874 Must equal (d)  

How much of the budget will be spent on 
capital costs? £24,400 2% 

If the project will deliver under more than one of the UK Community Renewal Fund’s 
investment priorities, please estimate how much will be spent under each theme 

Investment in skills 35% Investment for local businesses 3% 

Investment in communities and place 31% Supporting people into employment 31% 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 
    Page 30 of 38 
 

 
Annex C – Project Risks 
Project Risk Management  
Please be as concise as possible. 

Summarise: 

• the key risks to the delivery and success of the project 

• who is responsible for managing the risk, the Owner 

• the probability of the risk occurring, is it high, medium or low? 

• what would be the impact of the risk, high, medium or low? 

• The mitigation plans in place to manage the risk occurring or to deal with the risk if it does occur 

Risks Description Owner Probability 
(H,M,L) 

Impact 
(H,M,L) Mitigation 

Financial - commitment from 
partners, cost variations. 

Chief 
Executive 
&Programme 
&Assurance 
Officer 

L M When assembling the project partners 
have been challenged regarding 
commitment and in specifically on delivery 
and realistic outcomes.  Effective 
budgetary control is already established 
within the Council's governance and 
financial regulations.  Regular reporting to 
the local resilience forum and project 
monitoring within the Council will provide 
an early indication of an issues and those 
will be addressed. 

Resources - procurement of 
contractors or supplies. 

Project 
Leads and 
Programme 
& Assurance 
Officer 

L M Project Leads are aware of the 
procurement activity that they need to 
undertake to deliver their project.  
Preparatory work will be undertaken in 
order to enable an immediate start 
following funding approval. 

Resources - accountable body 
staffing. 

Chief 
Executive 

L H The required resources will be drawn 
together ahead of the project start date 
and briefed accordingly.  This will be 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



   Page 31 of 38 
 

and Director 
of Resources 

achieved by a mixture of secondment, 
short term recruitment, backfilling any key 
posts that need to be redeployed onto the 
project, or recruitment of short term or 
agency workers.  The Council is 
committed to establish these specific 
resources ahead of commencement.  

Control - internal/partner 
systems and processes. 

Programme 
&Assurance 
Officer and 
Director of 
Resources 

L H The Council's existing internal controls will 
provide the framework required for the 
financial aspects of the accountable body 
responsibility. The Council has material 
from previous acountable body roles that 
can be brought forward and tailored easily.  
The requirements of partner organisations 
will be managed by the Programme & 
Assurance Officer; this includes the 
monthly reports. If necessary the Council's 
Internal Audit Department shall review a 
partner organisation. 

Control - project monitoring and 
management. 

Programme 
& Assurance 
Officer 

L M The reporting requirements shall be clearly 
set out for each partner and the Council's 
project management arrangements 
emphasise project monitoring.  The 
Council's Programme Board shall receive 
monthly reporting for the project.  

Health and safety. Project 
Leads and 
Programme 
& Assurance 
Officer 

L M The Project Leads have considered health 
and safety aspects of their project to 
ensure that the relevant measures will be 
in place for project delivery. 

Interdependencies. Project 
Leads and 
Programme 
& Assurance 
Officer 

L M The Project Leads have considered any 
interdependencies prior to commencement 
to ensure that the delivery deadline is not 
impacted.  

Covid-19 or other National 
Emergency 

Chief 
Executive 
and 

M H Programme & Assurance Officer will work 
with Project Leads to identify opportunities 
to deliver outcomes virtually should there 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



   Page 32 of 38 
 

Programme 
& Assurance 
Officer 

be a local lockdown or national measures 
are reintroduced.  Each Project Lead will 
identify what is achievable virtually and 
how this can be delivered. 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



 
    Page 33 of 38 
 

Annex D – General Guidance for Completing the Application Form 
 
The application must be completed and submitted in Word.  
 
Provide describe the project as simply as possible. Do not use technical terms, explain any 
acronyms. If an assessor cannot understand the project it cannot be assessed against the 
selection criteria and the bid will be rejected.  
 
Some sections of the form contain guidance on the number of words to be used. Additional 
information and text in excess of any limits will not be considered. If possible use fewer words. The 
assessment of bids will be based on the information provided in the Application Form only. Do not 
attach appendices or include links to websites.   
 
The UK Government will not contact bidders to clarify any aspect of submitted bids.   
 
Part 1 - Project Summary 
Full details of the investment priorities are set out in the Prospectus. Bids must demonstrate how 
they align with at least one of the priorities.  
 
If the proposed project intends to deliver under more than one priority, provide an estimate of the 
percentage of funding that will be spent under each priority in Annex B – Funding Package and 
Profile.  
 
1 b – 1 f  Clearly explain what the project intends to do and how it will be done. Be as 
straightforward as possible. If it helps to use diagrams these can be inserted into the application. 
When reviewing your bid consider the following questions from the point of view of someone who 
knows nothing about the organisation or the project:  

• is it clear what the project would do? 

• is it clear who will deliver the activities, who is involved and their roles?  

• is it clear how, when and where the project will be delivered (ie. will the project deliver one to one 
support, one to many events/activities, will it be delivered in a specific location, on business or 
personal premises)? 

• is it clear which individuals and businesses will benefit from the project, is there a focus on 
certain groups of people or types of businesses? 

• is it clear how the project activities reflect the investment priorities? 
 
If the project will work with people or businesses, you can summarise the customer journey using a 
flow chart showing specific project activities.  A logic model or theory of change may also help 
explain your proposal. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 34 of 38 
 

 
1 h. List the local authority areas that may benefit from the project. For projects working with people 
or businesses this should be based on the location of the intended beneficiaries. In Great Britain, 
the relevant local authority area is as set out in the list of places.  
 
A project may be delivered in a single area or cover several areas. A project may operate in all parts 
of a local authority area or focus on particular locations.  
 
1 i. These key milestones must link to the proposed activities and demonstrate that the project is 
deliverable by 31 March. Do not include milestones relating to the approval of the bid. Consider: 

• securing internal approvals for the project or any other funding 

• establishing the project team 

• procurement for external services/suppliers 

• project launch and recruiting beneficiaries  

• key points on the beneficiary journey 
 
Projects will be monitored against these milestones.  
 
Part 2 - Project Impact  
2 a. Consider the impact on the beneficiaries and what the organisations involved in delivering the 
project hope to learn from it.  Summarise the objectives of the project. These should be specific, 
measurable, achievable and time constrained. Set out how the project responds to any market 
failure or delivery inefficiency. 
 
In part 5 explain how performance against these objectives will be evaluated.  
 
2 b. Describe how the project activities and expected impacts contributes to local priorities set out in 
local plans. When lead authorities invite bids, they will identify the key local growth priorities they 
have chosen to focus on.   
 
2 c. This section is not a requirement for bids submitted entirely under the ‘supporting employment’ 
investment priority. Projects under the employment investment priority will not be disadvantaged 
during the assessment and prioritisation of bids because this criterion does not apply. 
 
Explain how the project would contribute to the UK Government’s Net Zero or wider environmental 
considerations. Projects should be based on low or zero carbon best practice, adopt and support 
innovative clean tech where possible and support the growing skills and supply chains in support of 
Net Zero where possible.  
 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966987/List_of_Places__A-Z_.pdf


   Page 35 of 38 
 

As a minimum projects should meet the clean growth principle and must not conflict with the UK’s 
legal commitment to cut greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050.  
 
2 d. Describe how the project demonstrates innovation in service delivery for example:  

• introducing new delivery approaches  

• new integrated approaches across policy themes or  

• collaboration across areas  

• testing existing approaches with different types of beneficiaries 

• new ways of using digital technology to support beneficiaries 
 
Trying new ways of working is riskier and in some cases can be more expensive than established 
ways of working. This will be taken in account during the assessment and prioritisation of bids and 
during the monitoring of successful projects.  
 
2 e. Complete Annex A of the application – Project Impact Indicators.  
 
Provide any further information on the groups or sub-groups of people or businesses the project 
would work with. Describe how the number in each group has been estimated.  
 
2 f. The UK Government is required to consider equalities impacts in line with the Equality Act 2010.  
This questions helps us understand how equality considerations have shaped the design of the 
project and the extent to which groups with protected characteristics have been considered and any 
mitigations proposed. It does not form part of the assessment process. 
 
2 g/h. Complete Annex A of the application. Provide any further information on project outcomes 
and explain how the figures have been estimated. For example, explain the relationships between 
the number of intended final beneficiaries and the outcomes you intend to achieve?  
 
Projects will be required to report on the number and type of beneficiaries supported and the 
outcomes achieved.  
 
2 i. Describe what would happen if the bid to the UK Community Renewal Fund is unsuccessful. 
Would the project proceed on a smaller scale, would the activities be undertaken in a different way 
or at a later date, or would none of the activities occur?  
 
Part 3 - Funding Package 
3 b. Match funding is any funding other than funding from the UK Community Renewal Fund that 
will be used to meet project costs.  This includes from the project applicant or other organisations 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics


   Page 36 of 38 
 

including income from beneficiaries.  Please set out who match funding will come from, where 
relevant. 
 
If the project relies on match funding and it is not secured, explain when it is expected to be secured 
and what the impact would be if it is not secured.  
 
3 c. Summarise the amount that will be spent under the main areas of expenditure. The breakdown 
must be detailed enough to demonstrate that the funding package and budget is appropriate to the 
proposed activities and sufficient to deliver the project.  
 
Examples of the types of headings to use are: 

• staff costs - salaries and contractual benefits, National Insurance and superannuation 
contributions 

• overheads, at 15% of staff costs 

• business travel, subsistence and accommodation 

• fees of contractors and consultants  

• costs of materials or venue hire 

• marketing and publicity costs 

• grants provided to end beneficiaries 

• training participant costs e.g. allowances, travel expenses 

• dependent care costs of training participants 

• small items of equipment 

• evaluation  

• external audit cost (Northern Ireland) 
VAT that cannot be recovered from HMRC as part of the VAT system is eligible for support. 
Estimate the amount of irrecoverable VAT the project would incur in section 3 c.  
 
3 d.  Describe how the figures provided in section 3 c were estimated. For example  

• staff costs of X posts at salaries of £Y pro-rata for Z months of activity 

• grants of between £X and £Y at an average of £Z per grant multiplied by the number of expected 
beneficiaries 

• materials at a cost of £X per beneficiary multiplied by the number of expected beneficiaries 
 
Explain what has been done to test the budget is accurate and how any unexpected costs or cost 
increases would be managed.  
 

Page 58

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 37 of 38 
 

Part 4 – Project Applicant Experience and Capacity 
4 a - c. The deliverability of projects is significant element of the criteria that will be used to assess 
bids to the UK Community Renewal Fund. It is important that we can have confidence that 
organisations that are offered funding are able to implement their projects quickly and effectively.   
 
As the UK Community Renewal Fund is seeking innovation and new ways of working it is not 
essential that applicant organisations have a track record in delivering similar projects.  It is however 
essential that organisations can draw on relevant experience and are able to demonstrate they have 
or will have access to the resources and expertise they need to deliver the project.  
 
If the project will recruit staff or appoint contractors, this should be included in the project 
milestones. Describe the contingency plans that are in place to manage the risk if there are delays.  
 
4 d. Project costs must be based on the actual expenditure incurred in delivering the project, 
evidenced through invoices or other transactions. Describe the process and controls the 
organisation would use to ensure only costs related to the project are included in grant claims.  
 
Describe how the project will manage the risk of the project being defrauded by beneficiaries, 
contractors or members of staff. If the project involves grants, describe how fraud risk will be 
managed at key stages of the grant process. UK Community Renewal Fund projects may be 
selected for audit visits by the lead authority (GB) or the UK Government (GB & NI). 
 

Part 5 – Project Risk Management  
Complete Annex C. This should provide a clear summary of the key risks to delivering the project 
activity and achieving the project’s objectives.  
 
5 b Describe how the risk identified in Annex C will be monitored, what systems will be used, who is 
responsible. 
 
Be realistic, projects rarely run exactly as planned. The project must demonstrate that risks have 
been considered and appropriate plans are in place to keep the project on track.   
 
Part 6– Evaluation  
The project’s evaluation budget must be set out in part 3 c. of the application. This should be 1-2% 
of the amount of UK Community Renewal Fund requested, with a minimum threshold of £10,000. 
 
6 a. Describe how the project will be evaluated. Evaluation should consider both the impact of the 
project and lessons from the process of how the project was delivered.   
 
Evaluators should generally be independent of the project and have appropriate evaluation 
expertise. However, in the case of smaller projects this may not be necessary or cost effective and 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   Page 38 of 38 
 

an evaluation could be undertaken in-house, in which case it should still be undertaken by someone 
with the necessary skills and be subject to independent review.  
 
The approach will vary depending on the scale and nature of each project. However, all evaluations 
are expected to consider the following themes:    

• appropriateness of initial design  

• progress against targets 

• delivery and management 

• outcomes and impact 

• value for money 

• lessons learnt  
 
Describe how the evaluation will be used to inform future activity and how it will be shared with 
others. 
 
Part 7 – Subsidies and/or State Aid where relevant 
7 a/b If the project will provide support to businesses or public / voluntary sector organisations that 
are operating in a commercial way there is potential for this support to represent a subsidy.  
 
If the project would involve the award of subsidies explain how this will be managed in line with the 
UK’s obligations. For example small scale awards can be managed under the threshold for Special 
Drawing Rights (or De Minimis where State Aid applies). 
 
If the project provides support to businesses but you feel this does not constitute a subsidy explain 
why.  
 
Part 8 - Branding and Publicity 
Please confirm that the project will comply with branding and publicity requirements set out in the 
Fund Technical Requirements and Guidance document.  Failure to do so will mean your bid is 
rejected. 
 

Page 60

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Cumbria County Council   

 

 
 

Serving the people of Cumbria 
cumbria.gov.uk      

 

Economy and Infrastructure  Economic Programmes Team  West Cumbria House 

Jubilee Road  Lillyhall  Workington  CA14 4HB 

E: UKCRF@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

  

Alec Proffitt 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2LD 

 
17 June 2021 

By email only 
Dear Alec  
 
UK Community Renewal Fund – Local Prioritisation Outcome 
 

Bid Ref UKCRF011 

Applicant Barrow Borough Council  

Project Name The Barrow Way 

 
Thank you for submitting a bid to the UK Community Renewal Fund Programme in Cumbria.  Your 
bid was considered by the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership’s Investment Panel on 11th June 
2021 and I am pleased to inform you that your bid has been prioritised for submission to 
Government.   
 
Next Steps 
Your bid has been submitted to Government who will now assess your bid in line with the published 
assessment criteria.  We anticipate funding decisions being announced by Government in August 
2021. 
 
Local Assessment Conditions 
The local assessment of your bid has identified the following conditions that will need to be cleared 
before a grant funding agreement could be issued if your bid is approved by Government: 
 

No. Condition Condition Type 

1 Barrow Borough Council to put in place systems to ensure all 
project delivery partners are aware of, and comply with, the 
terms and conditions attached to UKCRF funding agreement.  

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

2 Applicant to confirm that project costs are exclusive of VAT, 
identify the capital costs and provide a breakdown of costs for 
the delivery partners.  

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

3 Applicant to demonstrate why the delivery of the project does not 
involve the giving of a subsidy or in the event it does, explain 
how it will be delivered in line with subsidy control i.e. under 
special drawing rights threshold or how the principles in the UK-
EU TCA are met. 

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



No. Condition Condition Type 

4 Applicant to demonstrate that the grant to them is permissible 
either based on the fact it is not a subsidy or failing that by 
addressing the 6 principles. Due to the high value of the grant 
requested, as stated above, the application should be supported 
by an expert subsidy control opinion. 

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

5 Applicant to provide copies of their insurance certificates to 
confirm they have the following cover: 

• professional indemnity (up to £2m),  

• employer’s liability (up to £5m),  

• public liability (up to £5m) 

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

6 The applicant to produce a Monitoring & Evaluation Plan to 
include all outputs and outcomes, and to include the roles and 
responsibilities of all delivery partners.  The plan will also need to 
include which delivery partner will be responsible for contributing 
to the achievement of outputs and outcomes.  

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

7 Applicant to provide the Terms of Reference for the Grants 
Panel.  Cumbria County Council must be listed as a voting 
member with an option to veto any decision that would impact on 
their role as Accountable Body for the Fund.  

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

8 Applicant to ensure that any grants awarded under the 
Community Investment Fund are in line with the UK CRF 
guidance, in particular fund eligibility and publicity guidance.   

Ongoing condition 

9 Applicant to be reminded that the date from which costs become 
eligible for UK Community Renewal Fund support will be set out 
in the agreement between MHCLG and the relevant Lead 
Authority.  

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

10 Further consideration to the equality impacts of the project is 
required.  Project delivery partners will also need to consider the 
Public Sector Equality Duty when delivering their element of the 
project.   

Prior to Funding 
Agreement 

 
We advise that you start working towards clearing these conditions prior to a funding decision from 
Government.  If your bid is approved, this will speed up the contracting process which in turn will 
allow you to start delivery of your project as soon as possible.  Any work undertaken is at your own 
risk and will not be funded.  
 
Please do not start delivering your project until you have been approved and have accepted 
your grant funding agreement.  
 
If you have any questions or queries please email these to UKCRF@cumbria.gov.uk and a 
member of the team will respond. 
 
Yours faithfully  

 
 
Chris Edwards 
Lead Officer – Economic Programmes 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2

mailto:UKCRF@cumbria.gov.uk


 

PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Council Plan Delivery and Growing Forward 
 

   

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Steph Cordon 

Wards:    All wards 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report provides members with an update on prioritisation and progress 
towards actions set in both the Council Plan 2020-2024 and the Growing 
Forward Executive Committee reports of 8 July 2020 and 23 March 2021.  The 
report sets out priorities for actions over the next 12 months and asks Members 
to agree to amendments to a number of actions within the Council Plan based 
on how our communities experienced the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

 

1. Note and agree the prioritisation of actions that officers will be 

delivering over the next 12 months; 

2. Agree the changes to the wording of Council Plan actions CP1.1.3, 

CP2.3.1, CP3.2.7 and CP3.4.6; 

3. Receive an update on progress against all Council Plan and Growing 

Forward actions in six months’ time. 

4. Agree as part of our Climate Change pledge outlined in the actions to 

contribute £10,000, or £12,000 if held online, towards the cost of 

setting up a 20 person Citizens Jury and procure that directly with 

Shared Future CIC as a specialist and leading provider. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 This report identifies additional actions detailed in the Growing Forward Reports 
from July 2020 and March 2021.  It seeks to formalise the commitments made 
by Council to develop a post-Covid recovery plan and merge these actions with 
those from the Council Plan 2020-24.  Each of the actions has been given a 
unique reference number to help officers and Members track progress.  If the 
action originated from the Council Plan it will carry a CP prefix, whilst those from 
the Growing Forward reports carry a GF prefix. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



 

 
3.2 This is also an opportunity to further develop our service planning and ensure 

that this better reflects the needs of both our Council Plan  and the recovery 
plan, ensuring that the planning that managers within Borough Council 
departments are doing for priorities for the next 12 months are able to deliver 
on what is most pressing and achievable. 

 
3.3 Attached in Appendix 1 is a table that sets out and references each individual 

action from either the Council Plan 2020-24 or Growing Forward, and carries a 
named officer for each action, for ownership.  Details for each of the actions 
have been developed and prioritised for the next 12 months. There are some 
actions that are awaiting the appointment of a new Assistant Director. In 
addition to those there are of course further actions that will be required should 
the Secretary of State make a decision to proceed with local government 
reorganisation which will have a huge impact on Council resources. 

 
3.4 Executive Committee is asked to agree and note the detail in the Activity column 

in the Council Plan and Growing Forward Activity Tracker as attached in 
Appendix 1. 

 
3.5 Five of the actions within the Council Plan have been amended to reflect the 

community need post-Covid-19.  Table 3.5, below, details the actions as they 

were originally drafted and shows the suggested wording of the replacement 

action.  Executive Committee are asked to agree the amended Council Plan 

actions. 

 

Ref Action and recommended new wording 

CP1.1.3 CHANGE FROM: Work with partners to tackle specific health 
issues in the Borough: Mental illness, Substance misuse, Diet 
and exercise 
 
CHANGE TO: Work with partners to tackle specific health 
challenges, which have been exacerbated by the Covid-19 
pandemic, in the Borough: Mental illness, Substance misuse, Diet 
and exercise, and Domestic abuse and social isolation. 
 

CP2.3.1 CHANGE FROM: Climate emergency action plan. 
 
CHANGE TO: Deliver our Climate Change Action Plan to achieve 
our net zero carbon target by 2037 
 

CP3.2.7 CHANGE FROM: Work with major businesses and key partners 
to improve commercial awareness and take advantage of new 
opportunities 
 
CHANGE TO: Work with major businesses, key partners and 
community groups to improve commercial awareness and take 
advantage of new opportunities, including building wealth within 
our communities 

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



 

CP3.4.6 CHANGE FROM: Adopt the principles of community wellbeing to 
ensure all our communities benefit 
 
CHANGE TO: Adopt the principles of community wellbeing to 
ensure all our communities benefit and will fulfil our role as an 
Anchor Institution  

Table 3.5 Suggested changes to the wording of actions in the Council Plan 
2020-24 

 
3.6 The Council’s performance management arrangements outline the approach 

taken to recovery planning and service performance for this year. The 
Executive Committee and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will receive a 
monitoring report showing progress against priority actions and level of service 
delivery every six months. 

 

3.7 Action CP 2.3.1 relates to the delivery of the climate emergency action plan. 

The aim of the Climate Change Policy 2020-2025 for the Borough of Barrow 

in Furness is to reach net zero no later than 2037. To achieve this we said, in 

Objective 6, we will increase public awareness around climate change.  To 

enable us to achieve this objective it is proposed to run a Citizens Jury to 

engage with a cross section of our residents. This will be delivered in 

partnership with Shared Futures and a financial contribution of £10,000 is 

requested for an in-person jury. However, should COVID restrictions require 

the jury to be held online, the financial contribution would increase to £12,000. 

The remainder of the cost is funded from a National Lottery bid through the 

Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership.  

3.8 Members are asked to consider and agree the recommendations as set out in 

2 of the report. 

 
4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation with Barrow Community Resilience Forum (BCLRF) and key 
Borough Council Officers 
 
5.0 Alternative Options  

5.1 Alternative options may be considered but the ones put forward within the report 
best support the Council’s priorities and objectives for moving forward. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The content of this report is relevant to delivering on all Council Plan priorities. 
 
7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The financial contribution towards the Citizens’ Jury of £10,000, or £12,000 if 

held online, will be met from the Transformation Reserve.  This is a direct award 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



 

to Shared Future CIC as a specialist and leading provider of Citizens’ Juries.  

Any officer time required will be met from existing resources. 

 

Legal  

7.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes/No – If yes, provide 
summary details, if no confirm that the report has no direct Equality and 
Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Capacity to deliver   . 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

   

 

Contact Officers  

Alec Proffitt, Policy and Engagement Officer 

aproffitt@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Council Plan and Growing Forward Activity Tracker – 12 month 

activity from July 2021 to 2022 

2   

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 9

mailto:aproffitt@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of 

Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1. Executive 

Cttee report 

8/7/20 

Growing 

Forward 

report. 

 

2. Executive 

Cttee report 

23/3/21  

Growing 

forward 

update 

 

3. Barrow 

Borough 

Council’s 

Climate 

Change 

Policy 2020-

2025 

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g451/Public%20reports%20pack%2008th-

Jul-2020%2014.00%20Executive%20Committee.pdf?T=10 

 

 

 

 

 

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=560&Ver=4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/public-protection-services/environmental-

protection/climate-change/ 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 9

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g451/Public%20reports%20pack%2008th-Jul-2020%2014.00%20Executive%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g451/Public%20reports%20pack%2008th-Jul-2020%2014.00%20Executive%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=560&Ver=4
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/public-protection-services/environmental-protection/climate-change/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/public-protection-services/environmental-protection/climate-change/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 9



Council Plan and Growing Forward Activity Tracker – 12 month activity from July 2021 to July 2022: 

Key: 

CP Council Plan Action 

GF Growing Forward Action 

 People Council Plan Outcomes 

 Place Council Plan Outcomes 

 Prosperity Council Plan Outcomes 

 Our Council Growing Forward Outcomes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig 1 – The Barrow Way – Borough Council’s Covid-19 Recovery Model 

 

People 

More of our residents are living well for longer. 

CP1.1.1 Work with health and care system to develop prevention and 
early intervention plans to reduce health inequalities. 
 

Chief Executive 
 
Assistant Director of 
People and 
Communities 
 

Work through the Bay Health and Care Partnership 
leadership team to deliver a coordinated approach to 
tackling health inequalities. 
 
Ensure the Population Health Strategic Group is 
continuing to focus on inequalities within the 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Borough.  Including focused funding and 
commissioning decisions 
 
Contribute to the Health Inequalities Commission 
being established by the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Integrated Care System and ensure that local 
voices are heard as part of the commission. 
 
Ensure local government reform leads to better 
system integration. 
 
Reset Health and Wellbeing Partnership and influence 
Borough action plan to ensure specific health 
inequality issues in our Borough are addressed in a 
coordinated way.  
 
Ensure a coordinated approach to Population Health 
funding in the borough to tackle inequalities 
 

CP1.1.2 Use our place leadership role to drive health and well-being 
forums and partnerships to ensure they get the best results 
for our residents. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Reset Health and Wellbeing Partnership and influence 
Borough action plan to ensure specific health 
inequality issues in our Borough are addressed in a 
coordinated way.  
 
Co-chair Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum 
to ensure that health and well being is a key strand of 
recovery work. 
 
Deliver Community Renewal Fund Barrow Way 
Project should bid be successful.  Work with HWMP, 
Adult & Young People Mental Health Forum, 
Population health team to identify funding for 
projects should bid be unsuccessful. 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 

CP1.1.3 CHANGE FROM: Work with partners to tackle specific health 
issues in the Borough: Mental illness, Substance misuse, Diet 
and exercise 
CHANGE TO: Work with partners to tackle specific health 
challenges, which have been exacerbated by the Covid-19 
pandemic, in the Borough: Mental illness, Substance misuse, 
Diet and exercise and Domestic abuse 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Reset Health and Wellbeing Partnership and influence 
Borough action plan to ensure specific health 
inequality issues in our Borough are addressed in a 
coordinated way.  
 
Co-chair Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum 
to ensure that health and well being is a key strand of 
recovery work. 
 
Deliver Community Renewal Fund Barrow Way 
Project should bid be successful.  Work with HWMP, 
Adult & Young People Mental Health Forum, 
Population health team to identify funding for 
projects should bid be unsuccessful. 
 

GF1.1.1 Reset the Health and Wellbeing Partnership, establishing an 
action plan to identify ways in which health inequalities can be 
tackled effectively and collaboratively 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 
 
 

Now incorporated into actions above to avoid 
duplication. 
 
 

GF1.1.2 Utilise the County Local Resilience Forum Health Protection 
Board and local outbreak control system to inform our health 
and wellbeing priorities whilst being reactive to any local 
outbreaks within the Borough, supporting residents and 
communities in their resilience 

Public Protection 
Manager/Policy and 
Engagement Officer 
 
 

Continue to support countywide structures to 
manage outbreaks and support our residents.  
 
Map internal H&WB resource and opportunity 
between Policy & Engagement and Public Protection 
strands to ensure that MDTs and agendas are shared, 
maximising resource. 
 

GF1.1.3 Establish a process, such as a  Poverty Truth Commission 
(PTC), to identify and remediate financial inequalities with 
particular reference to the existing vulnerable residents and 
the potential for a large cohort of newly vulnerable residents, 
due to secondary impacts of the outbreak 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Recruit a PTC co-ordinator to deliver the PCT 
 
Plan co-ordination of PTC 
 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Identify and engage Community, Civic and Business  
Commissioners 
 

 

People 

More of our residents are making healthy lifestyle choices. 

CP1.2.1 Encourage greater use of leisure facilities including parks, 
woodlands, beaches and open spaces including participation 
in, park run/ Junior Park run/ active Barrow mums. Especially 
for our least active residents. 

Interim Streetcare 
Manager and 
Grounds 
Maintenance 
Manager 

Encourage new fitness events in borough open 
spaces e.g. Park Play)  
 
Support existing fitness events (Park run/junior park 
run). 
 
Support and encourage new users to Parks & Open 
spaces through bowling. 
 
Continue to develop and enhance wildlife areas in 
Parks & Open spaces to encourage a wider audience. 
 
Continue to maintain clean, well-managed, 
welcoming green spaces throughout the borough. 
 
Develop a Cycle for All scheme at Barrow Park. 
 

CP1.2.2 Work with our leisure provider to do more to support our 
communities to make healthier choices 

Assistant Director 
People and 
Communities 

Deliver a clear, consistent service specification and 
monitor progress against it 
 

CP1.2.3 Promote local walks/ activities e.g. walk for health/ cycle 
events through social media. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer / 
Communications 
Lead  

Work with County Council Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan and Town Deal Cycling and 
Walking infrastructure to deliver communications 
and engagement on local routes 

CP1.2.4 Work with the Bay Health and Care Partnership to deliver 
Health Priorities. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Implement Anchor Institution Collaborative 
methodology and collect data against priorities. 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Map and resource health and well-being Multi-
Disciplinary Teams and NHS funding opportunities 

CP1.2.5 Provide a range of facilities and opportunities to encourage 
participation in sport. 

Director of People & 
Place  
Assistant Director 
People and 
Communities 

Continue to commission Park Leisure Centre offer 
and manage Borough-owned sports facilities. 

Our communities are strong, confident and actively engaged in shaping their future. 

CP1.3.1 Celebrate the achievements and successes of our communities 
through publically raising awareness of the great things they 
do. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer /  
Communications 
Lead 

Continue to utilise the #BrilliantBarrow social media 
channels, working with the town deal Engagement 
and Communications group, as well as the Love 
Barrow Coalition Engagement Framework, to share 
positive community achievements. 
 
Work with Love Barrow Coalition and Love Barrow 
Families to relaunch the Love Barrow Awards, with 
support from private sector and local employers. 
 

CP1.3.2 Provide support for Voluntary Community Services by 
involving, engaging and empowering them to be at the heart 
of our neighbourhoods. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer/AD People or 
Community wealth 
building? 

Implement Anchor Institution Collaborative 
methodology and collect data against priorities. 
 
Co-chair Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum 
to ensure that the voluntary, community and faith 
sectors have a recognised partnership to engage with 
commissioners 
 
Work with Love Barrow Coalition to ensure the 
Barrow Way is progressed 
 
Work with third sector and public sector partners to 
hold a charities conference to ensure better co-
production of services. 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 

GF1.3.1 We will work with and through the Barrow Community Local 
Resilience Forum to develop and agree a set of shared values 
and behaviours and a shared vision and priorities.  This will 
ensure community-led decision making that uses shared data 
and intelligence to focus collective resources on the best 
course of actions to enable our residents to thrive 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

 
Implement the shared values, behaviours and 
principles that underpinned the Barrow Way 
Community Renewal Fund bid. 

People will feel safe where they live. 

CP1.4.1 Actively lead the South Cumbria Community Safety 
Partnership and ensure actions to improve safety in barrow 
are delivered. 

Director of People & 
Place / Policy & 
Engagement Officer 

Build further community safety resource through 
restructure. 
 
Support chair of Community Safety Partnership by 
administering the South Cumbria Community Safety 
Partnership meetings and actions. 
 
Lead on reshaping the Local Focus Hub, supporting 
the Police to ensure it is collaborative and delivers. 
 
Deliver Safer Streets 3 Fund bid with partners if 
successful to make women feel safer in public spaces. 
 
Use Local Focus Hub to tackle spike in Anti Social 
Behaviour and Hate Crime. 
 

CP1.4.2 Work with partners to protect our most vulnerable residents 
by: 

 Tackling homelessness, 

 Delivering Disabled Facilities Grants, 

 Being Corporate parents, 

 Supporting people with special educational needs and 
disabilities, 

 Contributing to the Cumbria Safeguarding Adults and 
Children and Young People Boards. 

Assistant Director 
People and 
Communities 

Implementation of Housing First model. 
 
Provision of Women’s Support and Accommodation 
Service for vulnerable women and single women 
experiencing domestic abuse. 
 
Delivering Disabled Facilities Grants and ensuring that 
the scheme is promoted to encourage take up. 
 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Develop a Corporate Parenting Action Plan for the 
Council. 
 
Deliver further safeguarding training to staff and 
members.  Recruit Safeguarding Champions and 
participate in safeguarding reviews if needed. 
 

CP1.4.3 Work closely with voluntary community organisations to 
understand key opportunities and challenges within our 
communities and the interventions that may help to overcome 
these. 

Policy and 
Engagement Officer 

Implement Love Barrow Coalition’s Engagement 
Framework to ensure that community voices are 
shared vertically and horizontally through the Barrow 
Way.  Link up four partnership bodies to ensure that 
intelligence is shared and that there is collaborative 
working. 
 
Map internal Health &Well Being resource and 
opportunity between Policy & Engagement and 
Public Protection strands to ensure that Multi-
Disciplinary Teams and agendas are shared, 
maximising resource. 
 
Co-chair Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum 
to ensure that joining up of sectors and voices. 
 

CP1.4.4 Seek to secure new investment that can support the 
empowerment of our communities, in particular those within 
the most deprived parts of the Borough. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Work with third sector to fund projects within 
and without the Community Renewal Fund 2021-
22 bid. 
 
Use the Furness Revealed Report to approach 
funders and support community and third sector 
colleagues in making bids where necessary. 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Co-ordinate and collaborate funding bids 
through Barrow Community Local Resilience 
Forum. 
 

CP1.4.5 Build community resilience through increasing participation in 
local activities and decision making and enable residents to 
influence and contribute to service delivery. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Start Poverty Truth Commission in summer 2021. 
 
Put Love Barrow Coalition Engagement 
Framework on the agenda of four decision 
making partnerships. 
 
Refresh and focus Barrow Community Local 
Resilience Forum. 
 

GF1.4.1 Ensure our residents are as safe as they can be, and work with 
them and partners to build back trust and cohesion within and 
between communities and agencies. 
 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provide channels of communication and engagement 
with residents. 
 
Actively participate in community cohesion work as 
part of the Community Safety Partnership 
 
Work with Locality Focus Hub to address local issues 
and ensure residents’ concerns and issues are 
addressed. 
 
Support the NHS to address vaccine hesitancy and 
encourage take up in the Borough 
 
Develop and introduce a new community safety team 
that will focus on neighbourhood management and 
community reassurance.   
 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Public Protection 
Manager 
 

Continue to support outbreak management and 
ongoing work to minimise and mitigate the impact of 
covid 19. 
 

GF1.4.2 We will increase our internal resource to support community 
safety activity 

Director of People & 
Places 

Use restructure to build community safety resource. 
 

GF1.4.3 We will aim to work through the BCLRF with partners, schools 
and families to develop a support programme for children and 
families over the summer. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Delivered. 

 

 

Place 

Barrow Borough has a diverse housing offer, where everyone can expect a decent home, they can afford to live in 

CP2.1.1 Deliver the Local Plan for developing housing sites 
throughout the Borough 

Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 
Strategic Asset 
Manager 
Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 

Pro-actively market key regeneration opportunities.  
 
Refresh the housing needs assessment in the Local 
Plan and bring forward housing sites with affordable 
housing elements and attract more people to stay 
and live in Barrow 
 
Develop an affordable housing policy.  
 
Promote through Cumbria choice-based lettings. 
 
Develop an Infrastructure Delivery Plan for developer 
contributions. 
 
Undertake a gypsy and traveller accommodation 
needs assessment. 
 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



CP2.1.2 Prepare a Housing Strategy to determine priorities and 
actions needed to improve the housing offer 

Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Work with Cumbria Housing Group and key partners 
locally to develop the strategy for Barrow Borough. 
 

CP2.1.3 Tackle the number of empty homes  Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Develop internal approach to empty homes and 
define the capacity to enable us this issue to be 
addressed.   
 

CP2.1.4 Improve priority housing renewal areas Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Develop funding proposal for Town Deal for Barrow 
Island and Rawlinson Street.  Seek future funding 
opportunities for other areas.   
 

CP2.1.5 Encourage the development of supported specialist housing 
in the Borough 

Assistant Director – 
People and 
Communities  
Revenue and Benefits 
Manager 
Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Produce supported housing policy. 
 
Develop accommodation for Housing First model 
Explore extra care housing site opportunities with 
partners and developers.  
 

CP2.1.6 Ensure that all council owned housing retains the Decent 
Homes Standard 

Housing Asset 
Manager 

Develop Asset Management Plans for delivery.  
 

CP2.1.7 Work with key partners to deliver transformative 
development at Marina Village. 

Director People and 
Place 
Strategic Asset 
Manager 
Private Sector Housing 
Team 

Maximise funding opportunities.  Promote and 
market the site to developers. 
 
Complete Full Business Case for Town Deal. 
 
Deliver funded elements for Get Building Fund 
including submitting for planning permission. 
 

 

Place 

Our neighbourhoods are clean, welcoming and attractive. 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



CP2.2.1 Work with residents to foster positive attitudes to 
maintaining cleanliness 

Assistant Director – 
Place and Climate 
Change 
Interim Streetcars and 
Grounds Maintenance 
Manager 
 

Continue public awareness campaigns and activities 
alongside the relevant policies to increase recycling 
and change resident perceptions and behaviour. 

CP2.2.2 Work with our contractor to deliver effective street 
cleansing, waste, refuse and recycling and grounds 
maintenance services.   

Director People and 
Place. 
Assistant Director 
_Place and Climate 
Change 
Interim Streetcare and 
GM Manager 
 

Effectively contract manage existing services against 
service specifications.   

CP2.2.3 Be tough on those who blight our neighbourhoods with fly 
tipping, litter, dog fouling through robust approach to 
enforcement 

Assistant Directors – 
Place and Climate 
Change, People and 
Communities.  
 
 

Develop overall corporate enforcement plan for all 
hotspots including waste, planning enforcement, 
landlord licensing and fly tipping. 
 
Develop and introduce a new community safety team 
that will focus on neighbourhood management and 
community reassurance.  ( 
 

CP2.2.4 Work closely with representatives from the Borough’s towns 
and villages to build community pride and engagement.   

Assistant Director – 
People and 
Communities 

Work with Parish, Town Councils, community 
organisations to tackle antisocial behaviour and other 
visible issues providing reassurance in areas where 
public concerns are highest using the Local Focus 
Hub. 
 

GF2.2.1 Plan for future service delivery of major contracts Director People and 
Place.  Assistant 
Director – Place and 
Climate Change 

Contribute towards new Cumbria Waste and 
Resources Strategy. 
 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Undertake commissioning process to determine new 
service delivery for GM and waste collection, refuse 
and recycling taking into consideration any possible 
LGR outcomes.   
 

 

Place 

Our neighbourhoods are clean, welcoming and attractive. 

CP2.3.1 CHANGE FROM: Climate emergency action plan. 
 
CHANGE TO: Deliver our Climate Change Action Plan to 
achieve our net zero carbon target by 2037 
 

Assistant Director – 
Place and Climate 
Change 
Public Protection 
Manager 

Work with Zero Carbon Partnership to deliver a 
Citizens Jury for Barrow. 
 
Deliver Low Carbon Barrow projects with capital 
spend in first year.  To include electric vehicle 
charging points and lease cars, improvements to 
public buildings, small grants programme and public 
housing programme.  
 

CP2.3.2 Enhanced greener spaces, public parks and beaches Assistant Director – 
Place and Climate 
Change  
Interim Streetcare and 
Ground Maintenance 
Manager 

Develop future management plan for long term 
future of Piel Island. Include measures through Low 
Carbon Barrow to make it an eco-destination. 
 
Undertake an audit of green spaces to utilise them 
for community usage.  
 
To continue to work with Love my Beach.  
Work with Cumbria County Council, woodland Trust, 
Rotary Club to provide a programme of tree planting 
and footpath improvements.   
 

CP2.3.3 Reduce our use of natural resources through reduction, 
recycling and reuse. 

Interim Streetcare and 
Ground Maintenance 
Manager 

Continue to improve and deliver recycling and waste 
reduction services. 
 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



CP2.3.4 Work with partners to raise awareness of natural assets and 
celebrate them 

Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 
 
Chief Executive/Policy 
and Engagement 
Officer 
 

Submit funding opportunities to support natural 
assets or support partners with initiatives such as 
Cumbrian Coastal Forest. 
 
Deliver the Town Deal Earnse Bay outdoor centre in 
partnership with County Council, Eden Project and 
Natural England. 

 

Place 

Our Borough is seen as a destination of choice for leisure, culture and sport. 

CP2.4.1 Work with the Business Improvement District to continue 
promoting and improving the town 

Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 
Forum Manager 
Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Liaise with the Barrow Investment Dirstrict about the 
implementation of their new and existing Business 
Plan.  Seek opportunities for collaboration for the 
benefit of local businesses.   

CP2.4.2 Deliver destination marketing and place development with 
Cumbria Tourism.   

Forum Manager  
Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 

Develop place development full business case for 
Town Deal project. 
 
Work with partners to develop a programme of 
events for the Borough. 
 
Create a co-ordinated and streamlined events 
management process for the council.   
 

CP2.4.3 Work with Sport England and other partners to develop and 
enhance availability and access to sport 

Director People and 
Place 
Assistant Director – 
People and 
Communities 

Develop Sports and Recreation strategy and Playing 
Pitches Strategy 
 
Explore funding opportunities for 3G and 4G pitches.  

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Undertake a feasibility study for a mixed-use 
stadium. 
 

CP2.4.4 Work with the Business Improvement District to continue 
promoting and improving the town 

Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 
Forum Manager 
Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Liaise with the Barrow Investment District about the 
implementation of their new and existing Business 
Plan.  Seek opportunities for collaboration for the 
benefit of local businesses.   

GF2.4.1 We will work with the Forum, Dock Museum and  our 
Leisure provider to provide new experiences for our 
residents and visitors including a revised café offer in the 
Forum, exercise classes in Barrow Park and gearing up to 
deliver the National Lottery funded Shipyard Town project. 
 

Director of People & 
Place 
ADs Place and climate 
change and 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Deliver the place project of the Town Deal. 
 
Work with Barra Culture to create a range of cultural 
experiences for residents and visitors 
 
Work with authorities around the Bay to deliver the 
cultural compact 
 
Further promote Parkplay and other activity in 
Barrow Park 
 
Deliver the improvements to the Forum and Dock 
museum through various funding streams.  This will 
include the development of the Forum as a town 
centre hub for creative and cultural activity 
 

 

Place 

Vibrant town centres where people want to visit. 

CP2.5.1 Deliver key improvements to the town centre for the benefit 
of residents, workers and visitors 

Assistant Directors – 
Place and Climate 
Change and 

Produce a Town Centre Supplementary Planning 
Guidance to shape the town. 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Community wealth 
building 

Implement the Welcome Back Fund public realm 
improvements.   
 
Partner with Cumbria Tourism through Welcome 
Back Funding to bring visitors into the town centre. 
 

CP2.5.2 Transform the experience of Barrow as a retail and service 
destination for residents, visitors and businesses by 
facilitating a diversity of uses, enhance the public realm and 
increase accessibility 

Assistant Directors– 
Community Wealth 
Building and Place and 
Climate Change 

If Levelling up Fund is successful, transform the 
market hall and Forum uses.  Implement new public 
realm improvements and accessibility improvements 
in the town centre.   
 
Implement Heritage Action Zone programme to 
improve heritage offer in the town.   
 
Through Towns Fund work with University of 
Cumbria, BAE and Furness College to develop a full 
business case for a new Learning quarter in the town. 
 

CP2.5.3 
Improvement to infrastructure designed to achieve the safe 
and convenient movement of vehicles and pedestrians to 
and within the town centre. 

Assistant Directors– 
Community Wealth 
Building and Place and 
Climate Change 

 

GF2.5.1 Using the opportunity afforded by a “fresh start” for our 
town centre retail areas on reopening there will be a 
thorough and holistic review of the street-scene and town 
centre offer.  Working with Barrow BID we will look at how 
we can improve the cleanliness and aesthetics of our town 
centres and encourage the growth of “café culture” that 
both satisfies relevant legislation but also provides business 
development opportunity and a more vibrant atmosphere 
within our retail areas 

 This will be delivered through CP2.4.4 

 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Prosperity 

Barrow Borough will have a strategic role within Cumbria and Morecambe Bay 

CP3.1.1 Engage with districts and Cumbria Local Enterprise 
Partnership to realise opportunities surrounding our growth 
deal proposal as part of Morecambe Bay and Cumbria 

Chief Executive and 
Director People and 
Place 

Actively participate in economic governance 
structures to get the best for Barrow such as Cumbria 
Local Enterprise Partnership, Cumbria Leaders Board. 
 
Participate in Morecambe Bay Cultural Compact. 
 
Continue to push for the Bay Prosperity and 
Resilience Strategy to secure growth deal funding   
 

CP3.1.2 Enhance the reputation of Barrow as a key sub-regional 
centre for the South of Cumbria. 

Director People and 
Place/Assistant 
Director – Community 
Wealth Building 

Develop an economic prospectus for the Borough 
which sets out the opportunities.  

CP3.1.3 Actively pursue opportunities to promote the Borough 
throughout the region, Northern Powerhouse and beyond 

Director People and 
Place/ Assistant 
Director – Community 
Wealth Building 

Work with the Brilliant Barrow Board to develop the 
long-term economic strategy for Barrow with key 
partners such as BAE to sell the benefits of being part 
of the supply chain. 
 
Develop a clean energy prospectus with the Cumbria 
Local Enterprise Partnership for Barrow which 
focusses on huge new opportunities to capitalise on 
such as hydrogen. 
 

CP3.1.4 Deliver the employment and housing sites identified through 
the Local Plan 

Assistant Directors 
Community Wealth 
Building and Place and 
Climate Change, 
Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager. 

Promote these sites for investment that will deliver 
inclusive growth and benefit our residents.   
 
Enable new anchor institutions such as the new 
University of Cumbria base in Barrow and build 
partnerships with them to maximise opportunities in 
Barrow.  Produce design guides for improving the 
built environment, especially Marina Village.   

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



CP3.1.5 Undertake a full review of assets, capital and resources to 
ensure they are used to meet strategic objectives 

Strategic Asset 
Manager 

Produce a Strategic Asset Management Plan for all 
council owned assets.   
 
Produce a land disposal strategy which will lead and 
shape future investment in council owned sites.   
 

CP3.1.7 Create conditions for entrepreneurs, small and medium 
sized enterprises to start up and grow 

Strategic Asset 
Manager 
Market Supervisor 
Assistant Director 
Place and Climate 
Change 
 

Continue to focus on providing spaces for businesses 
and co-working opportunities at Waterfront Business 
Centre, Market Hall and Phoenix Business Centre. 
 
Develop and create new opportunities for people to 
start up through Towns Fund Business Support offer 
and embed within new community hub models. 
 

GF3.1.1 Support Covid 19 economic recovery measures.   Director of Resources 
and Public Protection 
Manager 

Continue to administer government business 
recovery grants and provide advice and assistance to 
businesses helping with compliance, interpreting 
legislation and when necessary, taking enforcement 
action.   
 

 

Prosperity 

Barrow is a well-connected Borough with improved road, port, rail and digital infrastructure. 

CP3.2.1 Engage proactively with partners to secure investment and 
improved connectivity 

Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building 

Work with Cumbria County Council to lobby for 
funding for highway and key gateway improvement. 
 
Work with rail partners for improvements to rail 
services to and from Barrow.   
 

CP3.2.2 Continue to campaign to increase access to superfast 
broadband 

Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 

Lobby central government and key partners.  
Participate in CLEPs digital strategy work and 
promote digital inclusion for Barrow residents.   

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



CP3.2.3 Promote more sustainable modes of transport  Regeneration and 
Planning Policy 
Manager 

Influence funding for walking and cycling 
improvements and ensure consultation and 
engagement with residents and businesses is 
inclusive.   
 

GF3.2.1 The role of our anchor institutions in supporting and creating 
community wealth and contributing to a prosperous and fair 
Borough will be explored and development further. 

Policy & Engagement 
Officer 

Implement Anchor Institution Collaborative 
methodology and collect data against priorities. 
Work with other anchor institutions to encourage 
them to participate. 
 

 

Prosperity 

Barrow Borough residents have the skills, aspirations and opportunities to realise their full potential 

CP3.3.1 Work with partners to ensure targeted programmes address 
the skills gaps of young people and raise their aspirations 

Assistant Directors – 
Community Wealth 
Building and People 
and Communities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy and 
Engagement Officer 

Emergence of the green economy is source of vital 
growth for Barrow and need to develop a suitably 
skilled workforce to enable this.   
 
Support the development of the Town Deal Learning 
Quarter project to ensure local young people fully 
benefit from its development and work with both the 
University of Cumbria and Furness College as key 
anchor institutions. 
 
Work with FESP to develop a community skills 
framework 
 

CP3.3.2 Explore the opportunities for expanding an apprenticeship 
programme within the Council 

Assistant Director – 
Transformation 
HR Manager 

Work with Council departments to consider how they 
can use apprentices to meet skill gaps and promote 
leadership development and progression, especially 
as a Corporate Parent to support care leavers.   
 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



CP3.3.3 Adopt the principles of community wellbeing to ensure all 
our communities benefit and will fulfil our role as an Anchor 
Institution by more consistently: 
1. Widening access to work 
2. Purchasing and commissioning for social benefit 
3. Using buildings and spaces to support communities 
4. Reducing environmental impact 
5. Working closely with local partners 
6. Reducing inequalities 

Assistant Director – 
Community Wealth 
Building, Assistant 
Director – People & 
Communities, Head of 
Legal and 
Governance, 
Purchasing Officer 

Produce a Social Value Policy for the Council which 
ensures that wider benefits for the community are 
derived from those winning contracts from the 
Council.   
 

 

Our Council 

Growing Forwards and Recovery 

GF4.1.1 Development of an Organisational Development Strategy and 
Plan 

Director of Resources 
Assistant Director Transformation 

Complete values and behaviours roll 
out to staff. 
 
Develop and deliver training 
programme aligned to values and 
behaviours. 
 
Produce a flexible working policy 
and process. 
 
Commence restructure starting with 
Assistant Directors. 
 
Review the performance appraisal 
scheme and other HR policies to 
ensure those remain relevant. 
Consider establishing a job 
evaluation scheme. 
 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



GF4.1.2 Enhance internal communication channels so that staff are fully 
engaged and informed 

Chief Executive 
Assistant Director Transformation 

Recruit internal communications 
resource. 
 
Develop internal communication 
methods. 
 
Review resources, including 
technology, needed to make this 
happen. 
 

GF4.1.3 Implement a new Customer Services approach as one Council 
learning lessons from Covid 19 

Assistant Director  People and 
Communities 

Develop Action Plan and seek 
resources to implement measures 
identified.   
 
Realign customer services into a 
one team approach. 
 
Consider ways that technology can 
support delivery of the Customer 
Services Strategy. 
 

GF4.1.4 Strong financial planning to support future resilience and 
financial stability. 
Improve collection and recovery rates.   

Director of Resources 
Assistant Director Finance 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
takes into account impact of Covid 
19 and has a recovery plan for the 
future. 
 
Covid 19 resources are fully 
accounted for. 
 
Ensure that effective collection and 
recovery methods are in place and 
reflect the impact of Covid 19.   

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



GF4.1.5 Provide effective assurance around Towns Deal funding, other 
projects and accountable body arrangements. 

Director of Resources 
Assistant Director Finance 

Utilise Town Deal Assurance 
Framework for all Full Business 
Cases working with Cumbria County 
Council as programme management 
support. 
 
Review resources to support project 
delivery and accountable body 
requirements. 
 

GF4.1.6 Deliver Project and Programme Management  and the Capital 
Programme 

Director People and Place 
Assistant Director – Community 
Wealth Building 

Ensure that the project 
management framework is followed 
and that the Major Projects Board, 
Member Advisory Board and 
Corporate Programme Board 
governance is followed.  
 

GF4.1.7 Ensure health and wellbeing of staff Health and Wellbeing Group led by 
HR Manager 

Develop and deliver a series of 
activities based on staff feedback to 
improve health and wellbeing 
 

GF4.1.8 Prepare for elections  Head of Legal and Governance 
Democratic Services Manager 

Undertake responsibilities that rest 
with local elections 
 

GF4.1.9 Ensure external communications is effective  Chief Executive/ external comms 
support.  

Commission an external agency to 
deliver external comms. 
 
Reshape website to make more 
customer focussed.   
 

GF4.1.10 Ensure that customer complaints are investigated effectively Head of Legal and Governance 
Democratic Services Manager 
HR Manager 

Ensure that staff are trained in 
effective complaint handling.  That 
service standards for resolving 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



complaints are adhered to.  That 
service improvements are made 
where necessary as a consequence 
of complaints. 
 

 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Changing Futures for Complex Individuals 

 
 

Report from:   Assistant Director of Housing 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  There have been multiple conversations with partners about the support provided 

to individuals with multiple complex needs.  In addition, there was a county-wide, 

multi-agency bid to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) to provide support to people with multiple complex needs.  Although 

unsuccessful, partners have expressed an ongoing interest in developing the 

proposed model. 

 

1.2 This report sets out the background and context to those proposals, provides a 

brief synopsis of proposed work and asks Executive Committee to endorse the 

proposed approach.   In endorsing the approach Barrow Borough Council will be 

asked to honour the undertakings set out in the Terms of Reference.  To assist 

wider understanding, this paper provides a briefing that partners can use to raise 

awareness and secure support for the initiative within their own organisations. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1   It is recommended that Executive Committee:  

 
(1)  Agree the Council commits to the Purpose and Principles of the Changing 

Futures Programme as set out in the attached terms of reference of the 
Changing Futures Programme Board (Appendix 1). 

 
(2) Agree that the Changing Futures work will require organisations to work 

outside statutory thresholds to effect change for individuals in this cohort. 
 
(3) Recognises that the realignment of existing and emerging organisational 

resources is crucial to the Changing Futures programme and the resource 
implications set out in section 7. 

 

Page 91

Agenda Item 10



3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 On the 10th December 2020, MHCLG launched a Changing Futures: changing 

systems to support adults experiencing multiple disadvantage Prospectus for 

local Expressions of Interest (EoI). 

 

3.2 Cumbria County Council agreed to act as lead partner and submit an EoI on 

behalf of Cumbrian partners.  The MHCLG prospectus asked any EoI to address 

a number of areas: 

 

 Focus on the most excluded adults – those experiencing multiple 
disadvantages and placing repeated demand on local response services, but 
for whom current systems of support are not working.  

 Adults experiencing three or more of the following five: homelessness, 
substance misuse, mental health issues, domestic abuse, and contact with 
the criminal justice system. 

 Particular focus on reaching those not well connected to existing support 
services.   

 Cohort who often face other needs where a coordinated, ‘whole person’ 

approach is required.  

 

3.3 There was significant interest from partners, including district councils, police/ 

OPCC  (Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner), National Probation 

Service, Community Rehabilitation Company, Health and the Third Sector, in the 

EoI – with a recognition that there was a cohort of high impact individuals who 

were currently potentially falling between different services.   

 

3.4 An Expression of Interest was agreed by partners and submitted to MHCLG – 

see Appendix 2.   

 

3.5 The EoI set out a model based on use of the district-based Focus Hubs where 

existing and emerging services would be aligned.  These could include: 

 

 Development of District based Focus Hubs (Police/OPCC - match funding in 
kind). 

 The establishment and support for multidisciplinary teams to undertake case 
spotting and management (all partners match funding in kind). 

 The Community Rehabilitation Company (CRC) and the National Probation 
Service (NPS) would commit resource to hubs (either virtual or in person) 
either probation officer or probation support officer – and be able to provide 
administrative support (NPS and CRC match funding in kind). 

 Recommissioning the addiction support services to fit with the proposed 
model (Cumbria County Council - match funding in kind). 

 Work with high risk domestic abuse perpetrators (Victim Support - match 
funding in kind). 

Page 92

Agenda Item 10



 Use of Health and Wellbeing Coaches to support individuals. (Cumbria 
County Council - match funding in kind). 

 Potential to link to district-based women centres and services for men (OPCC 
exploring commissioning opportunities – potential match funding in kind). 

 Winter Wellness Hubs – (Morecambe Bay CCG – potential match funding in 

kind). 

 

3.6 In addition there are a number of other developments that are being pursued by 

partners which could potentially align to the Changing Futures model: 

 

Pathways 

The OPCC and Police are developing a Cumbria Out of Court disposal 

framework together with an early intervention offender management programme. 

 

Community Mental Health Transformation Funding  

Changing ways of working for people with severe mental illness and adopting a 

partnership approach across health, social care, housing, substance use and 

voluntary services.   

 

Focused Families 

Expand the Focused Families outreach service provision - improve joined up 

working with marginalised and excluded adult family members. 

 

MHCLG Domestic Abuse Funding 

From April 2021, Upper Tier local authorities will receive grant funding to enable 

them to fulfil their new duty with respect to supported accommodation for victims 

of domestic abuse for Cumbria this is £995,000.  This will enable a refreshed 

look at how victims with multiple complex needs are helped to recover from their 

abuse. 

 

Rough Sleepers Initiative 

Cumbria has been working in partnership to address and meet the needs of 

rough sleepers across the county since 2019. District housing authorities have 

committed resource and receive grant funding from the MHCLG to achieve key 

objectives.  

 

Health Outreach 

Work has been undertaken to ensure the health system wraps around the 

provision for homeless and temporarily housed, with Integrated Care 

Communities ensuring holistic assessments and referral into health services.  

 

Agreement has been reached that these will be aligned to the Hub model.   

 

3.7 To enable these currently disparate initiatives to be aligned, the Changing 

Futures bid set out a number of areas where a whole system approach would be 

developed to ensure coordination and alignment of these services and 

Page 93

Agenda Item 10



resources.  To support this a number of system changes would need to be 

developed and embedded, including: 

 

 Formation of multi-disciplinary teams with support mechanisms 

 Standard Operating Procedures 

 Common referral mechanisms 

 Data sharing systems 

 Revised information governance arrangements. 

 

3.8 As a result, at the operational level, there would be greater integration and 

collaboration across services, more effective support and reduced “demand” on 

reactive services.  This would ensure fewer gaps between services and a 

reduction in people being passed between services. 

 

3.9 Unfortunately, despite the work put into the bid, on 26th February 2021 we were 

informed that the bid was not successful.  Since then partners have reaffirmed 

their interest in continuing to explore the proposed model with potential new 

ways of working and the alignment of existing and new services to provide a 

system-wide response. 

 

 Accommodation 

  

3.10 In addition to the work taken on Changing Futures, there has been considerable 

discussion about support for individuals with complex needs who also have 

housing needs.  This is a long-standing challenge but has risen sharply during 

the pandemic and the Government’s “Everyone In” policy has shone a spotlight 

on the issue of homeless people who cannot sustain general needs or low level 

supported accommodation due to multiple complex needs. 

 

3.11 As a result of conversations between the district councils and Cumbria County 

Council, it has been agreed that these partners remain supportive of the 

Changing Futures concept and that here is synergy between the Homelessness 

and Rough Sleeper Strategies and the Changing Futures proposal.   

 

3.12 It is recognised that a multi-disciplinary case management approach to complex 

individuals is core to the thinking - bringing together Housing, Adult Social Care, 

Mental health, Drug and Alcohol Services, Offender management, Police, Third 

Sector Providers, etc.  This would overlap and complement the existing and 

suggested pipeline projects such as the MHCLG Rough Sleeper Officers, the 

Domestic Abuse funding, the new 2021 RSAP (Rough Sleepers Accommodation 

Programme) grant and the Rapid Rehousing Pathway Officers. 

 

3.13 There is also a commitment to MEAM (Making Every Adult Matters) methodology 

and to co-production, building capacity through greater alignment and 

coordination of existing resources. 

 

Page 94

Agenda Item 10



 Changing Futures Board 

 

3.14 As an outcome of these discussions a multi-organisational Changing Futures 

Board has been established. 

 

3.15 The inaugural meeting of the Board identified a number of areas which placed 

barriers or challenges in the way of support: 

 

1. Individuals not meeting statutory thresholds and hence not receiving any 
support. 

2. No one single point of contact and perceived silo working arrangements. This 
is backed by the lived experiences of survivors.  

3. Information Sharing between organisations is limited by data protection 
regulation and institutional reluctance.   

4. Duplicated work leading to an inefficiency in current resourcing. 

5. Support is closed to individuals who make risky personal choices or do not 
engage in the support available.  

6. Assessment Refusals due to intoxication. Service users may be unable to 
deal with addiction due to other unsupported underlying needs. 

7. Commissioning of services often do not look at the wider picture. Process 
based KPIs drive services towards easy/quick wins rather than complex or 
hard to manage cases. 

8. Employees are already stretched due to COVID-19 pressures. 

9. Buy-in from Members and Leaders to agree to working “up-stream” of the 

statutory minimums.  

 

3.16 After consideration of these barriers, partners restated their, in principle, 

commitment to the Changing Futures model.  It was agreed that a covering 

paper and the Terms of Reference be circulated to partner organisations to 

ensure that the relevant internal governance routes were followed to allow 

appropriate individual organisational sign-off. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Consultation between the districts councils and Cumbria County Council has 

taken place. It has been agreed these partners remain supportive of the 

Changing Futures Concept and the synergy between the Homelessness and 

Rough Sleeper Strategies and the Changing Futures proposal. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

 Status Quo – This is not recommended as a gap in provision across county has 

been identified for complex needs/chaotic clients.  The partnership approach with 

Cumbria County Council and the district councils will improve provision across 

the county and aligns with our Housing First – Transitional Housing Model. 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 10



6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Links to the Council Plan 2020-2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 

Values:  For our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.  We will 

achieve this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at the heart of 

all we do. The Changing Futures Programme will serve the needs of the Council 

Plan our Values and Behaviours and our Growing Forward Report. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 As the Changing Futures bid has not been successful, and there is no additional 

government funding, then the capacity to progress the development of a new 

model is reduced.  However, the Changing Futures bid did not rely on any newly 

commissioned services as it did not want to face a funding cliff edge after the 

one-off funding ended – rather it was based on the realignment of existing or 

emerging services.   

 

7.2 There were a number of funding streams identified through the Changing Futures 

EoI which were not dependent on the bid being successful. There is still 

momentum behind the proposals with effective partner buy-in and considerable 

resource in the system across partners.   

 

7.3 It is the intention that these will be more effectively aligned and mobilised through 

the development of a co-ordinated model.  This will have implications for system 

and organisational working and it is recognised that, due to the partnership 

nature of the Board, that decisions, especially those that require commitment of 

resources, may have to be approved through the internal governance process of 

individual organisations. 

 

7.4 Access to funding to support this development is being pursued through the 

COMF (Contain Outbreak Management Fund) grant received by Cumbria County 

Council.  The proposal, in principle, has been endorsed by the Health Protection 

Board and more detailed proposals are in development subject to final decision 

making.   

 

 To complement this work, one-off funding through COMF is being sought to allow 

a shift in the accommodation model to ensure that sufficient suitable 

accommodation is available on a sustainable basis.  

 

Legal  

7.5 S.111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 

anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary functions. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.6 The Council’s approach to equalities is fundamental to meet our public sector 
equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek an understanding of our customer’s 

Page 96

Agenda Item 10



needs, shaping our services to meet the needs of people with protected 
characteristics and incorporating this into our overall service design. 

 
7.7 An equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the Changing Futures 

Model; this will inform its delivery. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

A gap has been 

identified in 

housing need for 

complex/chaotic 

client group who 

are not abstinence 

free. 

 

Clients who have complex/chaotic 

needs who are not abstinence free 

have no access to supported 

housing locally. The Changing 

Futures Model is in line with our 

Housing First – Transitional 

Housing Model and will enhance 

the support across the county for 

complex needs clients with 

realigned services .At present a gap 

has been identified by all district 

councils. 

 

As an outcome of these 

discussions a multi-

organisational Changing 

Futures Board has been 

established to monitor 

the progress of the EoI. 

Cumbria County Council 

agreed to act as lead 

partner and submit an 

EoI on behalf of 

Cumbrian partners 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager:  email: cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Terms of Reference of the Changing Futures Programme Board  

2 Expression of Interest form 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

None.  

Page 97

Agenda Item 10

mailto:cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CHANGING FUTURES PROGRAMME BOARD 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Recognise that there are a cohort of people who fall outside single agency statutory 
thresholds but cumulatively have high impact on themselves, communities and 
service provision 
 
The role of the programme board is to provide the whole system oversight and 
coordination required to develop and deliver a “Changing Futures” model for 
supporting this cohort of people with multiple complex needs – as set out in the 
previously agreed Expression of Interest.   
 
MHCLG defines people with multiple complex needs as 
 

adults experiencing three or more of the following five: homelessness, 
substance misuse, mental health issues, domestic abuse, and contact with 
the criminal justice system. 

 
Many people in this situation may also experience poverty, trauma, physical ill-health 
and disability, learning disability, and/or a lack of family connections or support networks.  
 
The Changing Futures model develops a coordinated, ‘whole person’ approach taking 

account of the full range of a person’s needs, strengths and resources. This will ensure 
that systemic, multi-agency, arrangements for people with multiple complex needs 
are put in place to ensure that the most vulnerable are able to be supported by a 
holistic range of services. 
 
To enable this to happen there are four related workstreams 
 

Systems - putting in place systems to ensure effective data management, 
case spotting, triage, assertive outreach multi-organisational working and 
evaluation 
Support – ensuring that there is an agreed process for case managing 
individuals and that there is appropriate support for them to access 
Commissioning - a review of commissioning practice to ensure that there are 
no gaps in service for those who do not meet statutory requirements and are 
complex or challenging. 
Accommodation – to develop a sustainable accommodation market for those 
with multiple complex needs 

 
FUNCTIONS OF THE GROUP 
 

 Maintain an overview of performance issues across Cumbria. 

 Provide analysis and challenge performance across the county against agreed 
evaluation outcomes. 

 Develop and deliver an action plan to deliver the Changing Futures programme 
priorities. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 Support implementation of national and local new initiatives related to this 
issue. 

 Provide oversight to operational task and finish groups and respond to issues 
escalated from those groups.  

 Identify and respond to emerging threats, trends and opportunities. 

 Develop and enable implementation of operational systems. 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Work on addressing the needs of people with multiple complex needs can only be 
effective if multi-agency cooperation is achieved. The services, expertise and 
resources that partner agencies can bring to the development and delivery of a 
strategy are crucial to its success. Organisations from all sectors, statutory, voluntary 
and private, have a contribution to make. 
 
Members are expected to: 

 

 Regularly attend (or ensure attendance of a named deputy) and actively 
contribute to the group. 

 Have sufficient authority and seniority to drive forward recommendations on 
behalf of the agency they represent. 

 Commit to working in partnership to ensure a coordinated response to promote 
joint working, cooperation and mutual support. 

 Ensure that relevant information from their organisation/sector is made 
available to the board and that information is communicated back to the 
organisation/sector they are representing, ensuring that Data Protection rules 
apply. 

 Champion the cause individually, and take responsibility to make links to this 
work at other meetings and in their organisation. 

 
Membership 

 
Chair – Joint Chair by a District and County Council Officer 

Representative from each of the 6 Districts 

Adult Services, CCC  

Children Services, CCC  

Commissioning, CCC 

Public Health, CCC 

Cumbria Constabulary  

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 

National Probation Service/Community Rehabilitation Company 

Bay Health and Care Partners 

Representative from North Cumbria Integrated Health and Care system 

Representative from Third sector 

Representative from housing provider 

 

NB members should identify a named deputy to ensure consistent attendance.  

Page 100

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



QUORACY 
 

For a meeting to be quorate, either the Chair or Vice Chair must be in attendance, plus 
three other members from separate agencies.  
 
REPORTING 
 
The Group is accountable to, and will make recommendations to, Safer Cumbria - 
Community Safety Group and the Cumbria Housing Group. 
For the use of the COMF Funding – this Board will report to the Outbreak Protection 
Board 
It is recognised that there will be many funding streams supporting this work and the 
Programme Board will provide updates to support governance requirements 
associated with these. 
 
DECISION MAKING 
 
Decision will be made by consensus but if voting is required, decisions will be made 
by simple majority vote of all members present at any given meeting 
 
MEETING ARRANGEMENTS  
Frequency of meetings – Teams meetings every two months 
 
Meeting Structure 
 
In addition to the formal meetings of the Changing Futures Partnership Board, we 
will have alternative mechanisms in place for effective consideration of operational 
proposals and engagement with the full range of partners and stakeholders. Different 
types of meetings will be held – which will happen in the following formats: 
 

 Changing Future Partnership Board– Formal meeting providing interface 

with reporting mechanisms.  Consideration of Action plan to deliver priorities. Co-

ordination of multiagency activity.  Oversight of task and finish groups. 

 Task and Finish Groups – Small groups set up to consider specific issues 

and to produce recommendations for adoption by the Board 

 Developments Sessions –Deep dive sessions to focus on single area for 

action and provide mechanisms for wider engagement with stakeholders around a 

specific issue. 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



December 2020 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Changing Futures: changing systems to 
support adults experiencing multiple 
disadvantage  

Expression of Interest (EoI) form  
  
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please email your form to MCN@communities.gov.uk no later than 23:55 on 21 
January 2021 
 
Please include ‘Changing Futures’ and the name of your local area in the subject 
line. 

Page 103

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

mailto:MCN@communities.gov.uk


Applicant  
  

1.1 Area   Cumbria 

1.2 Named contact   
(a) name  
(b) main role  

(a) Derek Houston (b) Senior Manager – Health 
and Care Integration 

1.3 Address  
  
  

Cumbria County Council 
Cumbria House 
107-117 Botchergate 
Carlisle 
CA1 1RZ 
 

1.4 Telephone number  
(a) organisation  
(b) contact   

  

1.5 Email address of 
named contact  

  

  
Co-applicants details  
 
Please provide named contacts supporting the EoI from each of the core partners 
listed in section 2.4 of the Prospectus.  
 
  Name Organisation Job Title Email address 

2.1 Local 
Political 
lead 
(required) 

Deborah 
Earl 

Cumbria 
County Council 

Cabinet Member 
for Public Health 
and Communities 

 

2.2 Local 
Authority 
contact (at 
least one 
name 
required)  

John 
Readman 
 
Barry 
Chambers 
 
 
 
Jan Sharp 
 
 
 
Mark 
Lambert 
 
 
 
 
 

Cumbria 
County Council 
 
Allerdale 
Borough 
Council 
 
 
Barrow 
Borough 
Council 
 
Carlisle City 
Council 
 
 
 
 

Executive 
Director – People 
 
Safety Resilience 
and 
Homelessness 
Manager 
 
Assistant Director 
of Housing 
 
 
Corporate 
Director of 
Governance and 
Regulatory 
Services 
 
 

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Amanda 
Starr 
 
 
 
Les Clark 
 
 
Simon 
Rowley 
 
 
 
 

Copeland 
Borough 
Council 
 
 
Eden District 
Council 
 
South 
Lakeland 
District Council 
 

Housing Strategy 
and Social 
Inclusion 
Manager 
 
Director of 
People and Place 
 
Director of 
Customer 
Services 

2.3 Health 
contact (at 
least one 
name 
required) 

Julia 
Westaway 
 
 
 
 
Anita 
Barker 

Morecambe 
Bay CCG 
 
 
 
 
North Cumbria 
CCG 

Population 
Health and 
Childrens System 
Senior Manager 
 
 
Deputy Director 
(Commissioning) 

 

2.4 Police 
contact (at 
least one 
name 
required) 

Sarah 
Jackson 
 
 
Vivian 
Stafford 
 

Cumbria 
Constabulary 
 
 
Office of the 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

Acting Assistant 
Chief Constable 
 
 
Chief Executive 

 

2.5 
National 
Probation 
Service 
contact (at 
least one 
name 
required) 

Lisa 
Thornton 
 

National 
probation 
Service 

Interim Head of 
Cluster 

 

2.6 
Voluntary 
and 
community 
sector 
contact (at 
least one 
name 
required) 

Carolyn 
Otley 
 

Cumbria CVS Community 
Resilience 
Coordinator 

 

 
  

Guidance notes  
 Please refer to the prospectus when completing this form, including section 

2.1 on the aims of the programme; 2.2 on defining the cohort; 2.3. on core 
delivery principles; and 2.4 on core partnership requirements. 
 

 To note, the goal of the programme is to generate learning and test a new 
partnership approach between government and local areas. Therefore, we 
are seeking a balance of different areas of the country, scales of operation, 
partnership structures and delivery models to maximise learning. This light-

Page 105

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/changing-futures-changing-systems-for-adults-experiencing-multiple-disadvantage


touch EOI process is an opportunity to learn more about interested local 
areas’ current delivery, priorities and plans to inform this selection process.  
 

 Information in your application may be shared with other government 
colleagues for the purpose of developing our understanding and informing 
wider policy development and best practice.  
 

 Additional supporting material will not be accepted. Please use black type, 
Arial font 12.  

 

 
1. Existing partnership work to address multiple disadvantage 

Provide a brief summary of existing partnership work that supports adults 
experiencing multiple disadvantage in your area, and how this aligns with local 
strategic ambitions and priorities.  
Maximum 300 words   

  

 Over the last few years Cumbria has developed stronger partnership working: 
 

 The Health and Wellbeing Board has established the Public Health Alliance – an 
innovative partnership of the county council, district councils, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the voluntary and community sector - which is responsible for 
developing and delivering the Public Health Strategy across Cumbria. 
 

 Both North Cumbria and Morecambe Bay Integrated Care Partnerships have 
developed health and care system strategies which embed population health 
approaches. 
 

 Safer Cumbria, the countywide criminal justice and community safety partnership, is 
adopting the public health approach to crime and is concentrating on harm reduction 
for vulnerable individuals. 
 

 The longstanding and robust countywide partnership Cumbria Housing Group, which 
includes the County and District councils, has a sharpened focus on housing, 
homelessness and wellbeing. 

 
Strategic Priorities 
 
The multi-agency Cumbria Strategic Recovery Coordinating Group is producing the 
recovery strategy for Cumbria - providing the overarching strategic ambitions and priorities 
for a reinvigorated Cumbria following Covid.  
 
During Covid organisations have been more agile and responsive with traditional barriers 
being broken down.  The emphasis of the recovery strategy is to capture and build on the 
more integrated and innovative ways of working that are evident both systematically but also 
by developing the relationship-based collaboration across a wider range of organisations, 
including community groups. 
 
The recovery strategy is very firmly based on an asset-based approach.  Fundamental to 
this is recognising the role that individuals and communities have in taking ownership of and 
co-producing services.  An approach which is also fundamental to this bid. 
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



In addition, the recovery strategy recognises that Covid has exacerbated inequalities and 
has had a particularly large impact on members of the Changing Futures cohort.  This is 
recognised within the strategy by setting specific targets around members of this cohort. 
 

  
 
 

 
2. Evidence of local need  

Set out evidence of local need relating to adults facing multiple disadvantage, as 
defined in section 2.2 of the prospectus.  
We acknowledge that at this stage there will be evidence and data gaps around the 
most excluded and ‘hard to reach’ individuals, so please set out:  

a) Evidence and available data on local need and supporting evidence for any 
local priority groups identified, including with reference to protected 
characteristics.  

b) How you would plan to address evidence gaps and improve data and 
mapping of the cohort through participation in the programme, and to engage 
people who are currently not well-connected to support services.  

Maximum 400 words  
  
Data collected shows:  
 

 For 2020 the police recorded 5559 incidents where vulnerable adults were flagged - 
3398 had mental health and 920 with substance abuse issues – both increasing by 
over 40%. 

 The police recorded 8020 domestic abuse incidents with 1534 (19%) being related to 
mental health and 2465 (31%) related to substance abuse. 

 For NPS the overall caseload is 788.  Of those 413 (52%) have 3 or more identified 
needs. 

 For CRC the overall caseload is 1068.  Of those 993 (93%) have 3 or more identified 
needs. 

 This year to date, Districts councils recorded 126 repeat homelessness cases - 114 
(90%) of those having three or more specified need areas. 

 The Troubled Families programme shows that from April 2015 the number of adults 
known to have the markers for “contact with the criminal justice system”, “mental 
health issues”, “substance misuse” and/ or “domestic abuse” is 2905.   

 Alcohol consumption is higher in Cumbria than nationally. Despite this, only about 
19% of the 5,373 individuals with an alcohol dependency are currently in treatment.  

 50-60% of all clients entering treatment also have a Mental Health need identified, 
and approximately 25% of these were not currently receiving treatment. 

 
This bidding partnership has identified a need for a more mature data collection, sharing and 
analysis arrangements in place across sectors and partners to enable a more 
comprehensive understanding of needs – both at an individual and system level.  In 
addition, the collection and analysis of data on those with protected characteristics is not as 
well developed as it could be. There is also a need to move from to outcome measures 
rather than process measures. 
 
A key part of the proposal is to ensure that organisations and systems develop a shared 
information collection protocol based on a common standard, with investment into data 
analysis and evaluative techniques to build an evidence informed approach to interventions.   

Page 107

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



 
As well as using data from public bodies there is a commitment to use a wider range of 
evidence.  This will include voluntary and community groups, however key to this is how the 
lived experience of people who have multiple complex needs will help shape services and 
evaluate the effectiveness of interventions. 
 
If the bid is successful, we will use the opportunity to develop an asset-based approach to 
capture direct experience of services to generate co-production of formal and informal 
services and support mechanisms – both at a local and strategic level. 
  
  

  
3. Proposed delivery model and theory of change 

Provide an initial proposal that sets out how you would build on existing work to 
improve support for adults experiencing multiple disadvantage in line with the core 
principles set out in section 2.3 of the prospectus. Your response should:  

a) Provide a summary of multi-agency partnership arrangements that would 
operate at an operational and strategic level to support delivery of the 
programme and provide local governance and oversight.  

b) Articulate how your proposed approach would lead to improved outcomes at 
the individual, service and system level as set out in section 2.1 of the 
prospectus.  

Maximum 750 words  
  
Partners have agreed a model that will address the unique circumstances in Cumbria.  As 
the second largest county in England, the diverse nature of the county - with deprived urban 
areas and sparsely populated rural areas - means that the volume and type of need and the 
ability to access support varies across the county. 
 
The model will also have to achieve the following design principles: 
 

1. Redesign services around lived experience 
2. Work using Making Every Adult Matter methodology 
3. Building capacity through greater alignment and coordination of existing resources 
4. Developmental approach to coproduction of community assets 
5. Building the skills to work collaboratively with users (and other organisations) 

 
The bid sets out a two-pronged approach to ensure the greatest impact: 
 

 Creation of countywide system architecture that will make more effective use of 
existing and proposed operational capacity. 

 Development of community assets to meet the needs of the different communities in 
Cumbria. 

 
Operational Arrangements 
 
Underpinning the model will be an operational framework that ensures that there is an 
aligned approach across different partnerships, organisations and professionals. 
 
The backbone of this approach will be the six district-based Local Focus Hubs - locality-
based forums for discussing complex multi-agency issues.  All partners have committed to 
supporting their development to ensure that they can become the spine around which the 
operational model is built. 

Page 108

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



 
Set out in the next section there are a number of initiatives which are currently being 
developed by partners.  Agreement has been reached that these will be aligned to the Hub 
model.   
 
As a result, at the operational level there would be greater integration, collaboration across 
services, more effective support and reduced “demand” on reactive services.  This will 
ensure fewer gaps between services and a reduction in people being passed between 
services. 
 
A number of system changes will be developed and embedded, including: 
 

 Formation of multi-disciplinary teams with support mechanisms 

 Standard Operating Procedures 

 Common referral mechanisms 

 Data sharing systems 

 Revised information governance arrangements. 
 
However, as well as these transactional system changes, it is also recognised that work will 
be required to develop more transformational cultural changes.  A key part of the bid is 
therefore investing in building the skills for collaborative working to create lasting change.  
 
Asset Development 
 
The Hubs will also provide a focus for generating a better understanding of both the needs 
and available assets currently in a local community.  Working with local partners, community 
groups and with people with lived experience they will build community infrastructure and 
social capital. 
 
This will build on award winning good practice, which is being further embedded by Hilary 
Cottam and Cormack Russell, in a local District to create a stronger, asset-based 
relationship between individuals and formal and informal support mechanisms. 
 
Impact on Individuals 
 
As a result of this approach, an individual would expect to see the following changes: 
 

 Individuals being supported in a coherent manner coordinated across both formal 
and informal support mechanisms 

 A single point of contact to support the individual 

 Working with the individual to enable them to build the confidence and self-esteem to 
change and take back control of their lives   

 Individuals active in identifying their priorities and support needs 

 Help to build social network and connect to community support - family, friends, 
neighbours 

 A no wrong door approach  

 An ongoing support process – with no arbitrary cut-off point 
 
Target Cohorts 
 
Using the learning from the MEAM approach, the model is intended to be a targeted rather 
than universal approach with a focus on individuals whose behaviours/circumstances are 
having a high impact on themselves, others, communities, or services. 
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



We will take a harm reduction approach providing particular support for those individuals 
who are vulnerable to exploitation.  This will include, but is not limited to: 
 

 Women within or at risk of entering into the criminal justice system; 

 Individuals at risk of multiple exclusion linked to repeat homelessness and rough 
sleeping; 

 High risk domestic abuse perpetrators 

 Repeat offenders;  

 Young adults in transition from children’s services. 
 
Strategic Governance 
 
Overarching the proposal are new governance arrangements which will bring together all 
partners, including the voice of those with lived experience.  
 
The model will use existing partnership arrangements and create a cross partnership group 
that reports into Safer Cumbria, the Public Health Alliance and the Cumbria Housing Group. 
 
This will provide strategic oversight of the programme with evidence-informed decisions 
about prioritisation through robust analysis of a shared data set and evaluation of 
effectiveness of the programme; coupled with a rapid escalation mechanism to tackle 
barriers at senior level. 
   
  
  

 
 
 

4. Commitment to lasting system change  

Set out your commitment to driving lasting system change so that the benefits of the 
Changing Futures programme are sustained beyond the lifetime of the initial funding.  
Please also set out commitments to provide match-funding from partner agencies, 
either through direct funding or in-kind contributions as set out in section 2.6 of the 
prospectus. To note: we are looking to understand level of commitment from 
partners at this stage, and detailed match-funding commitments can be developed 
further at the delivery plan stage.  
Maximum 300 words 
   
An explicit and intentional design principle for this model is to ensure that it will be 
sustainable.  To enable this the model has focussed on three key areas to ensure that there 
is no funding cliff edge: 
 

 Long-term system capacity improvement through realignment of existing and 
proposed services to provide a more coherent and efficient support offer. 

 Use of the programme monies to produce the system architecture to support this – 
including supporting the development of a new shared culture. 

 Use of the programme monies to develop localised and self-sustaining community 
assets including those designed, developed and delivered by people with lived 
experience.  

 
Partners have welcomed the opportunity to rethink the system response to individuals and 
have committed to the long-term realignment of services to support this.  This includes: 
 

Page 110

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



 Development of District based Focus Hubs (Police/OPCC - match funding in kind) 

 The establishment and support for multidisciplinary teams to undertake case spotting 
and management (all partners match funding in kind) 

 CRC and NPS would commit resource to hubs (either virtual or in person) either pro-
bation officer or probation support officer – and be able to provide administrative 
support (NPS and CRC match funding in kind) 

 Recommissioning the addiction support services to fit with the proposed model 
(Cumbria County Council - match funding in kind) 

 Work with high risk domestic abuse perpetrators (Victim Support - match funding in 
kind) 

 Use of Health and Wellbeing Coaches to support individuals. (Cumbria County 
Council - match funding in kind) 

 Potential to link to district-based women centres and services for men (OPCC explor-
ing commissioning opportunities – potential match funding in kind) 

 Winter Wellness Hubs – (Morecambe Bay CCG– potential match funding in kind) 
 
In addition to the services outlined above, partners have agreed that the developments set 
out in the next section will also align with the bid model. 
 
 
 

  
5. Overlap with existing projects 

A range of government or local programmes are underway led by different parts of 
the public sector or targeting specific groups with high levels of multiple 
disadvantage, such as (but not limited to): Rough Sleeping Initiative funding; NHS 
England long-term plan mental health funding; or other Shared Outcomes Fund 
programmes.  
Please provide:  

a) A summary of other government funding and local programmes impacting 
adults with multiple disadvantages in your area 

b) Set out how involvement in the Changing Futures programme would provide 
additionality to complement and enhance these other programmes and 
interventions as part of a whole system approach.  

Maximum 400 words  
Some key programmes linked to Changing Futures are set out below.  As part of the revised 
governance arrangements, connections between Changing Futures and these programmes 
will be established. 
 
Operationally there will be seamless connections to ensure that systemic barriers to support 
– which will be broken down through Changing Futures– do not re-emerge when linking into 
these other programmes. 
 
Pathways 
 
The OPCC and Police are developing a Cumbria Out of Court disposal framework together 
with an early intervention offender management programme, providing a disposal framework 
in Cumbria known as Pathways. 
 
This is a culture changing initiative that seeks to address the root cause of offending at an 
earlier stage of the “offending journey” and to address the consequences of those actions. 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Involvement in the Changing Futures programme would assist to improve delivery of 
Pathways with collaboration with local partners across government departments, NHS, 
Voluntary and community sector. 
 
Mental Health 
 
Community Mental Health Transformation Funding is about changing ways of working for 
people with severe mental illness and adopting a partnership approach across health, social 
care, housing, substance use and voluntary services.   
 
This will close the gap between primary and secondary care for people with severe mental 
illness many of whom have co-existing issues with substances, employment, 
accommodation etc.  Integral to this is a co-production and a partnership approach to re-
designing services which will link to the Changing Futures programme. 
 
Troubled Families 
 
The team are keen to expand the Troubled Families outreach service provision and it is 
envisaged the work through the Changing Futures programme would improve joined up 
working with marginalised and excluded adult family members, thereby improving 
relationships and reducing service duplication. 
 
MHCLG Domestic Abuse Funding 
 
From April Upper Tier local authorities will receive grant funding to enable them to fulfil their 
new duty with respect to supported accommodation for victims of domestic abuse.  This will 
enable a refreshed look at how victims with multiple complex needs are helped to recover 
from their abuse. 
 
Rough Sleepers Initiative 
 
Cumbria has been working in partnership to address and meet the needs of rough sleepers 
across the county since 2019. District housing authorities have committed resource and re-
ceive grant funding from the MHCLG to achieve key objectives.  
 
Health Outreach 
 
During the pandemic work has been undertaken to ensure the health system wraps around 
the provision for homeless and temporarily housed, with Integrated Care Communities 
ensuring holistic assessments and referral into health services.  
  
  

 

Page 112

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Customer Services Strategy - Final Draft 

 
 

Report from:   Assistant Director of Housing 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff – Operations Manager 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report is to provide you with the final draft of the Customer Service Strategy 
following the consultation process with our customers and staff. It sets out what 
we need to do to ensure all of our customers have a positive experience when 
engaging with the Council. Our customers are defined as anyone who lives or 
works in or visits the Barrow Borough. A further report with a clear Action Plan to 
ensure the effective implementation of the strategy will be brought to Executive 
Committee in September, 2021. 
 

1.2 Our Council Plan clearly articulates we want to put residents at the heart of all that 
we do.  In addition, Covid 19 and our response to this as articulated in our Growing 
Forward reports to Executive Committee shows how working with partners has 
dramatically changed the way customers interact with us. We want to capture the 
positive learning from this and develop a future looking customer service approach 
based on our customers need. For example, many of our services are now 
delivered online as the Town Hall remains closed to the public.  It is not the 
intention to not open the Town Hall to the public again, and we want the Town Hall 
to be a welcoming publically accessible building where you can come in to a 
central point and it doesn’t matter what you want as the central point of contact will 
guide you through. We also need to recognise more people than ever prefer to do 
business online at a time that suits them and we need to meet their needs as well.   

 

1.3 The key guiding principles of the strategy are to: 

 Fully understand what our customers require and design our services around 

them. 

 Develop use of digital channels to provide access to services when people 

need them. 

 Empower customers to self-serve and make it easier for them to do so. 

Page 113

Agenda Item 11



 Support access and independence so if people want a face to face friendly 

contact and cannot access online services they can do that. 

 Deliver services in a streamlined way so customer contact is effective and 

issues resolved at first point of contact. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:  

 

(1) Agree the final Strategy taking into account the outcomes of the consultation 
in June 2021.   

(2) Agree to receive an Action Plan to ensure effective implementation of the 
Strategy in September 2021. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  With local authorities facing growing demand from customers who want to engage 
with them at a time which suits them on a channel of their choice, the use of online 
services, particularly through mobile devices, has increased immensely.  

 
3.2 At the same time economic pressures are forcing councils to re-organise the way 

they deliver services and carry out transactions.  The most cost-effective way of 
doing this is to maximise the use of digital channels and mobile working for 
customer service teams.  We also recognise some of our customers will prefer 
face-to-face services and support during their customer journey.  By tailoring our 
services around our customers we aim to provide excellent customer care.  Our 
Customer Service Strategy will serve the needs of the Council Plan, our Values 
and Behaviours and the Growing Forward report. 

 
3.3 A ‘Customer Service Focus Group’ was established in September 2020 to review 

customer services across the Council.  The key areas being: 
 

Digital – To look at the technology currently in place, working with IT Department 
to prepare a specification, business case and options appraisal regarding a new 
digital platform to go back to future Executive Committee for approval. 
 
People – To work in parallel with the digital platform to review customer services 
to fully understand what our customers require and putting them at the heart of our 
services.  Developing both staff and Members in new ways of working and support 
new skills. 
 
Place – Looking at opportunities to improve mobile working solutions and review 
our assets to support new requirements in the future. 
 

3.4 The Customer Service Focus Group prepared a draft Customer Service Strategy 
to progress with our customers. A full consultation exercise has been carried out 
liaising with all our customers via our website, social media, face-to-face 
engagement with statutory and third sector agencies. 

 

Page 114

Agenda Item 11



3.5 A consultation exercise has also been carried out with Management Group across 
the Council and all staff to ensure we have captured our employee’s views on 
improving our Customer Service.  The survey was underpinned with our Values 
and Behaviours and the Constellation which is embedded into this strategy and 
our customer service offer. 

  
3.6 The Strategy defines the guiding principles which will shape the way the Council 

interacts with customers.  A full review of our services with our customers will take 
place along with a vital review of our current systems to enable a transformational 
change to happen.  Managers who have direct or in-direct contact with the public 
in their role of delivering services or handling transactions will see the greatest 
impact.  It will be particularly important for those involved in the planning, decision-
making and supporting customer access.  The key aspects are the way in which 
services are designed, structured and delivered.  Staff will be a key component to 
the success ensuring our values and behaviours are embedded into any proposed 
changes.  It should be noted the IT infrastructure will not deliver the savings, 
efficiencies and improvements alone.  

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 A full review of our customer service has taken place engaging with our customers 
and staff to develop services. Responses from the consultation has been fed into 
this final draft.  Information from the consultation will also assist with formulating 
the ‘action plan’ to ensure effective implementation of the strategy, this will be 
brought back to Executive Committee in September 2021.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Status Quo – Continue to deliver services within the current operating model of 

the Council.  This is not recommended as the Council will not achieve its corporate 

objectives within the Council Plan and Growing Forward report to improve our 

customer services and efficiencies. 

5.2 Service Improvement – Implement a digital platform as a standalone activity.  This 
will give the Council some efficiencies and improvements to service but this is not 
recommended as all the benefits will not be achieved without a review of our 
customer service and organisational transformation of the Council. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1      Links to the Council Plan 2020–2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 
Values: For our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.  We will achieve 
this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at the heart of all we do.  
Our Customer Service Strategy will serve the needs of the Council Plan, our 
Values and Behaviours, the Growing Forward Report and in line with the stars of 
the Constellation. 

 

6.2 Barrow’s new Constellation has brought together representatives from a wide 

range of backgrounds and experiences to dream and imagine what a different 

future for Barrow would look like.   

Page 115

Agenda Item 11



6.3 The 12 ‘Stars’ identified will be used to guide and shape decision-making for the 

borough and will be embedded within our Customer Service Strategy. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1   In order to support the Customer Service Review a specification for the system 
requirements will be established and a business case developed to allow an 
appraisal to be carried out prior to tender.  There is no budget provision within 
revenue or capital for a project and this will be considered before any tender 
exercise from the business case and other information.  The system project and 
service/process review work will require staff resources.  If there is a requirement 
for external support that will be subject to the normal budgetary control procedures.   

 
7.2 There will be a further report to Executive Committee in September 2021 regarding 

the system procurement/implementation project and the implications. 
 

Legal  

7.3 S.111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 

anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary functions. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.4 The Council’s approach to equalities  is fundamental to meet our public sector 

equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek out an understanding of our customers’ 

needs, shaping our services to meet the needs of people with protected 

characteristics and incorporating this into our overall service design. 

7.5 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the Strategy; this will inform 

its delivery. 

 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Our Current 

customer service 

model is outdated in 

terms of technology, 

access and 

processes to deliver 

efficient customer 

services. 

A review of our Customer Services and 

implementation of a new Customer 

Service Strategy will require significant 

change to the way staff work and 

interact with our customers.   

Without a review and development of a 

new Strategy the Council will not 

achieve its corporate objectives within 

the Council Plan and Growing Forward 

report to improve our customer services 

and efficiencies. 

The review of customer 

services and new 

strategy is being 

managed by the 

Customer Service Focus 

Group and will report 

back to future Council 

meetings. 

 

 

Page 116

Agenda Item 11



Contact Officers  

Report Author: Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager   
 

email: cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Final Customer Service Strategy 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

None.   

Page 117

Agenda Item 11

mailto:cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Customer 
Service 
Strategy 
  

2021-2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Making Barrow Borough a great place to live, work and visit 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk  
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 Barrow Borough Council Customer Service Strategy 2021-2025 

 
 
 
 
 
  

If you require this document in large 
print, Braille, audio or in a different 
language, please contact Barrow 
Borough Council on (01229) 876543 
or email:  

customerservices@barrowbc.gov.uk  

Page 120

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1

mailto:customerservices@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 Barrow Borough Council Customer Service Strategy 2021-2025 

Our Vision 
 

Our Council Plan sets out our vision and priorities for 
the next four years.  Our Customer Service Strategy 
will serve the needs of the Council Plan and Growing 
Forward report ensuring all of our customer service 
teams are clear on how their role plays a key part in 
delivering the council’s priorities. 

Our Customer Service Strategy sets out how, over 
the next four years: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

We will keep our Action Plan under review 
continually reviewing new systems and working 
practices.  We will build on what our customers tell 
us is working well along with areas they think we can 
improve upon. 

The Council’s approach to equalities is also 
fundamental to the successful delivery of this 
Strategy in a way which meets our public sector                        

equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek out an 
understanding of our customers’ needs shaping our 
services to meet the needs of people with protected 
characteristics and incorporating this into our overall 
service design. 

An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken 
on the Strategy, this will inform its delivery. 

Our Vision and Values 
Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to 
live, work and visit. We will achieve this by putting 
residents at the heart of all we do. This is 
underpinned by the following values and behaviours 
which will be embedded into this strategy and our 
customer service offer. 

  To focus on our community and provide 
excellent service for all our customers and 
colleagues. 

  To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing 
the right thing, being open and confident to   
challenge and be challenged. 

  To aim high, encouraging creativity and 
embracing change. 

  To be proud and celebrate who we are and 
what we do.  

  To work together to achieve our shared vision 
and goals. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

We will put our customers at            
the heart of everything we do.  

  
We will listen to our residents giving 

them a real voice - a chance to 
share their experience of their 

customer journey and from this       
we will design our services        

around our customers’ needs. 

 
 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 Barrow Borough Council Customer Service Strategy 2021-2025 

Current position and 
rationale for change 
Local authorities face growing demand from residents 
who want to engage with them at a time which suits 
them on a channel of their choice.  The use of online 
services 24/7, particularly via mobile devices, has 
increased hugely. 

Rapid changes in digital technology are driving a 
revolution in the way organisations interact and carry 
out transactions with their customers. 

Economic pressures are also forcing councils to re-
organise how they operate.  The most cost-effective 
way is to maximise the use of digital channels and 
mobile working for service teams.  

Improvements to the Barrow Borough Council website 
will make it easier for customers to engage with us 
directly but the website is just one element of a 
broader multi-channel approach. 

This document defines the guiding principles which will 
shape the way we develop our customer contact 
channels over the next four years. Our goal is to put 
our customers at the heart of everything we do.  Whilst 
technology enables more channels for interacting with 
our customers, we understand not everyone wants to 
access our services this way. 

We recognise some of our customers will prefer face-
to-face services and support during their customer 
journey.  By tailoring our services around our 
customers we aim to provide excellent customer care. 
 

Who is this document for? 
This document is aimed at managers, staff, and 
stakeholders who interact directly or indirectly with the 
public in their role of delivering services and/or 
handling transactions. It is particularly important for 
those involved in planning, decision-making and 
supporting customer access. 

The strategy will encourage and enable services to 
simplify the way they operate and improve the 
customer experience. 
 

Guiding principles 
1.  Fully understand what our 

customers require 

 Review our customer relationship management to 
improve knowledge of customer needs. 

 

 Use knowledge to continuously improve the way 
we deliver services. 

 Redesign services to be more efficient and 
effective for residents, visitors and businesses. 

2.  Develop use of digital channels 

 Encourage customers and staff to use our website 
for transactions. 

 Promote awareness of digital services.  

 Enable services for 24/7 web access and digital 
delivery. 

 Align the website team with customer services. 

3.  Empower customers to self- 
serve 

 Create a single view of the customer using a 
secure login for services and transactions. 

 Allow customers to see the progress and 
completion of their transactions. 

 Develop a virtual customer service centre; 
integrate front and back office systems. 

 Data will be processed in line with the Council’s 
Privacy Notice. 

4.  Support access and 
independence 

 Provide access to the public via our front-facing 
services. 

 Support our customers who prefer a face-to-face 
service, a smile and a friendly face greeting 
customers at our new central reception area. 

 Enable visiting officers to act as advocates for 
customers by carrying out online transactions 
related to their needs. 

 Provide Wi-Fi access at our key locations. 

 Achieve agreed national standards for website 
accessibility with easy-to-read options. 

5.  Deliver services in a 
streamlined way 

 Streamline services to focus on what exactly 
customers require. 

 Identify opportunities for staff multi-skilling and 
joint working with partners. 

 Increase the number of queries resolved at first 
point of contact. 

 Integrate digital transactions directly into back 
office services.     

 Ensure consistent information for customers, 
irrespective of channel.  

Page 122

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 Barrow Borough Council Customer Service Strategy 2021-2025 

Research and analysis 
We need to establish a clear understanding of our 
residents’ lifestyles and what exactly they require from 
services, communications and how they want to make 
transactions. 

We need to know what proportion of our customers 
use the phone, website, tablet, and other channels.  
We also need to learn from what is happening in the 
most advanced local councils. 

Information required includes: 
 

 Detailed profile of our area and a demographic 
breakdown 

 Behavioural patterns for different channels eg 
website, mobile, phone, face-to-face, email and 
social media 

 What happens at Barrow Borough Council now? 
For example: how many phone calls, emails, 
website figures, use of online forms (parking, 
planning etc) and accessing social media 

 Figures from our own customer consultation 
exercises/surveys etc. 

 Best practice and current customer experience 
trends.  Understanding vulnerable customers’ 
needs and tailoring services to meet these. 

 Evaluation and learnings from partners/local 
authorities who have reshaped customer services. 

 Evaluation of customer complaints in line with our 
updated Customer Complaints Policy. 
 

Using this information we have to agree the sort of 
relationship we want to have with our customers and 
ensure recommendations support our broader Council 
Plan.  

 

Objectives 
 To improve customer satisfaction.  

 To make service delivery more effective and 
efficient. 

 To enhance access to services for customers 24/7. 

 To support our vulnerable customers who need 
face-to-face service. 

 To make it easier for customers to pay us for 
services. 

 To encourage residents use of the most cost-
effective digital channels. 

 To establish a ‘single view’ of each customer by 
streamlining our IT systems. 

 To increase customer (community) engagement. 

 To increase customer engagement via our social 
media. 

Conclusions 
Major technological and culture change is required to 
ensure Barrow Borough Council continues to fulfil its 
core remit of providing prompt and cost-effective 
services for its residents. 

We must understand clearly the needs of our residents 
and deliver what they require effectively, using the 
channel of their choice. 

While encouraging the use of digital communications 
we must recognise, for some years yet, many of our 
customers will continue to use traditional methods 
such as the telephone and there will always be a 
requirement for face-to-face personal contact offering 
support and assistance via our new central reception 
point. 

We need to plan our corporate reception area and how 
this will operate.  Establishing a ‘single view’ of 
customers will improve efficiency and free up 
resources which can be re-invested to provide better 
services.   

Having a ‘single customer account’ will empower 
residents to self-serve and to have real-time access to 
essential information. It will also enable staff to target 
communication and resources in a much smarter way. 

Making better use of the land and property gazetteer 
(LLPG) and GIS systems will allow property information 
to be more closely linked. 

Expanding the use of mobile working will enable our 
staff to become more flexible and agile. We will 
increase our visual presence in the community and 
build stronger relationships with residents and ward 
councillors. 

Achieving this cultural and technological change will 
ensure excellent customer service is at the forefront of 
everything we deliver and it will put our Council at the 
heart of its local community.  This is in line with our 
‘Vision and Values’ within our Council Plan. 

Making more information available online and giving 
customers the ability to receive bills and notifications 
electronically will generate significant savings in 
stationery, printing and postage costs. 

Establish ownership of Customer requests to enable 
the owner to influence the service provider 

The creation of a performance management dashboard 
looking across all service areas will identify hotspots 
and enable better deployment of resources. 

Attached to the Strategy will be an Action Plan        
developed with managers across the Council.  The 
Action Plan will be reviewed over the four years of the 
Strategy to continually develop our Customer Service.

 

Page 123

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

27 July 2021 

Housing First – Transitional Housing Model 
 

 

Report from:   Assistant Director of Housing 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Housing First is an intervention model which supports homeless people with 

multiple and complex needs to access and maintain independent housing.  The 

Housing Service and The Well Communities (TWC) have been working in 

partnership to develop a model of transitional recovery housing which will provide 

an integrated housing solution for individuals who are local to Barrow-in-Furness 

and are currently in need of or receiving structured treatment, particularly opiate 

replacement therapy and structured alcohol detoxification.   

 

1.2 The Housing First – Transitional Housing Model links in with Key Priority 2 – 

within our Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020–2025 – preventing 

people from becoming homeless as early as possible and also our Council Plan 

actions within People and Place.   

 

1.3 The Housing Service is looking to convert a disused dwelling into four-self 

contained units with TWC providing housing and social support which can be 

supplemented by clinical and psychological support provided by local 

professionals.  At present complex/chaotic clients who are not abstinence free 

are not eligible for supported housing projects. By having transitional housing 

recovery housing, we can move between abstinence and transitional housing to 

ensure the right support and conditions are made available to the individual 

preventing homelessness at the earliest opportunity. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended:- 

 

(1) To note the content of the report; 
(2) To agree to the waiving of Contract Standing Orders under Rule 16 for 

the appointment of the specialist housing support for the Housing 
First – Transitional Housing Model to The Well Communities (TWC); 
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 12



(3) To approve the Director of People and Place progresses a 
procurement exercise to appoint a suitable qualified contractor to 
undertake design and build in line with Council Standing Orders; and 

 
(4) To approve the use of earmarked reserves to finance the conversion 

project. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Housing First is an intervention which supports homeless people with multiple 

and complex needs, which most commonly relate to mental health issues and 

alcohol and/drug misuse, to access and maintain independent housing.  Its 

traditional target group has historically seen a gap in provision given the nature 

of, and overlaps between, support needs. 

 

3.2 Target Population: 

 

 Barrow Borough Council Homelessness and Housing Advice Team are 
working with individuals, residents who are in treatment with Unity, Furness 
General Hospital frequent admissions, sofa surfers, homeless clients, prison 
leavers and local residents who are planning to reduce and detoxify from 
opiate replacement therapy or other substances. 

 Clients are currently in insecure accommodation or accommodation that is 
not conducive to their recovery plans. 

 Clients transitioning from emergency temporary accommodation who require 

transitional recovery support. 

 

3.3 The Model supplements and differs from current provision in the area in several 

ways.  Firstly, it provides a recovery focused behaviour change model for clients 

transitioning out of emergency temporary accommodation who are unable and/or 

not ready for strict abstinence accommodation.  Unlike more generic providers of 

supported accommodation, this model will be 100% integrated into the treatment 

system, and local support networks and will also benefit from the expertise 

specialist support.  Residents will be housed in a home which will be self 

contained with no more that three other peers within the development.  This 

helps individuals to break free from the sense of institutional care and support 

and aids the development to sustained tenancy and identity within the 

community. 

 

3.4 TWC has demonstrated its ability to motivate individuals with complex needs and 

low motivation to reduce the harm associated with substance misuse related 

behaviour. The transitional recovery housing will allow individuals to continue to 

build on the changes they have made and minimise the risk of either 

drift/regression or homelessness.  It is recognised that placing individuals in 

abstinence housing too quickly can put them at unnecessary risk of 

homelessness. 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 12



3.5 The Contract Standing Orders do not require tenders to be invited if the Chief 

Executive and Director of Resources in consultation with the Chair of Vice-Chair 

of the Executive Committee determine that the works, goods or services are of a 

specialised nature and it would not be practical to go to more than one contractor 

or supplier, or this would result in no genuine competition.  Members are 

requested to endorse the approach to award direct for the appointment of the 

specialist housing support. Authority is also sought for officers to undertake a 

procurement exercise to appoint a suitable qualified contractor to undertake 

design and build will be undertaken in line with Council Standing Orders.  

 

3.6  A procurement exercise to appoint a suitably qualified contractor to undertake 

design and build in line with Council Standing Orders will take place.  Earmarked 

reserves will be used to finance the conversion project.  

 

3.7 Within Barrow-in-Furness there are a high number of individuals who are being 

maintained on methadone/buprenorphine. Experience from TWC, and in 

consultation with Unity and service users, we know they could make greater 

social, mental and physical gains in supported transitional recovery housing.  

Behaviour change targets can be agreed that are realistic, incremental and truly 

led by the individual. 

 

3.8 The Integrated Model 

 

TWC and Barrow Borough Council Homelessness and Advice Team have a long 

history of working closely together.  The Housing First – Transitional Housing 

Model residents will attend specific recovery groups delivered by The Well and 

community meetings led by professional intensive housing management staff 

and housing support workers.  Volunteer recovery companions will be allocated 

to each house also, supporting residents out of hours and supporting them to 

engage with wellbeing activities and mutual aid groups through the week.  

Housing Support staff will have access to a comprehensive support management 

system to access housing plans with the service user.  In addition to this there 

will be an integrated risk management plan which will act to reduce the risk of 

homelessness alongside other risk domains. 

 

3.9 Preventing Homelessness 

 

Preventing Homelessness is key to the project.  All individuals coming into the 

project have a clear understanding of the aims and objectives and how these will 

be achieved.  Tenancy sustainment is part of all individuals planning to ensure 

they are in the best position to meet the responsibilities in their licence 

agreement and manage the risk of homelessness.  As part of the integrated 

service, we will work with closely with many other local stakeholders to support 

residents in all aspects of their lives to enable long term tenancy sustainment, life 

skills, self care, mental health issues, substance abuse, budgeting, GP linkage, 

dentist etc. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

Page 127

Agenda Item 12



  

4.1 The Council has worked with TWC to identify the gap in provision in terms of 

housing for complex/chaotic clients who are not abstinence free.  The Housing 

First Model has been explored to deliver intensive support to complex clients 

who are unable to move into independent generic tenancies from emergency 

temporary accommodation. 

 

4.2 The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government recognise the work 

carried out by homelessness teams across the country, which has helped get 

people off the streets and sofa surfing and into safe accommodation to protect 

the most vulnerable. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Status Quo – Continue to deliver services within the current operating model.  

This is not recommended as a gap in provision for complex needs/chaotic clients 

who are not abstinence free has been identified.  The Housing First Model has 

been piloted in other areas of the country with success to reduce rough sleeping 

in line with the Government’s 2019 manifesto. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Links to the Council Plan 2020–2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 

Values and Behaviours:  For our borough to be a great place, to live, work and 

visit.  We will achieve this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at 

the heart of all we do.  The Housing First – Transitional Housing Model will serve 

the needs of the Council Plan, our Values and Behaviours and our Growing 

Forward Report. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1  In order to progress the Housing First–Transitional Housing Model, a 

specification and outline plans have been developed. It is proposed that financial 

reserves are used to fund the project which is estimated as a total £310k budget.  

The general funding for homelessness and within the financial settlement has 

been earmarked from previous years and is sufficient to finance this project.  The 

procurement will be carried out under Contract Standing Orders.  For the 

ongoing operation of the facility, internal resources are adequate but there will 

need to be an operating agreement with TWC which will be funded from the 

ongoing annual homeless funding received from MHCLG; there is no impact on 

the General Fund budget from the recommendations. 

 

 

 

Legal  

7.2 S.111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 

anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary function.   

Page 128

Agenda Item 12



 

7.3 Appropriate contracts will need to be entered into. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

 

7.4 The Council’s approach to equalities is fundamental to meet our public sector 
equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek an understanding of our customers’ 
needs, shaping our services to meet the needs of people with protected 
characteristics and incorporating this into our overall service design. 

 
7.5 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on this Housing First – 

Transitional Housing Model; this will inform its delivery. 
 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

A gap has been 

identified in 

housing need for 

complex/chaotic 

client group who 

are not abstinence 

free. 

Clients who have complex/chaotic needs 

who are not abstinence free have no 

access to supported housing locally.  

Without exploring this model further to 

develop the Housing First Model, the 

Council will not achieve its corporate 

objectives within the Council Plan, 

Growing Forward Report and 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 

Strategy 2020 – 2025. 

Procurement would be 

carried out under 

Council Standing 

Orders.  An operating 

agreement will be in 

place with The Well 

Communities regarding 

the support within the 

specialist 

accommodation.  

 

 

Contact Officers  

Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager:  email:  cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

None.  

 

Background Documents Available 

 

None. 

 

  
  

Page 129

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Women's Support and Accommodation Service 

 
 

Report from:   Assistant Director of Housing 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on a proposed 

new scheme within the borough to provide accommodation and support to 

victims and survivors of domestic abuse and vulnerable single women. The 

Scheme will be a partnership approach with Barrow Borough Council, Women’s 

Community Matters (WCM) and Furness Homeless Support Group (FHSG). 

 

1.2 Barrow Borough Council is committed to the reduction of Violence Against 

Women and Girls (VAWG) through working in partnership to enable a 

coordinated approach to these issues.  There is a recognised strategic priority in 

Barrow Borough Council’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy (2020 – 

2025) to address and support vulnerable victims and survivors of all forms of 

domestic abuse. This model is in line with enhances measures included within 

the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. 

 

1.3 The Council recognises the comprehensive and inclusive approach during the 

height of an international pandemic, but also a gap in provision locally to provide 

a holistic service, tailoring bespoke support plans with support and 

accommodation all in one place putting some of our most vulnerable clients at 

the heart of the service.  This model serves the needs of our Council Plan, our 

Values and Behaviours and the Growing Forward report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

 

(1) Note the content of the report. 

 

(2) Approve the Assistant Director of Housing progresses the Women’s 

Support & Accommodation Service with Women’s Community Matters 

Page 131

Agenda Item 13



(WCM) and Furness Homeless Support Group (FHSG) to provide the 

specialist support and accommodation. 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Over the last six years, Barrow Borough Council has worked in partnership with 

WCM to develop its offer to victims and survivors of domestic abuse in our 

community alongside those experiencing other forms of abuse and vulnerability. 

 

3.2 There are a number of strands to our work supporting victims/survivors of abuse. 

 

3.3 Through our partnership approach we are able to offer a range of activities and 

support to enable women and girls who have, who are, or are at risk of, 

experiencing domestic abuse.  This support helps victims/survivors to: 

 

 Access crisis support and advice, including that relating to housing  

 Access practical support 

 Access ongoing emotional support 

 Recover in a safe environment supported by people who understand and 

who care 

 Be less susceptible to revictimisation 

 Reduce their risk  

 Identify the things they are good at and the things they enjoy 

 Best support for their children 

 Make positive choices about their future 

 Access specialist support they or their family might need 

 

3.4  The one-to-one practical and emotional support is supplemented by access to 

the centre’s clothes bank which offers a range of clothes, small household items, 

toiletries, and treats which are all donated by the community and organised and 

cared for by volunteers.  There are also a number of courses and groups 

available, some of which address domestic abuse directly; others which have a 

greater focus on self-esteem; and some which are about developing social 

connections. 

 

3.5 As a Council we are continually looking to improve our service offer to vulnerable 

members of our communities.  We recognise the gap in provision exists with a 

more holistic approach needed offering accommodation and support under one 

roof putting vulnerable clients at the heart of the service. 

 

3.6 Barrow Borough Council has also worked in close partnership with Furness 

FHSG offering temporary accommodation to vulnerable homeless clients for 

many years. We aim   to strengthen delivery and enhance provision by 

developing a new scheme to be known as Women’s Support and 

Accommodation Service. 

 

3.7 FHSG will repurpose four units of accommodation over two floors from within 

their own stock.  Each floor has two fully furnished flats with a shared communal 

kitchen, bathroom, laundry facilities and Wi-Fi access.  The accommodation will 

Page 132

Agenda Item 13



be staffed seven days per week, 365 days a year with access for emergency 

support out-of-hours.  All residents will have on-site support; housing-related 

support with be provided by FHSG with specialised support around domestic 

abuse provided by WCM.  

 

3.8 The service offers a holistic approach, offering tailored support to each case.  

Residents will be referred into the service via our Homeless Advice Team where 

they can live for up to one year.  In addition, all residents will have access to 

planned move-on with priority banding being awarded for residents ready for 

move-on to independent accommodation through Cumbria Choice or into the 

private sector. 

 

3.9 To be eligible for the service clients will be: 

 

 Single women experiencing domestic abuse 

 Single homeless women needing support 

 Aged 18 years or over 

 Needing support to develop independent living skills 

 

3.10 Our Homelessness Advice service will continue to support and provide 

temporary accommodation to women and children within our own 

accommodation with specialised support provided by WCM.  We understand the 

gendered nature of these types of abuse and crimes, and also men are 

sometimes victims of these types of abuse and crimes.  It is important that men 

are included in all aspects of our work on all forms of violence.  We are 

committed to ensuring that any victim will receive a sensitive and appropriate 

response, according to their needs. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 On developing this service, full consideration has been given to protection of 

victims and the duty placed on Local Authorities in England to provide support to 

victims of domestic abuse through the Domestic Abuse Act which came into 

force in April 2021. 

 

4.2 We have liaised with Cumbria County Council (CCC) regarding the proposed 

scheme and are supportive of the project. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Status quo – Continue to deliver services within the current operating model.  

This is not recommended as a gap in provision has been identified for a holistic 

approach for victims of domestic abuse and vulnerable women. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Links to the Council Plan 2020–2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 

Values and Behaviours:  For our borough to be a great place, to live, work and 

visit.  We will achieve this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at 

Page 133

Agenda Item 13



the heart of all we do.  The Women’s Support and Accommodation Service will 

serve the needs of the Council Plan, our Values and Behaviours and our 

Growing Forward Report. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1  The cost to provide accommodation and housing related support to FHSG will be 

funded through the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government’s 

(MHCLG) Safe Accommodation Funding.  The cost to provide the specialist 

support by WCM will be funded through the Council’s funding allocation from 

CCC to support the Domestic Abuse Act. 

 

Legal  

7.2 S.111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 

anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary function. 

 

7.3 The proposed Service complies with a number of the Council’s key safeguarding 

responsibilities.  The Care Act 2014 sets out the Council’s duties to safeguard 

adults who are experiencing or at risk of abuse or neglect.  The Domestic Abuse 

Act 2021 and the government’s wider programmes of work are also supported by 

this model. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.4  The Council’s approach to equalities is fundamental to meet Barrow Borough 
Council’s public sector equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek an 
understanding of our customers’ needs, shaping our services to meet the needs 
of people with protected characteristics and incorporating this into our overall 
service design. 
 

7.5 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the Women’s Support and 
Accommodation Service; this will inform its delivery. 

 
Risk 
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

A gap has been 

identified for a 

holistic approach for 

dealing with 

vulnerable women 

and victims of 

domestic abuse to 

provide accommo-

dation and support 

under one roof.  

 

This model will enhance the service the 

Council provides to vulnerable women 

and victims of domestic abuse.  

We are committed to the reduction of 

violence against women and girls 

through working in partnership to enable 

a holistic co-ordinated community 

response.   

The model will serve the corporate 

objectives within the Council Plan, 

Growing Forward Report and the 

Quarterly monitoring returns 

will be submitted to the 

County Council to meet the 

requirements of the funding in 

line with the Domestic Abuse 

Bill and HCLIC returns to 

MHCLG for Safe Accom-

modation Funding.   

Regular monthly meetings will 

be held between WCM, FHSG 

and the Council as the service 

develops to monitor and 

Page 134

Agenda Item 13



Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 

Strategy 2020 – 2025. 

review. 

Contact Officers  

Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager 
 

Tel. (01229) 876310 email:  cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk    

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Information leaflet on Women’s Support & Accommodation 

Service 

 

 
 

Page 135

Agenda Item 13

mailto:cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 

Barrow Borough Council                                              
in partnership with  

Furness Homeless Support Group &                                                                                 
Barrow Women’s Community Matters  

“Providing women with choice and control of their lives”  
 

All support plans are tailored to you to help you reach your                                                          

goals in all different aspects of daily living.  

Women’s Support &                                                       
Accommodation Service 

Purpose 
We offer Support: 

 in a safe living space; 

 to manage your accommodation; and 

 to move on to more independent accommodation 
within six to 12 months 

 

Aim of the Service is to: 
 Provide the skills, knowledge and opportunities to 

live independently 

 Support you to stay in education, employment or 
training 

 Help women to live successfully in their community 

 Provide specialist domestic abuse support 

 Offer a menu of support options which can be 
tailored to every case to ensure meaningful support 
and care 
 

To be eligible for the service, 
you will be: 
 A single woman experiencing domestic abuse 

 A single homeless woman needing support  

 Aged 18 years or over 

 Needing support to develop independent living skills 
 

Accommodation 
Our Women’s Support and Accommodation Service 
(WSAS) is very close to Barrow-in-Furness town centre.  
We have four fully furnished bedrooms.  There are two 
floors; each floor has a shared communal kitchen and 
bathroom.  There is access to laundry facilities and there 
is Wi-Fi access. 

Staff are on site seven days per week, 365 days a year 
with access to a member of staff sleeping within the 
scheme every night. 

Our residents have a wide range of support needs and 
can live here for up to one year.  In addition all of our 
residents have access to planned move-on with priority 
banding being awarded for residents ready for move-on 
to independent accommodation through Cumbria 
Choice. 
 

Our service offers a holistic approach, 
offering tailored support to every case.  
Our intensive support can include: 
 

 Developing your skills to keep yourself safe & secure 

 Becoming independent but not isolated 

 Managing your accommodation and licence 
agreement 

 Looking after your own health needs and wellbeing 

 Improving budgeting skills and gaining confidence to 
deal with benefit claims 

 Managing your own paperwork and talking with 
professionals 

 Maintaining good neighbourly relationships 

 Establishing positive social network 

 Becoming able to access social/cultural activities in 
the local community 

 Successfully attending college and applying for 
employment 

 Doing voluntary work experience and seeking 
meaningful employment 

 Finding independent move-on accommodation 

 Attending house group meetings covering a variety 
of your favourite topics 

 Open office drop-in service 

 Courses and group activities 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council – 27 July 2021 

Proper Officer Appointments 

 

 

Report from:   Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    N/A 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report asks Executive Committee and Council to consider revisions to the 

Proper Officer appointments following recent establishment changes. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1  It is recommended that Council:-  

 

(1) Approve the revisions to the Proper Officer Appointments as detailed in 

Appendix 1. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Legislation requires the Council to appoint specific officers and to identify officers 

for particular responsibilities. There is a need to review the Proper Officer 

appointments to ensure that they are up to date.  An updated list is shown in 

Appendix 1 for approval by Council.  The revisions are as highlighted in yellow and 

referenced below. 

 

3.2 Witness and Receipt of Declarations of Acceptance of Office – it is recommended 

that the Democratic Services Manager be added as an Alternative Proper Officer 

to witness and receive Declarations of Acceptance of Office 

 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 – to confirm the Head of Legal and 

Governance as the Proper Officer with the Director of Resources as Alternative 

Proper Officer.  The amendments will also be reflected under the officer 

delegations within Part 3(2) of the constitution. 

 

Data Protection Act 2018 – The Data Protection Officer can be an existing 

employee or externally appointed. It is proposed that this be moved to the Head 

of Legal and Governance with effect from 1 September 2021.  

  

Page 139

Agenda Item 14



 

3.3  Members are asked to confirm the revisions as shown in Appendix 1. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Any representations from Executive Committee will be reported to members at the 

Council meeting.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not to make the changes but this would lead to the appointments being out of date 

and opens the council to challenge to its decision making process. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins the Councils decision making processes supporting 

its priorities 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications to raise in this report. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 There are no legal implications. Good governance underpins the working of the 

Council.  It is important that the Council keeps its constitution and delegations 

under review to ensure they are up to date.  

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – there are no issues to 
raise for this report 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

That the Proper Officer 

Appointments are not up to 

date 

Challenge to decision 

making processes 

Ensure appointments 

are kept under regular 

review 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Revised Proper Officer Appointments 

 

 

 

 

Page 140

Agenda Item 14



 

Background Documents Available 

Name of 

Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1 

Constitution 

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/902

3.pdf 

  

Page 141

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 28 

 

DESIGNATION OF PROPER OFFICERS 
 
The following are the Proper Officers of the Council under the enactments shown below. The 
alternative Proper Officer is also authorised to act. 
 

Section of the Local Government Act 1972 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.13(3) - Parish Trustee 

 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s.83 (1) to (4) - Witness and 
receipt of Declarations of 
Acceptance of Office   

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive or  

Democratic Services 
Manager 

s.84  Receipt of Declaration of 
Resignation of Office 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.88(2) - Convening of 
meeting of Council to fill 
casual vacancy in the office of 
Chairman 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.89(1)(b) - Receipt of notices 
of pecuniary interest 

Returning Officer  

s.96(1) - Receipt of notices of 
pecuniary interest 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s.96(2) - Keeping record of 
disclosure of pecuniary 
interest under Section 94 and 
notices under Section 96(1) 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s. 100B(2) - Circulation of 
papers and reports 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.100B(5) - Withholding of 
reports containing exempt 
information   

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.100B(7)(c) - Supply of 
papers to the press 

Democratic Services Officer Chief Executive 

s.100C(2) - Summaries of 
minutes 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.100D - Inspection of 
background papers 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.100F - Members right to 
papers 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.115(2) - Receipt of money 
due from officers 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.146(1)(a) and (b) - 
Declarations and service with 
regard to securities 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

Page 143

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 29 

 

Section of the Local Government Act 1972 

Proper officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.151 - Responsibility for the 
proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.191 - Functions with respect 
to ordnance survey 

Director of People and Place Development Services 
Manager 

s.210(6) and (7) - Charity 
functions of holders of offices 
with existing authorities 
transferred to holders of 
equivalent offices with new 
authorities or, if there is no 
such office, to Proper Officer 

Chief Executive Director of Resources 

s.212(1) - Local Registrar for 
Land Charges 

Director of People and Place Development Services 
Manager 

s.225(1) - Proper Officer 
function - deposit of 
documents 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

s.228(3) - Accounts of any 
Proper Officer to be open to 
inspection by any Member of 
the Authority 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.229(5) - Certification of 
Photographic copies of 
Documents 

Any member of Management 
Team and Democratic 
Services Manager 

 

s.234 - Authentication of 
Documents 

Officer authorised in that 
connection by a general 
delegation or otherwise, or the 
Monitoring Officer in the 
absence of such authority 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 

s.236(9) - To send copies of 
byelaw for Parish records 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.236(10) - To send copies of 
byelaws to the County Council 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.238 - Certification of byelaws Any member of Management 
Team 

 

s.248 - Keeping of Roll of 
Freeman 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

Schedule 12, Para 4 (2)(b) - 
Signature of summonses to 
Council Meetings 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

Schedule 12, Para 4(3) - 
Receipt of notice regarding 
address to which summonses 
to meetings are to be sent 

Democratic Services Manager  

Page 144

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 30 

 

Schedule 14, Para 25(7) - 
Certifying resolutions applying 
or dis-applying provisions of 
Public Health Acts 1875-1961 

Chief Executive Director of Resources 

Local Government Act 1974 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.30 - To give public notice of 
reports by the Local 
Commissioner 

Monitoring Officer Officer nominated by the 
Monitoring Officer as 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Representation of the People Acts 1983 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.8 - Electoral Registration 
Officer 

Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)  or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.35 - Returning Officer Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer  
(Democratic Services 
Manager) or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.81 - To receive returns as to 
election expenses 

Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)  or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.52(3) - To act as Deputy 
Electoral Registration Officer 

Democratic Services Manager  

Local Government Finance Act 1988 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer  Alternative Proper Officer 

s.114 - Duty to report etc. 

 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.116 - To notify the Council’s 
Auditor of a Council meeting to 
be held under s.15 (meeting to 
consider any report of the 
DFO under s.114) 

Director of Resources Officer nominated as 
Deputy s.151 Officer by the 
s. 151 Officer 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.4 - Head of Paid Service 

 

Chief Executive  

s.5 - Monitoring Officer Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

s. 19 and regulations made Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Page 145

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 31 

 

thereunder - Notices of 
Members’ Interests. 

as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

s.2 and s.3 - Preparation and 
deposit of politically restricted 
posts and issue of certificate in 
respect of politically restricted 
posts 

Democratic Services Manager Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Party Wall Act 1996 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.10(8) - Appointing Officer Development Services 
Manager (Building Control) 

Director of People and 
Place 

Public Health Legislation   

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s. 74 - Public Health (Control 
of Diseases) Act 1984 and 
Health Protection Legislation 
(England) Guidance 2010 

Dr. John Astbury Grainne Nixon 

Dr. Nicola Schinaia 

and other appropriate 
persons from Public Health 
England as notified by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Public Health Act 1936        
s. 84 and 85 - (Cleansing or 
destruction of filthy or 
verminous premises, clothing 
and articles) 

  

Public Health Act 1961        
s.37 - (Disinfection of 
verminous articles offered for 
sale) 

  

Sections 48, 59 and 61-62 
Public Health (Control of 
Disease) Act 1984; The 
Health Protection 
(Notification) Regulations 
2010 

Regulations 2 (Duty to notify 
suspected disease, infection of 
contamination in patients) and 
3 and 6 (receipt and disclosure 
of notification of suspected 
notifiable disease, infection or 
contamination in patients and 
dead persons) 

  

Legal responsibilities and 
duties of local authorities   
in connection with 
communicable disease 
control and the protection  

  

Page 146

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 32 

 

of public health are derived 
from the provisions of     
 

       The Public Health (Control 
of Disease) Act 1984 (as 
amended by the Health 
and Social Care Act 2008; 

 

       Health and Social Care 
Act 2008; 

 

       The Health Protection 
(Local Authority Powers 
Regulations 2010; and 

 
       The Health Protection 

(Part 2A Orders) 
Regulations 2010 to make 
notifications and apply 
controls as required 

Local Government Act 2000 and Regulations made thereunder 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

 Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Freedom of Information Act 2000 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s. 36 the ‘qualified person’ Monitoring Officer Chief Executive (in the 
absence of the Monitoring 
Officer) 

Miscellaneous   

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

Section 41 Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 

Certifying true copies of 
minutes 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Section 321(3) Highways Act 
1980 

Certifying copies of approved 
plans 

Director of People and Place  

Section 2 Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 

Lists of protected buildings 

Development Services 
Manager (Planning and 
Enforcement) 

 

Section 4 Housing Act 2004 Property Services Manager  

Page 147

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 33 

 

 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

Officers authorised to issue 
authorisations to carry out 
directed surveillance or to use 
covert human intelligence 
sources under Part II of the 
Regulations of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 

Head of Legal and 
Governance 

 

 

 
 

Chief Executive 

(including Juvenile or 
Vulnerable Persons CHIS or 
the acquisition of confidential 
information) 

 

The Director of People and 
Place is the RIPA Monitoring 
Officer 

Director of Resources 

Service of Improvement and 
Prohibition Notices under the 
Health and Safety at Work 
etc. Act 1974 

Public Protection Manager and 
all Environmental Health 
Officers having satisfied the 
Council as to their 
competence. 

Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Senior Information Risk Officer Director of Resources Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 Chapter II 

Designated Person (Access 
and Disclosure of 
Communications Data) 

Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

The Money Laundering 
Regulations 2007 

Director of Resources Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014 
Section 104(3) 

Point of Contact 

Monitoring Officer Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Data Protection – To act as 
the Council’s designated Data 
Protection Officer as required 
by the Data Protection Act 
2018, s.69 to undertake the 
duties set out in Section 71 of 
the Data Protection Act 2018 
and Article 39 of the General 
Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) EU 2016/679. 

Head of Legal and 
Governance  

Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

 

Page 148

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



Part 3(2) Version 9 (April 2021) Page 34 

 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Phase3 /  

Home Upgrade Grant 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Chris Jones 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The report provides a brief overview of the £350m Sustainable Warmth 

Competition, and recommends bidding into the fund. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

 

Delegate authority to the Director of People and Place to submit a bid into 

the Sustainable Warmth Fund for at least £1m, either individually or as 

part of a consortium, and to enter into any resulting funding agreement in 

consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Chair of Executive 

Committee. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Members have previously agreed to participate in Green Homes Grant Local 

Authority Delivery Phase 2 “LAD2” as part of a Cumbria consortium led by Eden 

District Council (minute 100 10/02/21 refers). The consortium was successful in 

bringing in £5.074m into Cumbria, with £817,000 coming into Barrow. Work is 

currently underway to bring forward delivery of this scheme across Cumbria. 

 

3.2 The Government has now made funding available through the Sustainable 

Warmth Competition for LAD3 and the Home Upgrade Grant (HUG). These have 

a similar focus on fabric and heating improvements for low income households in 

the least energy efficient housing. LAD3 will be targeted at households on the 

gas grid (i.e.those already heated by gas), and HUG will target off gas homes 

(this will include homes that only currently have a gas connection for a cooker). 

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 15



3.3 £200m is available through LAD3 and £150m through HUG. Delivery is 

anticipated to start in 2022 with all measures to be completed by March 2023. 

 

3.4 The funds are to be targeted at households with an income less than £30,000 

who live in homes with an EPC rating of D, E, F or G. Homes with a D rating will 

be limited to assistance of 30% of relevant costs. Owner occupiers will receive 

100% of eligible costs (subject to a deduction if they are living in a Band D 

property). Private landlords will be required to make a contribution of one third of 

eligible costs and a maximum grant of £5000. 

 

3.5. Average costs for LAD3 are capped at £10,000 per property. Average costs for 

HUG are expected to be between £10,000 and £25,000 depending on the EPC 

rating and the current heating type. 

 

3.6 The fund is intended to focus on “fabric first” measures that reduce heat loss (i.e. 

insulation and other heat loss measures) as well as low carbon heating where 

appropriate. New or replacement fossil fuel systems are outside the scope of the 

scheme. 

 

3.7 The competition opened on 16 June and closes on 4 August 2021. Members are 

asked to delegate submission of an appropriate bid to the Director of People and 

Place. This bid may either be a standalone bid or a bid as part of a wider 

consortium. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 

4.1 At present consultation has been limited to consultation amongst local and 

regional partners to identify a suitable vehicle for delivery of LAD2. As we move 

to the delivery phase a further process of consultation with residents and 

property owners in the target area(s) would be undertaken. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 A “do nothing” option will fail to secure external funding, and will deliver no 

carbon reductions and make no contribution to the Council’s Climate Change 

Plan or Council Plan priorities. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Priority 2: Place, Action: Deliver our Climate Emergency Action Plan, Outcome: 

Our environment is enhanced, protected and celebrated. 

 

6.2 Priority 2: Place, Action: Develop a Housing Renewal Policy which focuses on 

delivering improvements which improve the quality of life for residents, Outcome: 

Our Borough has a diverse housing offer, where everyone can expect a decent 

home they can afford to live in. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Page 152

Agenda Item 15



Financial, Resources and Procurement  

 

7.1 There are staff resource implications for the delivery of this project. These will 

need to be factored into the proposal and a project plan will be devised to further 

quantify these needs. Some procurement of professional and contracting 

services may be required, which will need to be carried out in compliance with 

Council Financial Standing Orders. 

 

Legal  

 

7.2 We anticipate that any scheme will be delivered using the Council’s powers 

under the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 

2002. This may require a revision to the Council’s Private Sector Housing 

Assistance Policy. This will be brought back for the necessary approval when 

more detail on specific proposed schemes is available. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes 
 

Action Outcome 

Evaluation of housing renewal schemes Improved picture of satisfaction amongst 

different groups 

Satisfaction surveys for installed measures To ascertain any difference between 

groups with protected characteristics 

Review communication methods to ensure 

that they are accessible to all 

To ensure that no indirect discrimination in 

service delivery occurs as a result of lack of 

appropriate access to information 

 
 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to deliver the project 

because of procurement 

delays, contractor 

performances etc. 

Reputational damage 

and failure to provide 

improvements for 

residents who require 

them 

Effective project 

management by the lead 

officer. 

Lack of engagement from 

residents in target areas.  

Lack of demand for 

project measures 

Effective communication 

strategy in place. 

Lack of capacity within the 

Council 

Lengthened delivery 

timescales 

Training and 

development of identified 

project staff. External 

Page 153

Agenda Item 15



appointment of required 

professional services. 

 

Contact Officers  

Chris Jones, Property Services Group Manager cwjones@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  NONE 

2   

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 NONE 

2 

Add links where possible 

  

Page 154

Agenda Item 15



           PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Future Operation of Barrow Park Leisure Centre – Progress Update  

 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Director of People and Place 

Wards:    All Wards 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

 

1.1 Following decisions taken by Executive Committee on 23rd March 2021 and 

subsequently Full Council on 21st April 2021 to establish a Council owned and controlled 

Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) to manage and operate Barrow Park Leisure 

Centre upon the pending termination of current operating arrangements this report 

provides an update on progress to date. 

   

2.0  Recommendation  

 

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

 

(i) Note the progress made to date on preparation for the transfer of 

day-to day management and operational responsibility for Barrow 

Park Leisure to Barrow Forward Limited. 

(ii) Officers continue to report progress on implementation to the 
Leisure Working Group and this Committee as appropriate. 
 

3.0 Background  

 

3.1 The Council entered into a ten-year contract with Stockport Sports Trust (trading as Life 

Leisure Trust) in 2018 to manage and operate Barrow Park Leisure Centre. Separately 

Life Leisure had a long-standing contract with Stockport MBC to operate all its leisure 

centres, this contract was approaching the end of its term.   

 

3.2 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the leisure industry has been significant where 

significant losses to revenues have been experienced by operators across the UK. 

Stockport MBC and Barrow have supported the on-going operation of its leisure facilities 

by providing deficit funding. 

 

3.3 However, Stockport MBC advised Life Leisure that it was planning to operate the 

services in future by establishing its own Community Interest Company (CIC), 

consequently Life Leisure advised the Council that it will not be able to deliver the 

contract in Barrow from a date to be determined, as it would not be viable without back-

office capacity, that is currently spread across all facilities it operates. 

Page 155

Agenda Item 16



 

3.4 The Council have remained committed to ensuring the continued operation of Barrow 

Park Leisure Centre and minimising any potential disruption to service as far as 

possible. 

 

4.0 Update 

 

4.1 Following the decision taken by Full Council on 21st April 2021, to form a LATC as a 

company Limited by Guarantee; Barrow Forward Limited was incorporated on 26th April 

2021 as a Non-Profit Distributing Organisation. Although the new ‘shell’ company is at 

arms-length from the Council it is wholly owned and controlled by the Council who are 

the sole Member.   

 

4.2 The objects of Barrow Forward as defined in its Articles of Association are:    

 The provision of recreational, leisure and gym facilities and related exercise activities 

and classes in the Borough of Barrow in Furness for residents and visitors. 

 To develop sporting opportunities and increase awareness of the benefits of 

improved health and well-being through promoting participation in recreation and 

leisure activities. 

 

4.3 Dialogue has been on-going and continues with Life Leisure, in an effort to manage a 

smooth transition and reach an agreed termination of the contract and transfer of all 

assets including staff under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) 

Regulations 2006 (TUPE). 

 

4.4 The Council does not have the capacity within its existing support services to provide 

services to Barrow Forward, therefore external support has and/or is in the process of 

being secured for support service functions, mobilisation and on-going operations. To 

date Human Resources, Payroll and a Stakeholder Pension Scheme have been 

progressed and Facilities Management and ICT support is in advanced stages of 

discussion. There is a need to recruit to marketing and finance positions in advance of 

the transfer and as soon as possible  

 

4.5 In addition to this, considerable work and actions are required to affect a transfer of this 

nature, in effect Barrow Forward is commencing from a ‘standing start’. There are over 

150 tasks on the Indicative Reversion Plan of these some of the key tasks to the 

operational set up are illustrated below: 

 

 Establishing a bank account and direct debit capabilities – this has been in progress 

since April 2021 and has proved to be a slow process, despite using the Council’s 

existing bank 

 Data migration from Life Leisure to Barrow Forward – from the existing Leisure 

Management System to Barrow Forward’s system (although it is the same system; 

GDPR protocols and operational processes need to be followed) 

 Support to effectively manage the TUPE consultation process 

 Producing a Service Specification of the Council’s requirements 

 Barrow Forward producing a Business Plan in response to the Service Specification 

Page 156

Agenda Item 16



 Agreeing the funding requirement and budget to deliver the service. 

 Commissioning of external support services such as: 

 

o Accountancy & Audit 

o Building Maintenance 

o Finance 

o Health & Safety 

o Human Resources 

o ICT Support 

o Insurance 

o Marketing 

o Payroll 

o Pensions 

 

4.6 Draft Terms of Reference for the Member Committee that will oversee performance and 

hold Barrow Forward to account have been prepared in addition to a Draft Service 

Specification and Barrow Forward’s Draft Business Plan; these are included for 

consideration by members within the Part 2 exempt agenda item. 

 

4.7 Currently there is not a confirmed date of transfer as there several financial and 

operational complexities to resolve both with Life Leisure and between the Council and 

Barrow Forward, these are explored further in the Part 2 exempt agenda. 

 

4.8 As stated previously the Council are committed to service continuity and minimising 

service disruption to customers and making the transfer a seamless as possible, whilst 

protecting the Council and residents interests.  

 

4.9 There will be no material changes to the service offer, programme, or prices upon 

transfer; from a customer perspective the objective is for it to be ‘business as usual’ as 

far as possible. Once the service transfers there will be a soft re-branding of the services 

and facilities over time, and a change to the name customers will see on their direct 

debit. 

 

4.10 .As previously advised, aside from the negative financial impact of Covid-19, there are 

other inevitable ‘one-off’ costs and on-going ‘back-office’ support costs associated to the 

pending contract cessation/termination and establishing new delivery arrangements that 

are over and above existing provisions. In summary the service will require a higher 

level of subsidy that it did pre-pandemic. 

 

5.0 Consultation  

5.1 The Council’s current PR and Media agency have been engaged to support internal and 
external communications. Once agreement has been reached on contract termination, 
TUPE consultation can commence in earnest  with leisure centre staff.  

 
6.0 Alternative Options  

 
6.1 The alternative delivery options have previously been considered by Executive 

Committee and Full Council, there is no further update in this regard. 

 

Page 157

Agenda Item 16



7.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

7.1 The Council Plan key priority is to ensure that residents are at the heart of all that the 
Council does and addressing the real health inequalities that exist in Barrow. The 
outcomes in the current leisure contract are central to addressing these inequalities, the 
centre is well used and valued locally. Programmes that deliver social value would 
remain a strong feature of service delivery in any future operating model.   

8.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

8.1 The financial implications are further considered in a Part 2 Exempt report. 

  

Legal  

8.2 This report provides an update.   The exempt report which is being considered 

elsewhere on the agenda sets out the legal advice obtained within it. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

8.3 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken to ensure that due regard to those 

with protected characteristics are considered, however there is unlikely to be any 

variation between the options if the strategic requirements are the same.  

Risk 

8.4 Once the ‘go-live’ date is determined, there will inevitably be some inherent risks through 

mobilisation and being business ready. The dynamic nature of the situation the Council 

has been placed in will require a dynamic response to risks as they materialise.  

 

Risk   Impact  Mitigation   

Delay in making 

decision and/or 

implementation  

 Prolonged uncertainty for staff 
and stakeholders 
. 

 Continue to provide 
financial support to 
Life Leisure to 
operate the centre. 
 

Life Leisure fail to 

deliver the 

services during 

any ‘to be agreed’ 

transition period.   

Potential of service disruption 

and unplanned closure. 

Agree robust transitional 

arrangements in 

accordance with 

termination provisions in 

the contract or as 

negotiated. 

Cost increase  The revenue cost to the Council 

greater than budgeted/or as at 

present.  

Barrow Forward are unable to 

deliver against its income targets 

and operational budget. 

The Barrow Forward 

Business Plan will 

include a proposed 

funding requirement that 

exceeds existing 

provision due to the 

impact of Covid 

recovery on income and 

higher operating costs 

Page 158

Agenda Item 16



Risk   Impact  Mitigation   

as economies of scale 

have been lost. 

If Barrow Forward are 

unable to operate in a 

sustainable way within 

the agreed budget, 

further Council funding 

would be required 

and/or efficiency 

measures/service 

reductions 

implemented. 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Steph Cordon:  Director of People and Place 

scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

  

  

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

Executive Committee Report 16th 

May 2018 

 

Executive Committee Report 10th 

February 2021 

 

Executive Committee Report 23rd 

March 2021 

 

Full Council Report 21st April 2021 

 

 

The minutes of the meetings can be found 

through www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

Where reports are exempt from public inspection 

these will not be available to view. 

 

  

 

Page 159

Agenda Item 16

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 161

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 171

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 185

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 2By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 203

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 3By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 207

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 4By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 219

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 5By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 261

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 6By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 265

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 7By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 335

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 339

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 343

Agenda Item 19
Appendix 1By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 345

Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 349

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Community Renewal Fund - The Barrow Way
	CRF Appendix 1
	Annex C – Project Risks

	CRF Appendix 2

	9 Growing Forward, Recovery & Service Planning
	Recovery Tracker master v0.4 appendix

	10 Changing Futures for Complex Individuals
	Appendix 1 Terms of Reference for Changing Futures Programme Board
	Appendix 2  Expression of Interest form

	11 Customer Services Strategy - Final Draft
	Final Customer Services Strategy

	12 Housing First - Transitional Housing Model
	13 Women's Support and Accommodation Service
	Appendix 1

	14 Proper Officer Appointments
	Enc. 1 for Proper Officer Appointments

	15 Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Phase 3 / Home Upgrade Grant
	16 Future Operation of Barrow Park Leisure Centre - Progress Update
	17 Barrow Forward Limited - Strategic Decisions for the Future Delivery of Leisure Services
	Appendix 1 - Articles of Association
	Appendix 2 BFL Member Agreement
	Appendix 3 Draft Terms of Reference - Member Committee clean
	Appendix 4 -  BFL MOAv3clean
	Appendix 5 - Draft Service Specification v0.5
	Appendix 6 Draft HoT's for Lease of Facilities
	Appendix 7 - Draft Business Plan V0.7

	18 Earnse Bay Hub
	19 Debenhams Rooftop Car Park
	Enc. 1 for Debenhams Rooftop Car Park

	20 Heating and Ventilation Contract
	21 Housing Repairs Contract

